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Notice of Annual 
General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 18th Annual General Meeting 
of SIC Insurance PLC will be held in-person as well as virtually 
streamed live on www.sicinsuranceagm.com from the Accra 
International Conference Centre on the 27th November, 2025 
at 11:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To consider and adopt the statement of Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended 31st December 2024 together 
with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To elect and ratify the appointment of Directors.

3.	 To declare dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2024. 

4.	 To approve Directors’ remuneration.

5.	 To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the 
Auditors.

Dated this 30th October, 2025

By Order of the Board

Cynthia Rockson
Company Secretary

https://www.sic-gh.com.
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The Board of Directors will be proposing the following resolutions 
at the Annual General Meeting:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive the 2024 Accounts

The Board shall propose the acceptance of the 
2024 Accounts as the true and fair view of the 
Affairs of the Company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024.

2.	 To appoint/ratify the appointment of 
Directors

Pursuant to Section 172 of the Companies Act 
2019 (Act 992), the following persons are to be 
appointed as independent non-executive directors 
of the company. They are:

1. Dr. Aaron Issa Anafure

2. Mr. Ernest Tawiah Nunoo

3. Mr. Saeed Obi Abdulae

They will replace Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie 
(resigned), Mr. Kwabena Gyima Osei-Bonsu and 
Mr. Nicholas Oteng who will retire at the AGM.

Also, the following were appointed as Directors 
and being eligible, offer themselves for ratification 
of their appointments. They are:

1.	 Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP as Non-Executive 
Director

2.	 Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng as Managing 
(Executive) Director

3.	 Dr. Abena Nyarkoa Asomaning as Non-
Executive Director

4.	 Hon. David Theophilus Dominic Vondee, 
MP as Non-Executive Director

5.	 Hon. Emmanuel Kofi Ntekuni, MP as Non-
Executive Director

6.	 Major Benjamin Donkor (Rtd) as Non-
Executive Director

7.	 Mr. Daniel Amasah Kotey as a Non-
Executive Director

3. 	 To Declare Dividend for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024

The Directors recommend the payment of a 
dividend of GHS0.0511 per share and totaling 
about GHS10,000,000.00 for the year ended 31st 
December, 2024.

4.	 To approve Directors’ Remuneration

Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 
2019 (Act 992) it is hereby proposed that the 
Directors remuneration be paid at such a rate not 
exceeding an aggregate of GH¢1,800,000.00 It is 
further proposed that the Board of Directors be 
given the mandate to approve the emoluments of 
the Executive Director.

5. To authorise the Directors to fix the 
remuneration of the Auditors

Pursuant to section 140(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2019 (Act 992), the Board would request 
Members approval to fix the remuneration of the 
Auditors, Baker Tilly Andah + Andah, who will 
continue in office as the Auditors of the Company.

Additionally, in accordance with section 140(2)(b) 
of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), shareholders 
are to ratify an amount GH¢270,000.00 paid to 
Baker Tilly Andah + Andah.

Board
Resolutions
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NOTE

Hybrid AGM Guidelines

i.	 Attendance and participation by all members 
and/or their proxies at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company this year, may be 
either in-person or virtual/by electronic means 
(online participation).

ii.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote on his/her/its behalf in person or via 
electronic means (online participation).  A 
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

iii.	 The appointment of a proxy will not prevent 
a member from subsequently attending 
and voting at the meeting in person or via 
electronic means (online participation). The 
proxy appointment shall be deemed to be 
revoked in this event.

iv.	 A Proxy Form can be downloaded from the 
website of the company (https://www.sic-
gh.com) or www.sicinsuranceagm.com and 
should be completed and sent via email to: 
registrars@nthc.com.gh or deposited at the 
registered office of the Registrar at NTHC, 18 
Gamel Abdul Nasser Avenue, Ringway Estates 
(Opposite the British High Commission), 
Osu-Accra P. O. Box KIA 9563, Airport-Accra 
to arrive no later than 48 hours before the 
appointed time for the meeting.

Accessing, participating and Voting at the AGM

vi.	 A unique token number will be sent to all 
shareholders by email and/or SMS from 10th 
November, 2025 to give them access to the 
meeting.

vii. 	 Members who do not receive their unique 
token numbers between 10th – 25th November 
2025 can contact the Registrar at registrars@
nthc.com.gh or call 0593105735 to obtain 
their unique token numbers.

viii.	 To gain access to the Virtual AGM, members 
must visit www.sicinsuranceagm.com on 
27th November, 2025 and input their unique 
token numbers to participate. Shareholders 
who do not submit proxy forms to the Registrar 
of the Company prior to the meeting can vote 
electronically during the AGM using their 
unique token numbers.  Further assistance on 
access to the meeting and voting electronically 
can be found on https://www.sic-gh.com.

ix.	 Members are encouraged to submit their 
questions ahead of the AGM via email to www.
sicinsuranceagm.com.

Further information

The 2024 Annual Report and further information 
on accessing, participating and voting at the 
AGM are available at https://www.sic-gh.com or 
www.sicinsuranceagm.com. Members may also 
contact The Registrar, NTHC, 18 Gamel Abdul 
Nasser Avenue, Ringway Estates (Opposite British 
High Commission), P. O. Box KIA 9563, Airport-
Accra. Telephone numbers: 0593105735

Email to registrars@nthc.com.gh
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Mission

To enhance service delivery 
and stakeholder value using 
technological solutions, 
innovation and a highly 
disciplined and motivated 
workforce to drive productivity.

Vision

To maintain our dominance in 
the Insurance Industry.

Objectives

Customers: Achieve total 
customer satisfaction and 
loyalty.
Shareholders: Maximise 
shareholder value.
Employees: a satisfied 
workforce.
Corporate Citizenship: be a 
good corporate citizen.

Core Values

At SIC, we customise our 
products for every client. 
The right product for the right 
person at the right time.
1. Reliability
2. Relationship
3. Integrity
4. Professionalism
5. Excellence
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Directors, Officials & 
Registered Office

1.	 Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP  		  - Chairman (Appointed 30/6/2025)
2.	 Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng 	 -  Ag. Managing Director (Appointed 24/1/2025)
3.	 Hon. David T.D. Vondee, MP 	 -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 30/6/2025)
4.	 Hon. Emmanuel Kofi Ntekuni, MP	 -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 30/6/2025)
5.	 Major Benjamin Donkor (Rtd)  	 -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 30/6/2025)
6.	 Mr. Daniel Amasah Kotey 		  -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 30/6/2025)  
7.	 Dr. Abena N. Asomaning 		  -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 30/6/2025)
8.	 Mr. Daniel Ofori 			   -  Non-Executive Director (Appointed 31/7/2015)
9.	 Mr. Nicholas Oteng 	  	 -  Independent Non-Executive Director (Appointed 19/10/2017)
10.	 Mr. Kwabena Gyima Osei-Bonsu	 -  Independent Non-Executive Director (Appointed 19/10/2017)
11.	 Dr. Audu Rauf 			   -  Chairman (Replaced 30/6/2025) 
12.	 Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi 		 -  Managing Director / Replaced 24/1/2025
13.	 Dr. Aguriba Abugri 		  -  Non-Executive Director (Replaced 4/3/2025)
14.	 Dr. Kingsley Agyemang 		  -  Non-Executive Director (Resigned 11/6/2025)
15.	 Mr. John Frimpong Osei 		  -  Non-Executive Director (Replaced 30/6/2025)
16.	 Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey 	 -  Non-Executive Director (Replaced 30/6/2025)
17.	 Mrs. Christina Sutherland		  -  Non-Executive Director (Replaced 30/6/2025)
18.	 Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie 		  -  Independent Non-Executive Director (Resigned 01/7/2025)

Board of Directors:

Company Secretary: Registered Office:

Bankers: - Foreign

Actuary:

Registrars:

Auditor:

Bankers: - Local

Ms. Cynthia Rockson SIC Insurance Plc, GL-046-1458, 
No.15 Ring Road East, Osu Accra

Ghana International Bank PLC

Deloitte & Touche, The Deloitte 
Place, Plot No. 71 off George Walker, 
Bush Highway, Dzorwulu

P. O Box GP 453, Accra

NTHC Limited 18 Gamel Abdul 
Naser Avenue, Ringway Estate, 
(Opposite British High Commission), 
Accra. 
P. O. Box KIA 9563 Airport, Accra

Baker Tilly Andah + Andah
Chartered Accountants
18 Nyanyo Lane, Asylum Down
P.O Box CT 5443, Accra

Agricultural Development Bank PLC, Absa Bank 
Ghana LTD, Ecobank Ghana PLC, GCB Bank PLC,  
NIB Bank LTD, Société Generale Ghana PLC, UMB 
Bank LTD, Stanbic Bank Ghana LTD
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FIRE
INSURANCE

Be financially protected 
against assets lost and any 
other insured perils in the 
event of a fire outbreak.
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Hon. Bernard Ahiafor is a lawmaker in the 
Parliament of Ghana. He is a distinguished legal 
practitioner, governance expert and statesman 
with over two decades of cross-sectoral 
experience in law, insurance, financial services 
and public policy.

He is an alumnus of the University of Ghana, 
Legon, where he earned a BA (Hons) in Law and 
Political Science, followed by a qualification 
as a Barrister and Solicitor at the Ghana Law 
School.

Hon. Ahiafor has consistently demonstrated 
a strong dedication to professional growth 
through the pursuit of various specialist 
certifications and training programmes which 
include a Certificate in Claims Investigation 
and Communication Skills from the Ghana 
Insurance College, a Diploma in Applied 
Insurance Studies, a Professional Certificate 
in Legislative Drafting from the International 
Centre for Parliamentary Studies (UK), and a 
Certificate in Good Governance for Effective 
Public Service Delivery and Poverty Alleviation 
from CBN International (UAE).

He currently serves as the First Deputy 
Speaker of Parliament of the Republic of 
Ghana and chairs critical committees such as 
the Appointments Committee, the Privileges 
and Immunities Committee, and the Private 

Member’s Bills and Motions Committee.

With a strong track record in legal and corporate 
leadership, Hon. Ahiafor has held senior roles 
across the legal and insurance sectors, including 
serving as Legal and Administrative Manager 
at UniCredit Ghana Ltd., and subsequently as 
Legal, Claims, and Administrative Manager at 
Star Assurance Company Ltd. He continues 
to serve as the Managing Partner of Ahiafor & 
Associates, a leading legal firm in Ghana

Beyond his professional and political 
achievements, Hon. Ahiafor has demonstrated 
exceptional leadership and service throughout 
his academic journey. He served as Senior 
Prefect at Abor Secondary School, Project 
Monitor at Keta Secondary School, Electoral 
Commissioner of Akuafo Hall, and Deputy 
Electoral Commissioner of the University of 
Ghana’s Student Representative Council. 
These early leadership roles helped shape his 
enduring dedication to public service and civic 
responsibility.

Since entering Parliament in 2013, he has been 
an influential figure in national policy, legislative 
reform, and legal oversight. His leadership, 
depth of knowledge, and broad institutional 
experience uniquely position him to steer the 
strategic vision of SIC as Board Chairman.

Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng is a lawyer and 
communications professional with extensive 
experience in public communication, 
journalism, political strategy, and governance.

He is widely recognised for his articulate 
advocacy, in-depth understanding of public 
affairs, and effective stakeholder engagement 
across both the public and private sectors.

He has served as Presidential Staffer, Deputy 
Minister for Information and Deputy Minister 
for Tourism. In these roles, Mr Agyenim-
Boateng played a central role in government 
communication, media relations and policy 
dissemination.

He is also a renowned broadcaster and former 
radio and television show host. His background 
in journalism has made him a credible voice 
in national conversations on governance, 
democracy and development.

Mr Agyenim-Boateng was the spokesperson 
for the John Mahama 2020 Campaign and 
spokesperson for Prof. Jane Naana Opoku-
Agyemang, the Running Mate of the John 
Mahama 2024 Campaign.

His work has earned him respect across 
political and media landscapes for his clarity, 
composure, and insight.

From January 2023 to January 2025, he was 
the Communications Specialist to the National 
Democratic Congress (NDC) Minority Caucus 
in the Parliament of Ghana. He helped shape 
the Caucus’ communications both in and 
out of the parliamentary chamber and was 
also responsible for executing key strategic 
communications functions for the then NDC 
Minority Caucus in Parliament.

Chairman

Managing 
Director

HON. BERNARD 
AHIAFOR, MP

MR. JAMES 
AGYENIM-BOATENG 
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Dr. Abena Nyarkoa Asomaning is an 
accomplished Development Economist 
and Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) expert currently serving at a prominent 
development bank where she leads ESG, 
Monitoring & Evaluation, and Corporate Social 
Responsibility initiatives. As a lecturer at the 
University of Professional Studies, Accra, she 
taught leadership, corporate governance, 
international business, and entrepreneurship.

Her extensive career spans key roles in both the 
public and private sectors, including positions at 
the Ministry of Health, Ministry of Fisheries and 
Aquaculture, and the Ministry of Environment, 
Science, and Technology. In the private sector, 
she has worked with EY Ghana, Access Bank, 
and has led consulting projects for Vodafone 
Foundation, NHIA, Quality Insurance Company 
Ltd., among others.

For over fourteen years, Dr. Asomaning 
has been a staunch advocate for women’s 
economic empowerment and a prolific writer 
with international publications. She has served 

on numerous boards including the Institute 
of Occupational Safety and Health (UK), Blue 
Skies Foundation, KNUST, and the Head of State 
Award Scheme.

Her contributions have earned her prestigious 
recognitions including the Points of Light 
Award from the late Queen of England, 
acknowledgment by the President of France, 
and the MTN Heroes of Change award. She 
is a passionate speaker on topics relating to 
leadership, economics, healthcare, and gender 
development in Africa.

She holds a PhD in Science Economics from 
the University of Lille (France), an MBA from 
the University of Lincolnshire (UK), and a BSc in 
Development Planning from KNUST.

Honourable David T. D. Vondee is a two-
term Member of Parliament representing the 
Twifo-Atii Morkwaa Constituency in Ghana’s 
Central Region. Alongside his parliamentary 
duties, he is a seasoned entrepreneur and the 
CEO of Klenam Constructions Ltd, Corporate 
Constructions Ltd, and Corporate Supplies Ltd. 
He is also a Governance Advocate.

Hon. Vondee is known for his visionary mindset 
and commitment to public service. Guided 
by the philosophy "never take a low road to 
a High Office," he brings a blend of spiritual, 
intellectual, and entrepreneurial insight to 
national development. He is married with four 

children and enjoys reading, watching football, 
and engaging with people from all walks of life.

He holds an Honorary Doctorate in Theology 
from the Bible Institute of America (Theological 
Seminary) and an MBA in Marketing from the 
Ghana Institute of Management and Public 
Administration (GIMPA). He has furthered his 
education with a suite of programs from the 
Institute of Commercial Management (UK) 
including diplomas in management, marketing, 
and communication studies.

Directors’ 
Profile

Non Executive 
Director

DR. ABENA NYARKOA 
ASOMANING

HON. DAVID 
THEOPHILUS 
DOMINIC 
VONDEE,MP  

Non Executive 
Director
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Mr. Daniel Amasah Kotey is a distinguished 
managerial and administrative professional 
with over 12 years of expertise in the insurance 
and financial services industry. His career 
is defined by progressive leadership roles in 
insurance operations, business development, 
risk management, and finance.

He began as Branch Manager at Wapic 
Insurance (now Coronation Insurance) in Tema, 
later expanding his scope as Regional Manager 
at NSIA Insurance Ghana Limited. There, he 
successfully managed operations across Tema, 
Volta, and Eastern Regions, achieving notable 
profitability and growth.

Daniel later became Head of Business 
Development at Ideal Insurance Brokers, where 
he orchestrated a successful turnaround 
strategy within six months, significantly 

improving the company’s performance and 
market visibility.

Known for his strategic insight and passion 
for excellence, Daniel is poised to drive 
innovation and growth at SIC Insurance PLC by 
enhancing market share, stakeholder value, and 
operational efficiency.

He holds a Master of Commerce in Taxation, 
a Postgraduate Diploma in Business 
Management, and is a certified member of the 
Association of Business Executives (UK). He 
also holds certification in Risk Management 
Principles and Practices from the American 
Institute for Chartered Property Casualty 
Underwriters in partnership with the Ghana 
Insurance College.

Major Benjamin  Donkor (Rtd.) is a distinguished 
retired military officer, industrialist, and 
business executive with over four decades of 
leadership experience spanning the public and 
private sectors. 

Following his service with the Armed Forces 
Education Service, he transitioned into 
industrial management within the GIHOC Group 
of Companies, where he served as General 
Manager and CEO of several key industrial 
entities. His leadership extended to the GIHOC 
Vegetable Oil Mills (Esiama), Kumasi Jute 
Factory, GIHOC Canary (Nsawam, Wenchi, and 
Pawlugu), GIHOC Meat Processing Factories 
(Tema and Bolgatanga), and the GIHOC 
Boatyards (Tema and Takoradi).

In 1986, Major Donkor (Rtd) entered the 
private sector, becoming a representative for a 
European supplier of industrial machinery and 
raw materials. His entrepreneurial acumen led to 
the co-founding of IVORY FINANCE COMPANY, 
a Bank of Ghana-licensed finance house, where 
he served as the founding Managing Director.

He has a rich portfolio of board services across 
multiple industries, including Mainstream 
Reinsurance Company, Global Assurance 
Company (Ghana), Agona Rural Bank, 
CEDECOM, Cape Coast, Swedru Secondary 
High School – Board Chairman and University 
of Cape Coast – Council Member and Non-
Executive Director 

Major Donkor (Rtd) is a passionate golfer 
and an active member of the Achimota Golf 
Club. With his broad experience in strategic 
planning, policy formulation, and institutional 
governance, he continues to offer invaluable 
leadership and direction in corporate and 
developmental arenas.

Educated at the University of Ghana, Legon and 
the Graduate School of the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture (USDA), Washington DC, he is 
highly regarded for his expertise in education, 
industrial management, banking, insurance, 
and corporate governance.

Non Executive 
Director

Non Executive 
Director

MR. DANIEL 
AMASAH KOTEY 

MAJOR BENJAMIN  
DONKOR (RTD.)
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Honourable Emmanuel Kofi Ntekuni, an 
accomplished healthcare administrator 
and seasoned clinician with over 17 years 
of progressive career trajectory, is the 
current Member of Parliament for Pru West 
Constituency. 

His experience spans cutting edge clinical 
practice, clinical leadership, healthcare 
governance and serve management in Ghana’s 
mining healthcare industry. He brings a unique 
blend of technical expertise and strategic 
oversight to his role on the Board, drawing 
from a diverse career that combines frontline 
medical services with executive responsibilities 
in some of Ghana’s leading corporate medical 
institutions.

Most recently, he served as Clinic Administrator 
at Asante Gold Chirano Limited, where he 
was instrumental in shaping health policy 
implementation, supervising clinical teams, 
leading quality assurance initiatives, and 
streamlining medical operations for both 
employees and contractors. 

Prior to this, he held various medical roles 
including Physician Assistant and Nursing 
Officer at Kinross Chirano Gold Mines, 
International SOS Ghana, and Ghana Bauxite 

Company Hospital. Across these roles, 
Honourable Ntekuni consistently demonstrated 
an exceptional commitment to excellence, 
safety, and innovation in patient care.

He holds an MBA in Hospital and Healthcare 
Management from Amity University, India, a 
Bachelor of Science in Physician Assistantship 
Studies from Garden City University College, and 
dual Diplomas in Nursing from the University of 
Ghana and Sekondi Nursing & Midwifery Training 
College. He is currently pursuing an MPhil in 
Human Physiology at the Kwame Nkrumah 
University of Science and Technology (KNUST), 
underscoring his dedication to lifelong learning 
and research-driven healthcare practice.

Honourable Ntekuni is also a published 
researcher and an advocate for youth 
development, youth empowerment, youth 
mainstreaming and responsible political 
leadership. His ethos is rooted in stewardship, 
continuous improvement, and community 
advancement. His appointment to the Board 
reflects a commitment to inclusive leadership 
and leveraging multidisciplinary insight to drive 
sustainable growth and impact

Directors’ 
Profile

Non Executive 
Director

HON. EMMANUEL 
KOFI NTEKUNI, MP

Daniel Ofori is a Ghanaian business magnate, 
investor and philanthropist. He is best known 
as the founder of White Chapel Limited, a 
pioneer apparel retail outlet revolution of the 
1980s and 1990s. Daniel’s passion led him to 
set up Advance Ventures Limited (a structural 
design and real estate development company) 
and Dano Engineering (whose products include 
Dano Air conditioners among others). 

Daniel has since nursed Advance Venture 
Limited into a household name in Ghana, with 
residential and commercial properties across 
prime areas, providing retail and industrial space 
for leading organizations across all sectors and 
market segments. Daniel led both companies 
as Chairman and CEO until transitioning into 
Money & Capital Markets. 

His over 20 years of experience on the Capital 
Markets has made Daniel the single largest 

shareholder on the Ghana Stock Exchange. 
His portfolio includes holdings in GCB Bank, 
Societe Generale Ghana, SIC Insurance PLC, 
Enterprise Group Limited, Standard Chartered 
Bank, Republic Bank, Camelot Ghana Limited, 
Fan Milk Limited and Guinness Ghana Limited 
among others. 

Daniel is noted for his adherence to value 
investing and for his personal frugality. Daniel 
is currently the Chairman and CEO of White 
Chapel Holdings. He is a fellow of the Ghana 
Chartered Institute of Administration and 
Management and a life patron of the body. 

He has extensive training from the Ghana 
institute of languages, the Ghana Stock 
Exchange, Ghana Export Marketing Council and 
the Association of Certified Entrepreneurs. He 
is an ordained Deacon and Elder of the Ghana 
Baptist Convention. Non Executive 

Director

MR. DANIEL  
OFORI 
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Mr. Nicholas Kwame Oteng is an Agricultural 
Economist and a retired seasoned Banker with 
over 35 years’ experience working in various 
capacities with the ADB Bank, rising from a 
Senior Project Officer to become the Ag. General 
Manager, Loans & Advances. 

He was appointed the Executive Secretary of the 
Poultry Development Board, established under 
the Ministry of Agriculture with a mandate to 
advise the Minister for Agriculture on pertinent 
issues affecting the Poultry Industry. 

Mr. Oteng is a former Board Chairman of Adon 
Energy Limited, a licensed independent power 
producer. He has certification in AgricBusiness 
Management from Brazil, Small Farmer Credit 
Assessment and Management from USAID in 
Washington DC, Agricultural and Industrial 
Credit programming from India and Credit 

Assessment and Project Management from the 
American University Washington, DC. 

He is a product of Opoku Ware Secondary 
School, Kwame Nkrumah University of Science 
and Technology with a B.Sc Honours in 
Agricultural Economics and the University of 
Ghana with a Masters in Agricultural Economics. 

Mr. Kwabena Gyima Osei-Bonsu is the CEO of 
Service Construct Ltd., a Construction, Real 
Estate and ATM maintenance service provider. 

He was the CEO of Switchgate International Ltd., 
an electronic funds transfer switching platform 
from 2005– 2010 and the General Manager, 
Elmina Beach Resort from 2004-2005. 

He also served as a Sales Manager of La Palm 
Royal Beach Hotel from 1999- 2004, all under 
the Golden Beach Hotels umbrella.

 He is the CEO of MX Corp and also the CEO of 
MX AMBA. He is currently an Executive Director 
of Cypress Energy. 

He is a product of Achimota Secondary School, 
Presbyterian Boys Senior Secondary School, 
Legon, the Kwame Nkrumah University of 
Science and Technology, Ghana and Cornell 
University, Ithaca, New York, USA. 

Non Executive 
Director

MR. NICHOLAS 
KWAME OTENG

Non Executive 
Director

MR. KWABENA 
GYIMA OSEI-BONSU 
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Directors’ 
Profile

Mr. Saeed Obi Abdulae is a Chartered 
Accountant, finance and investment manager, 
entrepreneur, author   and an experienced 
consultant with over 14 years working 
experience in diverse roles in different sectors. 
He is the proprietor and Chief Executive of Team 
Saeed, a consulting firm in collaboration with 
Liberty Law Chambers since 2017. He oversees 
the management of the firm, preparation of 
business and development plans for clients, 
financial advisory and strategic analysis for 
clients in indifferent industries.

As a consultant, Mr. Saeed successful 
provided a consultancy services and corporate 
representation service to Burkina Faso-based 
multinational company, SOPAM Groupe 
in Equatorial Guinea for their proposed 
agribusiness investment partnership with the 
government of Equatorial Guinea. Prior to that, 
he prepared the development and business 
plans for a number of One-District One-Factory 
(1D1F) companies in Ghana including ADOA 
Rubber Estate Ltd. based in Assin Nsuta, 
Central Oil Mills Ltd. near Kakum, Wonderwood 
Farms Ltd. in Winneba, and other corporate 
institutions, including Imperial Holdings 
Company Ltd., Ambience Consulting Ghana 
Ltd., TCC Quarry Ltd., BOSSCHRIS Ghana Ltd, 
etc. 

Mr. Saeed also serves as the voluntary Finance 
Director/Secretary of Islamic Youth League of 
Ghana (IYLG), ensured the development and 
establishment of the financial framework and 

the internal control systems of the organization 
and its subsidiary educational institutions; 
Al-Khulafau Arashiduun Islamic Senior High 
School and Islamic Training Centre. In the same 
capacity, he prepares and reads the annual 
financial reports and budget statements of IYLG 
at all annual general meetings. 

Prior to formation of Team Saeed, Mr. Saeed also 
held a senior management role at Modernview 
Estate Company Ltd. as Managing Director from 
2014 to 2016, overseeing management of real 
estate investments with superior growth. And 
as Audit Senior and a Consultant at Edward 
Agyarko Amfo Consultancy Services, he led 
the auditing of and preparation of financial and 
operational manuals for many microfinance 
institutions in Ghana from 2011 to 2013.

Mr. Saeed is a product of Apam Senior High 
School and London School of Business 
and Finance, UK, became a member of the 
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
(ACCA) in 2017 and holds an MBA in Finance 
from University of Wales (2011), UK, a Bachelor 
of Science (Hons) in Applied Accounting from 
Oxford Brookes University (2010), UK, and a 
Diploma in Computer Software from Wintech 
Professional Studies (2006), Accra, Ghana. Mr. 
Saeed has also contributed significantly in the 
field of studies and practice of microfinance 
by authoring and publishing a book titled 
“Understanding Microfinance: A Practical Guide 
for Investors and Institutions.” in 2015 at British 
Council in Ghana.

Proposed Independent Non Executive Directors’

MR. SAEED OBI 
ABDULAE 
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DR. AARON ISSA 
ANAFURE  

Dr. Aaron Issa Anafure is an accomplished 
insurance executive and corporate leader with 
over four decades of experience in insurance 
management, financial services, and corporate 
governance. A Chartered Insurer and Fellow 
of both the Insurance Institute of Ghana and 
the West African Insurance Institute, he is 
widely recognized for his strategic acumen and 
transformative leadership in Ghana’s insurance 
industry.

He is currently the Chief Executive Officer of 
Quality Life Assurance Company (QLAC), where 
he has led the firm’s recapitalization drive and 
nationwide expansion through the introduction 
of innovative microinsurance products and the 
opening of regional branches in Dambai and 
Techiman. Under his leadership, the company 
has recorded consistent premium growth and 
strengthened its market presence.

Dr. Anafure previously served as the Chief 
Executive Officer of SIC Life Company Limited 
from 2009 to 2017, where he spearheaded the 
company’s turnaround from a loss-making 
position to sustained profitability. During his 
tenure, premium income rose from GH¢33.8 
million in 2009 to GH¢212.9 million in 2016, 
representing a remarkable 529% growth. He 
successfully established key subsidiaries 
including SIC Life Savings & Loans Ltd and the 
SIC Life Shopping Mall, the first of its kind in 
Ghana’s insurance sector.

Before that, he served as Managing Director 
of CDH Life Insurance Company Ltd and held 
several leadership roles at SIC Insurance 
Company Ltd, including Branch Manager, Area 
Marketing Manager, and Senior Insurance 
Officer. His tenure at SIC saw him pioneer 
market development in the Northern, Upper 
East, and Upper West Regions, leading to 
significant growth and operational efficiency.

Dr. Anafure’s professional journey is marked 
by excellence, innovation, and a commitment 
to people-centered leadership. His strategic 
initiatives have earned him and the institutions 
he has led numerous awards, including 
multiple CIMG Insurance Company of the Year 
accolades, Business Executive Excellence 
Awards, and Humanity Magazine International 
Certificates of Honour. Personally, he has been 
named among the Top Eight Icons of Corporate 
Ghana (2017) and Best CEO of the Year (2015 & 
2016).

He holds a Doctor of Business Administration 
(DBA) in Management (Corporate Governance 
specialization) from the Swiss Management 
Centre, Switzerland, an Executive MBA in 
Finance, and a BSc in Business Administration 
(Marketing) from the University of Ghana 
Business School. His professional qualifications 
include Associate of the Chartered Insurance 
Institute (UK), Fellow of the Chartered Insurance 
Institute of Ghana, and Fellow of the West 
African Insurance Institute (The Gambia).

Dr. Anafure has served on several boards, 
including Merchant Bank (now Universal 
Merchant Bank), Ghana Insurers Association, 
SIC Life Savings & Loans Ltd, WAICA Governing 
Council, and the West African Insurance Institute 
(WAII), where he was Chairman of the Governing 
Council from 2013 to 2017. He currently serves 
as the President of the Association of Insurance 
and Reinsurance Companies of Developing 
Countries (AIRDEC).

A passionate advocate for insurance 
development in Africa, Dr. Anafure has 
represented Ghana at numerous international 
insurance forums and conferences organized by 
AIO, WAICA, FAIR, and AIRDEC. His leadership 
philosophy is anchored on integrity, innovation, 
and service to humanity.
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Directors’ 
Profile

Mr. Ernest Tawiah Nunoo is a seasoned banker, 
business executive, and corporate leader with 
over three decades of experience in banking, 
finance, and enterprise development. He brings 
to the Board a wealth of expertise in financial 
governance, risk management, and strategic 
leadership across multiple sectors.

He is currently the Group Chief Executive 
Officer of the Royal Derby Group of Companies, 
a diversified business conglomerate with 
interests spanning automobile engineering and 
safety services, road and general construction, 
micro-financing, travel and tours, hospitality, 
and commercial farming. Under his leadership, 
the Group has achieved steady growth and 
operational diversification across Ghana.

Mr. Nunoo also serves as the Country Director 
of Michael Stevens Consulting International 
(Ghana Office), a management and financial 
consulting firm. In this role, he leads the 
formulation and implementation of business 
strategies, corporate governance frameworks, 
and capacity-building programs. As Country 
Manager, he managed several multinational-
sponsored and donor-funded programmes 
under the auspices of BUSAC, GTZ, and other 
development partners, strengthening the firm’s 
presence in Ghana’s consulting space.

Prior to his current roles, Mr. Nunoo had a 
distinguished banking career spanning over 30 
years. He served as Head of Retail Banking at 
Merchant Bank Ghana Limited (now Universal 
Merchant Bank), where he spearheaded the 
partnership and onboarding of MoneyGram and 
RIA Money Services, two of the world’s leading 
remittance brands. Under his leadership, 

the Bank was adjudged Best Bank in Retail 
Banking and Third Best in Customer Care by the 
Chartered Institute of Marketing, Ghana (CIMG).

Earlier in his banking career, he served as 
Head of Management Information Systems 
and later Head of Branch and Credit Control 
at Metropolitan and Allied Bank, as well as 
Organisation and Methods Officer at Ghana 
Commercial Bank. His early professional 
experience also includes working as Accountant 
and Audit Trainee at Peat Marwick Okoh & Co. 
(now KPMG), where he built a solid foundation in 
auditing and financial reporting.

Mr. Nunoo’s commitment to good governance 
is reflected in his active participation on various 
corporate boards. He currently serves on the 
boards of Suhum Rural Bank Limited, Auto 
Checks Limited, and the Royal Derby Group of 
Companies, and has previously served on the 
boards of National Investment Bank Limited and 
Assurance Savings and Loans Limited.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Mathematics from the Kwame Nkrumah 
University of Science and Technology 
(KNUST), and Post-Graduate Certifications in 
Business Operations from Cranfield School 
of Management, UK, and in Retail Banking 
from the BAI Graduate School of Retail 
Banking, University of Wisconsin, USA. He has 
also completed the Corporate Governance 
Certification Programme (Modules I–III) and 
several capacity-building and professional 
development courses in finance and 
management.

MR. ERNEST  
TAWIAH NUNOO 
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WORKMEN’S
COMPENSATION

When you give it your
All working to take care of 
your family and things go 
wrong, we step in to take 
care of you like family. 

CALL TO FIND OUT MORE VISIT OUR WEBSITE FOR MORE INFO
055-544-14850800-100-055 www.sic-gh.com SIC INSURANCE PLC

SICINSURANCEPLC



2024 ANNUAL REPORT
SIC INSURANCE (PLC)

22

B
oa

rd
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t M

em
be

rs

Dr. Kwabena Hemeng-Ntiamoah is a Chartered Accountant and a Doctoral 
Student currently at NIBS Cohort 7, an MBA in Finance holder from University of 
Ghana Business School, and Public Financial Management Expert. 

He is also a Project Management Professional (PMP). Kwabena is a Corporate 
Governance and Risk Management Expert. Ntiamoah is currently an Independent 
Public Financial Management Consultant, Accounting and Auditing Practitioner. 

Kwabena has Lectured in both Graduate and Undergraduate programs of many 
Universities in Ghana. Ntiamoah was formerly, the Director of Internal Audit 
Division of the Ghana Health Service and has worked in Export Development and 
Agricultural Investment Fund (EDAIF) as a Director, Ghana Airways, MGI- Oduro, 
Adiyiah, Osei & Co (A firm of Chartered Accountants) and the Centre for Policy 
Analysis (CEPA World Bank/ACBF Funded project) all in managerial capacity. 

Dr. Ntiamoah has served as a consultant and Resource Person for many Companies 
and workshops both locally and international. Kwabena is 
currently the Chairman of Audit Committees of NIA, 
DVLA, MoCD, MINCOM and a Member of Audit 
Committees of PURC, QCC of COCOBOD and SIC 
PLC. 

His areas of specialization and teaching interest 
include Advance Financial Accounting, Financial 
Management, Cost and Management Accounting, 
Public Sector Accounting & Finance, Auditing and 
Investigation, Banking & Finance, and Strategic 
Management.

Ms. Pamela Osei Agyekum holds an EMBA in Human Resources Management from 
the University of Ghana Business School and a Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and 
Linguistics from the University of Ghana. 

She has considerable industry experience with expertise in Retail Lending, 
Conduct and Compliance, Client Experience, Branch Operations, Business 
Development and Relationship Management. 

She has undertaken a number of CPD Programs and 
has served Banks in various capacities. She is 
currently the Board Secretary/ Legal Officer at the 
Internal Audit Agency.

Dr. KWABENA HEMENG-NTIAMOAH - CHAIRMAN

MS. PAMELA OSEI AGYEKUM - MEMBER
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Mr. Isaac Alex Darko is a Chartered Accountant and financial management professional with extensive experience in 
accounting, auditing, and corporate finance across both the public and private sectors. His career reflects a strong 
track record in financial oversight, internal controls, and strategic fiscal management.

He currently serves as the Financial Controller of the Synergy Alliance Group of Companies, where he provides 
strategic leadership in financial planning, reporting, and corporate governance. In addition to this role, he has been a 
Partner at SMA & Associates, an accounting and auditing firm, since 2016, contributing his expertise in audit practice, 
tax advisory, and financial consultancy.

Mr. Darko previously held several key management positions at the Ghana Cocoa Board (COCOBOD) between 
2010 and 2018, where he served in progressive roles including Deputy Accounts Manager, Accounts Manager, and 
Audit Manager. His tenure at COCOBOD was marked by efficiency improvements in financial reporting, compliance 
enhancement, and the strengthening of internal control systems.

From 2019 to 2023, he was the Finance Manager of Agricultural Manufacturing Group Limited, where he was 
instrumental in aligning financial operations with corporate growth strategies and ensuring regulatory compliance.

In addition to his corporate roles, Mr. Darko has made significant contributions to public sector 
governance. He served as a Member of the Audit Committee of the Ministry of Sanitation 
and Water Resources from 2019 to 2021 and as Chairman of the Committee from 2021 to 
2023. He also serves as a Member of the Entity Tender Committee of the Ghana Institute of 
Clinical Genetics – Korle Bu, a position he has held since 2019.

Mr. Darko is an alumnus of the University of Professional Studies, Accra (UPSA) and the 
University of Ghana Business School (UGBS), where he obtained an Executive Master’s 
in Business Administration (Finance). Professionally, he is a Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants, Ghana (ICAG) and a Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors, 
Ghana.

MR. ISAAC ALEX DARKO- MEMBER

CYNTHIA ROCKSON - COMPANY SECRETARY 

Cynthia has accumulated over two decades of extensive combined experience in corporate law and practice, 
governance, compliance and human resource management. She is a Barrister and Solicitor of the Superior Court of 
Ghana and a member of the Ghana Bar Association, with thirteen years of legal practice and comprehensive business 
insights. 

She is currently the Company Secretary of SIC Insurance PLC. Her journey in SIC began in year 2002 when she joined 
the then State Insurance Company Ltd as the Secretary to the Managing Director after a short stint with the Ghana 
Aids Commission(GAC). She was later transferred to the Human Resource Department and subsequently to the Legal 
Affairs Department in April 2013. Cynthia is a highly versatile and focused person with strong leadership skills.

Cynthia is an alumnus of the University of Cape Coast where she obtained a Bachelors in 
Secretaryship and a Master’s degree in Human Resource Management. She obtained a post 
graduate degree in Law from the University of Ghana, a Qualifying Certificate in Law from the 
Ghana School of Law and was called to the Ghana Bar in October 2012. She is a Member 
of the Chartered Institute of Human Resource Management Practitioners (CIHRM) and the 
Institute of Directors, Ghana.
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Distinguished Shareholders,

I have the pleasure of welcoming you to the 2024 Annual 
General Meeting and presenting to you, the Annual Report 
and Accounts for the Financial year ended 31st December 
2024 - a year that tested global and domestic markets 
yet reaffirmed the strength of the company’s resilience, 
strategy, and disciplined execution.

Global Economy

The global economy in 2024 continued to navigate the 
lingering aftershocks of earlier disruptions — the COVID-19 
pandemic, geopolitical tensions, and persistent monetary 
policy tightening. While inflation moderated slightly across 
advanced economies, many developing nations, including 
those in Africa, contended with currency volatility, mounting 
debt levels, and subdued capital inflows. These dynamics 
created a complex operating environment for businesses 
worldwide.

Domestic Economy

Ghana was not spared the global headwinds. Elevated 
interest rates, sustained inflation, and a 28% depreciation of 
the Ghana cedi against the US dollar (compared to 9.78% in 
2023) exerted pressure on consumer spending and business 

“Resilience, Growth, 
and Leadership”
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confidence. According to the Ghana Statistical 
Service (GSS), inflation rose to 23% in November 
2024, up from 22.1% in October. 

Although significantly below the 54.1% peak 
recorded in 2022, inflation remained volatile, and 
investor sentiment was cautious, largely due to the 
implementation of the Domestic Debt Exchange 
Programme (DDEP), which impacted disposable 
incomes and liquidity within the economy.

The Ghanaian insurance industry demonstrated 
remarkable resilience and adaptability in 
2024 despite a challenging macroeconomic 
environment marked by cedi depreciation, 
inflationary pressures, and the lingering impact of 
the Domestic Debt Exchange Programme (DDEP).

The general insurance sector recorded strong 
growth in gross written premiums, driven by motor, 
fire, and engineering classes. Total claims paid 
by the industry reached approximately GH¢1.8 
billion, reflecting a continued commitment to 
policyholder protection and confidence in the 
market.

Financial Performance

Amid these challenges, SIC Insurance PLC 
delivered a remarkable financial performance that 
underscores the resilience of our business model 
and the effectiveness of our strategy.

·	 Insurance revenue: GHS 559.5 million, up 
49.9% (2023: GHS 373 million)

·	 Profit before tax: GHS 83.2 million (2023: 
GHS 22.8 million)

·	 Profit after tax: GHS 53.4 million, 
representing a 316.9% year-on-year 
increase

·	 Shareholders’ funds: GHS 670.4 million, up 
40.1% (2023: GHS 478.5 million)

·	 Earnings per share: GHS 0.2730 (2023: 
GHS 0.0655)

·	 Return on shareholders’ funds: 7.9% (2023: 
2.76%)

These achievements are a direct reflection of 
prudent underwriting, robust risk management, 
cost discipline, and the dedication of our 
management and staff to sustainable value 
creation.

Shareholder Value & Dividend

In recognition of this exceptional performance, 
the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend 
a dividend of GHS 0.0511 per share, subject to 
shareholder approval. This proposal reflects 
our commitment to delivering consistent and 
competitive returns to our esteemed shareholders.

A significant milestone in 2024 was the full 
implementation of IFRS 17, the global accounting 
standard for insurance contract reporting. This 
development enhances transparency, strengthens 
comparability with international peers, and 

+49.9% +316.9% +40.1%
GHS 559.5m GHS 53.4m GHS 670.4m

Insurance revenue: Profit after tax: Shareholders’ Funds:

HIGHLIGHTS:
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provides deeper insights into our performance 
and risk profile. SIC Insurance PLC is proud to be 
among the few industry leaders fully aligned with 
this global benchmark.

Risk Management

Effective risk management remains central to our 
corporate strategy. During the year, we reinforced 
our Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework 
to better address emerging threats, including 
cyber risks, credit exposures, and macroeconomic 
volatility. Our proactive approach ensures that we 
remain agile, resilient, and capable of sustaining 
performance under varying economic conditions.

Outlook

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic. 
With Ghana’s insurance penetration still hovering 
around 1%, significant growth opportunities 
remain untapped. Ongoing government reforms, 
digital transformation initiatives, and increased 
public interest in inclusive insurance solutions 

offer a strong foundation for future expansion.

Supported by a robust capital base, disciplined 
strategy, and a high-performing workforce, SIC 
Insurance PLC is well positioned to build on its 
momentum and continue delivering sustainable 
value to shareholders, customers, and the wider 
Ghanaian community.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to 
express our sincere appreciation to our cherished 
clients, shareholders, partners, regulators, 
management, and dedicated staff. Your continued 
trust and support have been the cornerstone of our 
success. Together, we are building a stronger, more 
innovative, and future-ready SIC Insurance to drive 
the needed resilience, growth and leadership in 
the insurance industry.

Thank you.

Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP
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OUR WIDE COVERAGE 
MEANS CONVENIENCE
With over 30 networked offices nationwide, we offer optimal
 access to insurance services across the country.

Volta

Greater
Accra

Central
Western

Western
North

Ahafo

Bono

Upper West

Upper East

North East

Northern

Savannah

Bono East

Ashanti

Oti

Eastern

SIC INSURANCE PLC

@ PlcSic055-544-1485

HEAD OFFICE
Nyemitei House, No. 15 Ring Road East
P. O. Box 2363, Accra  Tel: + 233-302-780600-9
E-mail: sicinfo@sic-gh.com

Ring Road West OOice  :  +233-302-244078/224665/248026
Kumasi Area OOice       :  +233-3220-23341-2/25610
Tema Area OOice          :  +233-3033-202263/206535
Takoradi Area OOice     :  +233-3120-22315/22048
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Our Responsibility
SIC is committed to upholding good cor-

porate governance standards, emphasis-
ing transparency, accountability and the 

protection of stakeholders’ rights

”
At SIC Insurance PLC, we recognise that 
effective corporate governance is crucial 
to achieving our strategic objectives and 
maintaining the trust of our stakeholders. Our 
robust governance framework is therefore 
designed to promote accountability, uphold 
ethical conduct throughout our organisation 
and foster an environment where the interests 
of policyholders, shareholders, employees 
and the wider community are prioritised.

Governance 
Statement
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This statement provides an account of SIC’s corporate governance framework, setting out the policies 
and procedures that guide its operations and demonstrating their effective implementation over the 
years. Through this, the company reaffirms its unwavering commitment to transparency, accountability 
and the protection of stakeholder interests.

Board Structure and Responsibilities

The Board of Directors comprises eleven (11) members with the majority being Non-Executive Directors 
(NEDs). This includes three (3) Independent Directors as well as three (3) female Directors drawn from 
diverse disciplines and expertise. This diversity enhances our decision-making processes and ensures 
that we approach challenges with a comprehensive understanding of the factors at play.

The Board has the responsibility of ensuring that it establishes and maintains a governance framework 
which responsibilities include the establishment of long-term strategies, the review and approval of 
significant financial decisions and the assessment of the company’s performance against its goals. Each 
Director is committed to acting in the best interest of the company and its stakeholders, guided by a 
fiduciary duty that underscores commitment to integrity and ethical governance.

All the Directors are Ghanaians, and the Board is composed as follows: 

NAME POSITION APPOINTMENT DATE REPRESENTATION

1. Dr. Rauf Audu Board Chairman* 3rd May, 2024 Gov’t Representative

2. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi Ag. Managing 
Director

1st January, 2024 Gov’t Representative

3. Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey Non-Executive 
Director

11th September, 2017 Gov’t Representative

4. Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie Non-Executive 
Director

19th October, 2017 Independent 
Representative

5. Nana Kwabena Osei-Bonsu Non-Executive 
Director

19th October, 2017 Independent 
Representative

6. Mr. Nicholas Oteng Non-Executive 
Director

19th October, 2017 Independent 
Representative

7. Dr. Abugri Aguriba Non-Executive 
Director

8th October, 2020 SSNIT Representative

8. Hon. John Frimpong Osei Non-Executive 
Director

14th December, 2021 Gov’t Representative

9. Dr. Kingsley Agyemang Non-Executive 
Director

14th December, 2021 Gov’t Representative

10. Mrs. Christina Sutherland Non-Executive 
Director

14th December, 2021 Gov’t Representative

11. Mr. Daniel Ofori Non-Executive 
Director

31st July, 2014 Minority Shareholders 
Representative

* Until the appointment of the substantive Chairman, Dr. Kingsley Agyemang was nominated by his peers 
and served as Acting Chairman from October 2023 to May 2024.
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 Changes in Directors and Senior Management

In addition to the appointment of Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi and Dr. Audu Rauf as Ag. Managing Director 
and Board Chairman respectively, the following key appointments in Senior Management were made:

Mrs. Cynthia Kwarteng Tufuor, the immediate past Head of Technical Operations was appointed as the 
General Manager (Technical Operations) with effect from 1st March 2024

Mrs. Adwoa Konadu Asenso-Gyambibi, the Tema Area Manager was appointed to fill the vacant position 
of Head of Technical Operations on 24th November 2024 and

Mr. Ishaque Kojo Essel Jnr. was appointed the Head of Human Resources in December 2024.

Board Committees

To facilitate effective governance, the Board has five (5) standing Committees with each tasked 
with specific oversight functions. Ad Hoc Committees are formed occasionally to perform specific 
assignments. All Committee decisions require Board approval and/or ratification. The five principal 
Committees are:

Audit Committee (AC)

This Committee plays a critical role in overseeing the integrity of our financial reporting, ensuring that our 
financial statements accurately reflect the company’s position. Together with the Finance & Investment 
Committee, it monitors the effectiveness of our internal controls and risk management systems, 
providing an additional layer of oversight to provide comfort for the company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee is a five-member Committee which operates under the Public Financial 
Management Act, 2021 comprised of two (2) nominees from the Internal Audit Agency (IAA), one (1) 
nominee from the Institute of Chartered Accountant, Ghana (ICAG) and two (2) Non-Executive Directors 
from SIC as follows: 

Name Status

1. Dr. Kwabena Hemeng-Ntiamoah Chairperson (IAA)

2. Ms. Pamela Osei Agyekum Member (IAA)

3. Mr. Isaac Alex Darko Member (ICAG)

4. Dr. Kingsley Agyemang Member (NED)

5. Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie Member (NED)

 Technical Operations Committee

The Technical Operations Committee plays a vital role in ensuring the integrity, accuracy, and effectiveness 
of our underwriting and claims processes. Led by an experienced professional within the insurance 
industry, the Committee is tasked with overseeing the technical aspects of our operations, which are 
crucial to maintaining our competitive edge and delivering exceptional value to our policyholders.

The Committee ensures that our technical operations comply with all applicable regulatory requirements 
and industry standards. This involves staying abreast of changes in legislation and ensuring that our 
practices align with regulatory expectations.

The five-member Committee is composed of four (4) Non-Executive Directors and the Managing Director 
with the General Manager, Operations in attendance. The membership of the Technical Committee is: 
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Name Status

1.  Dr. Kingsley Agyemang Chairperson (NED)

2.  Dr. Aguriba Abugri NED

3.  Mrs. Christina Sutherland NED

4.  Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey NED

5.  Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi Ag. Managing Director

Risk & Compliance Committee

This Committee oversees the identification, assessment and management of risks that could affect our 
operations and strategic objectives. Recognising the complexity of our business, it ensures that effective 
risk management is not only a regulatory requirement but also essential to safeguarding our assets and 
the interests of our policyholders. The Committee regularly reviews our risk profile and ensures that 
appropriate mitigation strategies are in place. This Committee is composed of the following members: 

Name Status

1.  Mr. Nicholas Kwame Oteng NED (Chairperson)

2.  Dr. Aguriba Abugri NED (member)

3.  Mrs. Christina Sutherland NED (member)

4.  Hon. John Frimpong Osei NED (member)

5.  Mr. Kwabena Osei - Bonsu NED (member)

Executive, Human Resource & Legal Committee (EHLC)

The Executive, Human Resource and Legal Committee (EHLC) is responsible for overseeing key 
functions that ensure effective governance and operational excellence within the company. This includes 
evaluating the performance of the executive team, managing succession planning and overseeing 
compensation packages to align with the company’s strategic objectives. Additionally, the Committee 
ensures compliance with relevant laws and regulations, reviews and assesses legal risks to protect the 
company’s interest.

In the realm of human resources, the Committee establishes and reviews policies to foster a positive 
workplace culture, addresses talent management strategies for recruitment and retention and handles 
employee relations matters. By aligning executive actions, legal considerations and HR strategies with 
the company’s goals, the Committee promotes accountability and continuous improvement, ultimately 
enhancing SIC’s resilience and positioning for long-term success.

During the last quarter of the year the EHLC was assigned the additional responsibility of ESG and tasked 
to develop and oversee the institution of an ESG framework for the company.   The members of the 
Committee are as follows, with the Ag. MD, Head HR and Head of Legal in attendance: 

Name Status

1.  Mrs. Pamela Djamson - Tettey NED (Chairperson)

2.  Mr. Kwabena Osei - Bonsu NED (member)

3.  Hon. John Osei Frimpong NED (member)

4.  Mr. Nicholas Oteng NED (member)

5.  Mr. Daniel Ofori NED (member)
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Finance and Investment Committee

The Finance and Investment Committee is a strong pillar supporting the Audit Committee Directors to 
oversee the financial management, investment activities, and risk management of the Company.

The primary objectives of the Committee are to provide oversight and guidance on the Company’s 
financial affairs, ensuring alignment with strategic objectives and risk tolerance. Key responsibilities 
include reviewing and recommending financial strategies, policies and plans; overseeing investments; 
monitoring financial performance; evaluating dividend payments and share repurchases; reviewing 
significant transactions; and ensuring regulatory compliance.

The Membership of the Committee consists of five (5) Non-Executive Directors with diverse expertise in 
Finance and Investment as well as the Executive Director (Ag. Managing Director).  The General Manager, 
Finance & Administration attends meetings. 

Name Status

1. Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie Chairperson

2. Mrs. Christina Sutherland Non - Executive

3. Mr. Daniel Ofori Non - Executive

4. Mr. Kwabena Osei-Bonsu Non - Executive

5. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi Ag. Managing Director

Each Committee is empowered to investigate relevant activities and seek external advice when 
necessary, ensuring comprehensive oversight and accountability. A summary of the number of meetings 
held by the Board and its Committees is as follows: 

Type Of Meeting Regular Other Total

1. Board 6 7 13

2. Audit Committee 2 2 4

3. Technical Operations Committee 2 1 3

4. Risk & Compliance 1 1 2

5. Finance & Investment Committee 3 3 6

6. Executive, Human Resource & Legal (EHL) 4 4 8

Other Operational Committees

To strengthen corporate governance, the Ag. Managing Director leads daily operations through the 
Executive Committee (ExCo) and the Management Committee (MC). For the year under review, the 
ExCo saw an additional member following the appointment of a Deputy Managing Director in April 
2024.  ExCo comprises the Ag. MD, the DMD and the two General Managers for Operations and Admin & 
Finance respectively. The Committee serves as a critical link between the Board and management and 
is responsible for overseeing the execution of the organisation’s overarching strategy and operational 
activities.

The Management Committee (MC) also supports the ExCo in operational responsibilities, meeting 
monthly to align management with Board-approved policies and directives. It is the senior leadership 
team responsible for the day-to-day implementation of operational strategies. During the year the MC 
underwent expansion and restructuring to enhance its effectiveness.
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Additionally, sub-committees under the MC, including the Risk Advisory Committee, Security Committee, 
and others, have been instrumental in streamlining operational governance.

To enhance efficiency, drive innovation and align the workforce with the company’s long-term vision, 
a comprehensive restructuring was undertaken. This initiative resulted in the establishment of new 
Departments, merging and or consolidation of existing units and the revision of reporting lines, which 
culminated in an updated organisational structure. The restructuring necessitated staff transfers to 
facilitate a seamless transition, promote cross-functional knowledge sharing and address skills gaps to 
enhance overall performance.

Ethical Standards

At SIC, we are committed to maintaining ethical standards that emphasise the importance of integrity, 
transparency and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. We believe that ethical behaviour 
is fundamental to our long-term success and is essential in fostering a culture of trust and respect.

This is actively promoted through training programmes and resources that empower employees at all 
levels to make ethical decisions. Our commitment to ethical standards extends beyond our employees 
to our agents and business partners, ensuring that we collectively uphold a culture of responsibility and 
accountability.

Stakeholder Engagement

Understanding the perspectives and expectations of our stakeholders is a cornerstone of our operations. 
We actively engage with policyholders, shareholders, employees and community members to gather 
insights and feedback that inform our strategic decisions. We believe that open dialogue fosters trust 
and enables us to better align our strategies with the needs of those we serve.

To ensure better insight into emerging trends within the industry, a Research & Product Development 
Department has been established to spearhead data gathering in that regard.

Risk Management Framework

As an insurance provider, effective risk management is integral to our operations and sustainability. We 
have developed a robust risk management framework that adheres to industry standards and regulatory 
guidelines. This framework encompasses risk identification, assessment and mitigation strategies that 
are designed to proactively address potential threats to our business.

We conduct regular risk assessments to evaluate our exposure across various domains, including 
underwriting, operational and market risks.

By maintaining a proactive stance on risk management, we aim to protect our assets, ensure the financial 
stability of our organization and uphold the trust of our policyholders.

Capacity building for Directors

In 2024, capacity building for Directors were designed to bolster their skills and competencies essential 
for effective governance and strategic oversight. The training also included international conferences/
workshops to equip Directors with emerging trends in corporate governance, the evolution of ESG and AI 
and its impact on strategic planning.

As part of the quarterly meetings and the 2024 Strategy Session of the Board, the Directors received 
updates regarding key areas of the business, including marketing strategies and trends, advancements 
in technology and information systems, and were introduced to ESG and related developments.  
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Training Program Date Organizers Attendees

1. Training on Enterprise 
Risk Management Oversight 
Responsibilities for Board of 
Directors at Adukrom

3rd May 
2024

Keystone Solicitors All Directors except

1. Mrs. Djamson-Tettey and

2. Mr. Daniel Ofori

2. Directors’ College (workshop 
focused on key areas such as 
IFRS 17 for Directors, elevating 
corporate performance through 
ESG, presentation on Financial 
Condition Reports for non-life 
insurers and update on newly 
issued directives etc.)

26th – 28th 
June 2024

GIC/NIC 1. Mrs. Christina Sutherland

2. Mr. Daniel Ofori

3. Dr. Aguriba Abugri

4. Dr. Audu Rauf

5. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi*

3. 40th African Corporate 
Governance Conference for 
Directors on ESG and AI

30th July – 
2nd August 
2024

Advantage Training 1. Dr. Audu Rauf

2. Mr. Daniel Ofori

3. Mr. John Frimpong Osei

4. ESG Masterclass 7th August 
2024

Ghana Stock 
Exchange

1. Dr. Audu Rauf

2. Mr. Daniel Ofori

3. Mr. John Frimpong Osei

4. Mrs. Christina Sutherland

5. Manpower Planning and 
Human Capital Analytics

12th - 
16th August 
2024,

JP Cann 1. Dr. Audu Rauf

2. Mr. Kwabena Osei-Bonsu

3. Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey

6. Directors’ College (2nd 
Batch)

14th – 16th 
August 
2024

NIC/GIC 1. Mr. Nicholas Oteng

2. Mr. Christian Sottie

3. Mr. John Frimpong-Osei

7. Board oversight 
responsibilities on 
Environmental Social 
Governance

16th - 20th 
September 
2024.

JP Cann 1. Dr. Audu Rauf

2. Mr. Kwabena Osei-Bonsu

3. Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey

4. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi

Some of the Directors also had the opportunity to gain exposure on the London Road Show and 
reinsurance treaty negotiations in South Africa that were held in the fourth quarter of the year as follows:
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PROGRAM DATE /VENUE ORGANIZERS ATTENDEES

1. London Road Show 
(GACL/GCAA Airport 
Liability Insurance renewal 
for 2025.

29th -30th October 
2024

Marsh Ltd 1. Mr. Christian Sottie

2. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi

2. Reinsurance Treaty 
Renewals

5th – 8th 
November 2024

SWISS Re 1. Ms. Nicholas Oteng

2. Ms. Hollistar Duah-Yentumi
 

The Board also ensured a series of training sessions for staff. These sessions aimed to enhance 
professional development and equip employees with the latest skills and knowledge needed to meet the 
evolving demands of the workplace. In total, 60 training sessions (including 12 international sessions) 
were conducted. The offerings consisted of a mix of workshops, seminars, conferences and specialised 
courses, providing staff with both technical expertise and essential soft skills to excel in their respective 
roles.

 Evaluation of Directors

Our corporate governance practices are subject to ongoing review and enhancement to ensure alignment 
with the latest developments in governance.

The Board of SIC engaged Keystone Solicitors to evaluate the performance of the Board in the exercise 
of its responsibilities, to establish its effectiveness in fulfilling its obligations, to determine its current 
strengths and weaknesses, and to develop a roadmap for sustained improvement and enhancement of 
Board performance.

The Consultant noted the central role the Board plays in shaping the strategic direction, oversight and 
long-term success of the organisation. These factors are essential in maintaining a Board that is both 
dynamic and capable of responding to the complexities of the operating environment. The assessment 
considered the quality of strategic guidance provided by the Board, the clarity of its oversight functions 
and the level of collaboration among its members.

This review was conducted with respect to the years 2023 and 2024. The process involved gathering 
insights and opinions from Board members and key personnel within the organisation to pinpoint the 
governance elements that are functioning effectively, as well as those that are either lacking or in need 
of improvement.

The methodology adopted included:

i) Online surveys involving members of the Board and Audit Committee,

ii) Interviews with all Board members, Managing Director and other key personnel, and

iii) Review of existing governance documents, including the governance manual,

Board and Committee packs, terms of reference for Committees, risk management documents, policy 
documents and other relevant governance documents.

The evaluation categories covered were:

•	 Performance Management

•	 Information Management

•	 Strategy Development
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•	 Risk Management and Internal Control

•	 The Various Committees

•	 Board Activity

•	 Long-term Goals

•	 Relationship with Management

The final report outlined the findings of the evaluation, including a summary of findings, areas identified 
for improvement and recommended action points to address any gaps or areas for improvement.

Commitment to Continuous Improvement

SIC is committed to upholding good corporate governance standards, emphasising transparency, 
accountability and the protection of stakeholders’ rights. Our corporate governance practices are 
subject to ongoing review and enhancement to ensure alignment with the latest developments in 
governance, industry best practices and regulatory expectations. We provide training and development 
opportunities for our directors in Environmental, Social and Governance as part of capacity building for 
ESG reporting. EHLC has therefore been tasked with the development of ESG framework for the company.  
The recommendations from the external evaluation provided by Keystone Solicitors will be implemented 
to drive ongoing improvements in governance practices.

Conclusion

In its pursuit of growth and operational excellence, the Board remains dedicated to fostering 
sustainability, promoting operational prudence and adapting to a dynamic environment. These efforts 
are aimed at delivering long-term value creation for all stakeholders, while ensuring the company’s 
continued success.
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Dear Shareholders,

It is with great pride that I present the Annual Report of 
SIC Insurance PLC for the financial year ending December 
31, 2024. This report outlines our performance, strategic 
direction and the challenges we navigated as we continue to 
deliver value to our shareholders.

Operating Environment

The year 2024 unfolded against a 
backdrop of global and domestic 
economic uncertainty. Ghana’s 
business climate was shaped 
by persistent inflation, exchange 
rate volatility and elevated 
interest rates that constrained 
liquidity across sectors. 
Despite these headwinds, the 
insurance industry demonstrated 
remarkable resilience. 

The market saw some regulatory 
and industry collaboration to 
revise the minimum tariff for 
third-party motor insurance 
policies. The sector showed 
growth in asset, higher density, 
and more claims, but still faces 
serious structural constraints 
as insurance penetration stuck 
around 1 % of GDP.

There was also some government/
regulator focus on agriculture, 
and the push for awareness 
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and digitalisation. All of these shows that the 
industry is in a transition phase, gradually moving 
from basic growth to deeper development and 
sophistication.

At SIC Insurance PLC, we remained steadfast 
in our commitment to growth, innovation and 
customer-centricity.

Financial Performance Highlights

We achieved remarkable financial results in 2024:

·	 Gross Insurance Revenue rose by 49.9% 
to GHS 559.5 million, up from GHS 373.2 
million in 2023, driven by strong demand 
for fire and accident insurance, improved 
customer retention, and strategic 
partnerships.

·	 Insurance Service Result (before 
reinsurance) increased from GHS 256.7 
million to GHS 418.1 million.

·	 Net Insurance Result nearly doubled to 
GHS 277.0 million, compared to GHS 
147.1 million in the previous year.

·	 Profit Before Tax surged to GHS 84.1 
million, a 236% increase from GHS 25.0 
million.

·	 Profit After Tax reached GHS 54.5 million, 
up from GHS 15.1 million.

·	 Earnings Per Share rose to GHS 0.2786 
from GHS 0.0770.

·	 Net Assets Per Share grew from GHS 2.48 
to GHS 3.46.

·	 Total Assets expanded to GHS 1.08 
billion, reflecting our growing operational 
capacity.

Insurance Revenue Breakdown

Our insurance revenue grew by 49.92%, from GHS 
373.2 million to GHS 559.5 million, fueled by robust 
performance in our core offerings, particularly 
fire, motor and accident insurance. This growth 
was supported by technological innovation and 
enhanced digital access through our “Awura App.”

Claims Management

Total claims paid amounted to GHS 69 million. 
We remain unwavering in our commitment to our 
motto: “Our promises are sacred.” We continue 
to honour our obligations to all policyholders with 
integrity and diligence.

Investment Income

Despite a challenging macroeconomic 
environment, our investment income remained 
stable, underpinned by prudent allocations in 
fixed-income instruments. Our current ratio 
improved to 1.55 from 1.27, reinforcing our 
financial strength.

Performance by Business Line

Business Line 2024 Revenue (GHS) 2023 Revenue (GHS) Growth (%) Contribution to Total Revenue

Fire Insurance 226.80 million 128.41 million +76.5% 41%

Motor Insurance 144.58 million 127.38 million +13.5% 26%

Bonds 102.16 million 53.86 million +89.7% 18%

Accident Insurance 47.13 million 30.99 million +52.1% 8%

Marine & Aviation 29.93 million 23.44 million +27.7% 5%

Engineering 8.87 million 9.11 million -2.6% 2%

Human Capital Development

Our people remain our most valuable asset. 
In 2024, we invested significantly in staff 
development through local and international 
training programmes. Employees were equipped 

with global best practices in actuarial science, 
underwriting, claims management, customer 
service and digital transformation. We also 
welcomed national service personnel and 
interns across our branches, providing hands-on 
experience to the next generation of professionals.
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IFRS 17 Compliance

We made strategic investments in technology, 
training and automation to ensure a seamless 
transition to IFRS 17. This positioned SIC Insurance 
PLC for long-term credibility and transparency 
with both local and international stakeholders.

Corporate Social Investments

As a responsible corporate citizen, we continued 
to support key educational institutions including 
Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and 
Technology (KNUST), University of Cape Coast 
(UCC) and University of Energy and Natural 
Resources (UENR). 

We also contributed to health and cultural 
initiatives such as the Ghana Blind Union, Child 
Cancer Awareness Month, Eve’s Wellness & 
Mental Health Centre, and traditional festivals 
including Homowo, Fetu Afahye, and the Asogli 
Yam Festival. 

Our support extended to the Otumfuo Foundation, 
the Asogli Foundation and the 25th Anniversary 

celebrations of Otumfuo Osei Tutu II and Okyehene 
Osagyefo Amoatia Ofori Panin.

Looking Ahead

We remain focused on deepening market 
penetration, embracing innovation, enhancing 
customer experience and promoting financial 
inclusion. With a strong balance sheet, a capable 
team, and a clear strategic roadmap, SIC Insurance 
PLC is well-positioned for sustainable growth.

Conclusion

On behalf of management, I extend my heartfelt 
gratitude to our shareholders, Board, partners, 
and customers for their continued trust and 
support. Together, we are building a resilient and 
forward-looking insurance company that remains 
a pillar of Ghana’s financial landscape.

Sincerely, 

JAMES AGYENIM-BOATENG 
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Executive 
Management
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Cynthia Kwarteng Tufuor
General Manager, 
Operations

Maxwell Kofi Marfo
Deputy Managing Director 

Kenneth Acolatse
General Manager, 
Finance & Admin

James Agyenim-Boateng              
Managing Director                 
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Directors’ Report

Financial Highlights

Actuarial Opinion

Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholders of SIC Insurance 
PLC

Consolidated and Separate Statements of Financial Position 
as at 31 December 2023

Consolidated and Separate Statements of Profit or Loss and other 
Comprehensive Income for the year ending 31 December 2023

Consolidated and Separate Statements of 
Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Consolidated and Separate Statements of 
Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Proxy Form
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Report of the
Directors

1.	 Principal activities

The principal activities of the company and the subsidiary are:

SIC Insurance PLC

i.	 To undertake non-life insurance business.

SIC Financial Services Limited

ii.	 To undertake the provision of investment advisory, asset and fund management, financial consultancy, 
and brokerage services.

2.	 Results for the year

Group

2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

The balance brought forward on retained earnings

account at 1 January was 97,749,650 95,458,185

To which must be added:

Profit for the year after charging all expenses, depreciation, and taxation of 53,413,669 12,812,982

151,163,319 108,271,167

From which is made an appropriation to contingency reserve of (16,784,496) (11,195,725)

And an approved dividend of (9,997,460)                 -

124,381,363 97,075,442

Non-controlling interest 330,737  674,208

Leaving a balance to be carried forward on retained earnings account of 124,712,100 97,749,650

3.	 Nature of business

There was no change in the nature of the business of the group during the year.

4.	 Dividend

During the year, the Board declared dividend of GHS0.0511 per share, which was paid on 31st January 
2025. Based on the full year performance of the company, the Board is recommending the payment 
of dividend of GHS 0.0511 per share, bringing the total dividend for 2024 to GHS 10,000,000. This is 
subject to approval from the Regulator (National Insurance Commission).

5.	 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis with the group expected to 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize assets and discharge liabilities 
in the normal course of operations.
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6.	 Interest of directors

During the year under review, the Directors and Officers had no interest in any third party or entity 
responsible for managing any of the business activities of the Group.

Below are the interests of directors:

Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Hon. Bernard 
Ahiafor

·	 Barrister and Solicitor at 
Law, Ghana School of Law

·	 BA (Hons), Law and Political 
Science

·	 Diploma in Applied 
Insurance Studies, Malta 
International Training/Ghana 
Insurance College

·	 Professional Certificate in 
Legislative Drafting, UK, 
International Center of 
Parliamentary Studies

·	 Certificate in Good 
governance for effective 
delivery of public service and 
poverty alleviation,

CBN International, Dubai, UAE

·	 Parliamentarian for Akatsi 
South Constituency

·	 Parliament of Ghana

·	 Appointments Committee

·	 Privileges & Immunities 
Committee

·	 Private Members Bill and 
Private Motions Committee

·	 Independent Constitutional 
Bodies

·	 Member of 
Parliament

·	 1st Deputy 
Speaker

·	 Chairman

·	 Chairman

·	 Chairman

·	 Member

Mr. James 
Agyenim-
Boateng

·	 Qualifying Certificate in Law, 
Ghana Law School.

·	 Bachelor of Law (LLB), 
University of London.

·	 Diploma in Journalism, 
Ghana Institute of 
Journalism
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Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Hon. David 
Theophilus 
Dominic 
Vondee

·	 Honorary Doctorate in 
Theology, Bible Institute of 
America

·	 MBA (Marketing), GIMPA

·	 Post Graduate Diploma 
in Management Studies, 
Institute of Commercial 
Management, UK

·	 Advance Diploma in 
Marketing, Institute of 
Commercial Management, 
UK

·	 Diploma in Mktg, Mgt. & 
Communication Studies, 
Institute of Commercial Mgt. 
(UK)

·	 Parliamentarian for Twifo-Atii 
Morkwaa Constituency

·	 MP

Hon. 
Emmanuel 
Kofi Ntekuni

·	 M.Phil. Human Physiology, 
KNUST, Kumasi

·	 MBA, Hospital & Healthcare 
Management – Amity 
University, India

·	 B.Sc. Physician 
Assistantship Studies, 
Golden City University 
College

·	 Diploma in Nursing, 
University of Ghana

·	 Parliamentarian for Pru West 
Constituency

·	 MP

Major 
Benjamin 
Donkor (Rtd)

·	 Certificate in Agro-Industrial 
Management, Graduate 
School of US Department 
of Agriculture (USDA), 
Washington DC.

·	 BA (Hons), History Ghana 
Armed

·	 Mainstream Reinsurance 
Company

·	 Independent 
Non-
Executive 
Director
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Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Mr. Daniel 
Amasah 
Kotey

·	 Master of Commerce 
(Taxation), Pentecost 
University College, Accra

·	 Bachelor of 
Entrepreneurship, GIMPA

·	 Post Graduate Diploma 
(Level 7) in Mgt, ABE- UK

·	 Reputation Limited

·	 Symbiosis Prime Ltd

·	 Megdun Ltd

·	 AE Microcredit Enterprise

·	 Director

·	 Director

·	 Director

·	 Director

Dr. Abena 
Nyarkoa 
Asomaning

·	 PHD (Science Economics)

       University of Lille, France

·	 MBA (Management), 
University of Lincoln, UK

·	 B.Sc. Planning (Policy 
Analysis), KNUST

·	 Ghana Export Import Bank

·	 University of Professional 
Studies

·	 Blue Skies Foundation

·	 Switchback Development 
Limited

·	 Head, ESG, 
M&E

·	 Lecturer

·	 Director

·	 Director

Dr. Audu Rauf ·	 PhD (Clinical Pharmacy) 
KNUST

·	 M.Sc. (Clinical Pharmacy) 
KNUST

·	 MA (Health Law & Ethic) 
University of Ghana School 
of Law

·	 B.Pharm at Ahmadu Bello 
University, Zaria, Nigeria

i.	 Arapharm Ghana Ltd

ii.	 Al-Khari Farms Ltd

iii.	Green Crescent Ghana (NGO)

i.	 Executive 
Director

ii.	 Director

iii.	President

Ms. Hollistar 
Duah-
Yentumi

·	 BA (Political Science & Law) 
Univ. of Ghana, Legon

·	 Qualifying Certificate, 
Ghana School of Law

·	 Master of Laws (LLM) 
University of Maryland, USA.

i. DUYENT Global Inc

ii.  Royal Ashanti Holdings

iii. Accra City Hotel

i.Director

ii. Director

iii. Director
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Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Mr. Christian 
Tetteh Sottie

·	 Chartered Accountant – 
Ghana

Post Graduate Certificate in Tax 
– Ghana

i.  Letshego Savings and Loans 
Company

ii. Internal Audit Agency

i. Director

ii. Director

Mr. Kwabena 
Osei-Bonsu

·	 BA (Law & Sociology) KNUST

·	 Cert. of Marketing, Cornell 
University

i.Aker Deep Water Ghana

ii. Service Construct Ltd

i.	 Board 
Member

ii.	 CEO

Mr. Nicholas 
Oteng

·	 B.Sc. (Agricultural 
Economics) KNUST

·	 M.Sc. (Agricultural 
Economics), University of 
Ghana

·	 Certificate (Financing of 
Agric business) University of 
America, India & Brazil

 i. Prime Strategy Ltd. Ghana i.Director

Mrs. Pamela 
Djamson-
Tettey

·	 BA (International Relations) 
University of Herts, UK and 
San Diego California, USA

·	 Post Grad Dip. (Politics 
&Foreign Policy) University of 
Kent, Canterbury, UK

·	 MA (International relations) 
University of Kent, 
Canterbury, UK

·	 Investor Relations Cert. 
NYSE
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Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Mr. John 
Frimpong 
Osei

·	 M.Phil. (Geography & 
Resource Dev.) University of 
Ghana

·	 BA (Geography & Resource 
Dev’t with classical History 
& Civilization), University of 
Ghana

i.  Parliamentarian

ii. Parliamentary Select 
Committee on food, Agric. & 
Cocoa Affairs

iii. Privileges Committee 
of Parliament (Standing 
Committee)

iv. Local Organizing Committee 
for the13th African Games 
(Tech. C’ttee)

v. Africa Parliamentary Network 
on Illicit Financial Flow and Tax 
(APNIFFT)

 i.Member of 
Parliament

ii.Chairman

iii. Member

iv. Member

v. Chairman

Mrs. 
Christina 
Sutherland

·	 Project Leadership Cert. – 
Cornell

University

·	 B.Sc. (Design) & PG Diploma 
(Architecture) KNUST

 i.Sutherland & Sutherland – 
Architects, Accra.

 i.Principal 
Partner

Dr. Kingsley 
Agyemang

·	 PhD (Public Health & 
Promotion)

Brunel University – UK

·	 MBA (Finance) Central 
University, UG.

·	 ACII (Risk Management) UK.

·	 B.Sc. (Administration) UG.

·	 Certificates in Business 
Finance & Financial Market 
and Investment & Portfolio 
Mgt, Ghana Stock Exchange.

i.	  People Praxis

ii.	 Ghana Scholarship Secretariat

iii.	Green Co2 Ghana (Non-
Governmental Organization)

iv. Sunyani Technical University

i.	 Board 
Chairman

ii.	 Registrar

iii.	Co-
Founding 
Director

iv.	Adjunct 
Lecturer
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Name Qualification Other Engagements Position

Dr. Aguriba 
Abugri

·	 PharmD – KNUST

·	 Bachelor of Pharmacy - 
KNUST

·	 Certificate in Health Admin. 
& Management, GIMPA

i.	 ProCare Pharmacy, Tamale

ii.	 Tamale Technical University

i.	  Executive 
Director

ii. Lecturer

7.	 Capacity building for directors

In the year under review four (4) training programmes were organised towards the capacity building of the 
Directors. They were the following:

TRAINING PROGRAM DATE /VENUE FACILITATORS

1.	 Enterprise Risk Management Oversight 
Responsibilities for Board of Directors

3rd May 2024, Safari Valley 
Resort, Adukrom

JPCann Associates Ltd

2.	 Board Effectiveness and Corporate 
governance

4th May 2024, Safari Valley 
Resort, Adukrom

Keystone Solicitors

3.	 Directors College (Workshop focused on 
key areas such as IFRS 17 for Directors, 
elevating corporate performance 
through ESG, presentation on Financial 
Condition Reports for non-life insurers)

26th – 28th June and 14th – 
16th August 2024 at Aqua 
Safari Resort, Ada

Ghana Insurance College

4.	 ESG Masterclass 7th August 2024 Ghana Stock Exchange

8.	 Corporate social responsibility

An amount of GH¢1,005,005 was spent on fulfilling the corporate social responsibility of the company 
(2023: GH¢2,234,264)

Sponsorship activities for 2024 covered the following areas:

·	 Education
·	 Community development
·	 Health
·	 Environment
·	 Sport
·	 Festival
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9.	 Major transactions

During the year under review, no major transactions were entered into by SIC Insurance PLC.

10.	Auditors and audit fees

In accordance with section 139(5) of Act 992, the auditors, Messrs Baker Tilly Andah + Andah have 
expressed their willingness to continue to be in office.

The audit fee payable to the auditors is for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 was GHS 
443,863 (2023: GHS 350,760).

11.	Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 2nd September, 2025.

On behalf of the board of directors

Board Chairman Ag. Managing Director Director

(Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP) (Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng) (Mr. Nicholas Oteng)

Date: 2nd September, 2025 Date: 2nd September, 2025 Date: 2nd September, 2025
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Financial Highlights
Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Insurance revenue 559,483,192 373,190,838 559,483,192  373,190,838

Insurance service result before 
reinsurance contracts held 418,050,990 256,681,679 418,050,990  256,681,679

Net expense from reinsurance contracts 
held (137,716,272)  (105,725,161) (137,716,272)  (105,725,161)

Net insurance financial result (3,314,293)  (3,881,540) (3,314,293)  (3,881,540)

Net insurance result 277,020,425 147,074,978 277,020,425 147,074,978

Profit before tax 83,205,619 22,844,807 84,054,412  25,002,550

Profit after tax 53,413,669 12,812,982 54,516,129  15,060,342

Shareholders’ funds 670,378,999 478,483,007 677,256,723  484,259,761

Total Assets 1,115,730,704 899,830,632 1,079,699,250  865,932,149

Number of shares issued 
and fully paid for 195,645,000 195,645,000 195,645,000  195,645,000

Earnings per share (GH¢) 0.2730  0.0655 0.2786 0.0770

Net assets per share (GH¢) 3.4265  2.4457 3.4617 2.4752

Current ratio 1.4948  1.2622 1.5516 1.2748

Return on shareholders’ funds 7.97% 2.68% 8.05% 3.11%
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
For the year ended 31st December 2024
The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061) require the directors to prepare 
consolidated and separate financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the financial year and of the consolidated profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income for that year.

The Directors believe that in preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, they used 
appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied, and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements, estimates, and that all international accounting standards, which they consider to be 
appropriate, were followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the group keeps accounting records that disclose 
reasonable accuracy of the consolidated financial position of the group to enable the directors ensure 
that the consolidated and separate financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) 
and Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061) and the IFRS® Accounting Standards.

Actuarial Opinion 
We/I have valued the Insurance Contract Liabilities of SIC Insurance PLC for its consolidated financial 
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS 17) for the 
year ended 31 December 2024.

………………
Katlego Thaba

Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa

Fellow of the Actuarial Society of Ghana

Date of Signing: 5 May 2025
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of SIC Insurance PLC

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate 
financial statements of SIC Insurance PLC and 
its subsidiaries (the Group) which comprise 
the consolidated and separate statement of 
financial position as at 31 December, 2024, and 
the consolidated and separate statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated and separate statement of changes 
in equity and consolidated and separate statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, including a summary of material 
accounting policies as set out on pages 29 to 100.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of 
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying 
consolidated and separate financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Group and the Company 
as at 31 December, 2024, and  its consolidated 
and separate financial performance and its 
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting 
Standards, with IAS 29 directive  issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants Ghana(ICAG), 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 
992) and the Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Accounting for Associate

As explained in note 26 to the consolidated financial 
statements, SIC Insurance PLC owns 20% interest 
in SIC Life Insurance LTD (an associate). SIC Life 
Insurance LTD has 100% shareholding in SIC Life 
Savings and Loans Limited. SIC Insurance PLC 
accounts for its investment in SIC Life Insurance 
LTD, the associate, using the equity method.

SIC Insurance PLC in accounting for its share in 
SIC Life Insurance LTD, used the separate financial 
information of SIC Life Insurance LTD, excluding 
the financial information of its subsidiary, which 
is not in compliance with IAS 28 (Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures).

In accordance with IAS 28 (27) when an associate 
has a subsidiary the net income and net assets 
taken into account in applying the equity method 
are those recognized in the associate’s financial 
statements, including the associate’s share of the 
net income and net assets of its subsidiary.

Consequently, we were unable to determine 
whether any adjustments were necessary in the 
consolidated and separate financial statements.

The financial statements of the associate used in 
preparing in the consolidated financial statements 
of SIC Insurance PLC were unaudited.

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the ethical requirements 
of the   of the International Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants’ (IESBA) International Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) (IESBA 
code) and other independence requirements 
applicable to performing audits of financial 
statements in Ghana. We have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
IESBA Code and other ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of financial statements in 
Ghana.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters noted below relates to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements.

Impairment Assessment on Investments at 
Amortised Cost

As at 31st December 2024, the impairment 
provision for the group and the company amounted 
to GH¢ 45,670,296 (2023: GH¢ 49,224,412), GH¢ 
45,670,296 (2023 GH¢ 49,005,597) respectively.

The impairment testing of investments at 
amortised cost is considered a key audit matter 
due to the complexities involved in determining 
the estimated future cashflows arising from these 
instruments.

·	 Due to the significance of investments at 
amortised cost to the financial position of 
the Group and the Company and significant 
measurement uncertainty involved in the 
impairment of qualifying investment, this was 
considered a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Based on our risk assessment, we have examined 
the impairment of investment securities based on 
the description of the key audit matter.

Our procedures include:

•	 Obtained an understanding and tested 
the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key controls over the 
impairment of investment securities.

•	 Assessing the appropriateness of staging for 
eligible investments

•	 Obtained and challenged key management 
and Directors’ assumptions and inputs (i.e., 
cashflows, discount rates, and methodology) 
to assess accuracy and completeness as well 
as the reasonableness of the assumptions and 

inputs;

•	 Performed a detailed review and assessment 
of the expected credit loss calculations by the 
Group;

•	 Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness 
of disclosures for compliance with the 
accounting standards

Valuation of Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities for the group and 
company as at 31 December, 2024 amounted to 
GH¢ 156,176,043 (2023 GH¢ 161,333,656).

In measuring the Group’s insurance contract 
liabilities under IFRS 17 which consists of the 
liability for remaining coverage and liability 
for incurred claims, management applied the 
Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) measurement 
models which requires significant degree of 
estimation and judgements.

The Premium Allocation Approach is applied to 
contracts with a duration of one year or less, or where 
it is a reasonable approximation of the General 
Measurement Model. Management exercised 
significant judgement in the determination of the 
eligibility of the premium allocation approach. 
The most significant assumptions made in the 
valuation of the liability for incurred claims as it 
relates to insurance contracts are:

•	 future cash flow projections and

•	 risk adjustment for non-financial risk

Future cash flow projections

The best estimate provision for liability for incurred 
claims relates to claim events that have occurred 
before or at the reporting date, whether the claims 
arising from these events have been reported or 
incurred but not reported claims. The cash flow 
projections comprise estimates of all future claim 
payments, receivables from salvage as well as 
the directly attributable claims administration 
expenses arising from these events within the 
boundary of each group of contracts.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk

This is the compensation that the Group requires 
for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and 
timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance 
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contracts. The Group uses a confidence level 
approach (value at risk) under IFRS 17. The group’s 
calibrated risk adjustment (using value at risk) 
is such that the technical reserves are held to 
be at least sufficient at the 75th percentile of the 
ultimate loss distribution.

The value of the liability for incurred claims is the 
sum of the present value of expected future cash 
flows and the risk adjustment.

We considered the valuation of the liability for 
incurred claims to be a matter of most significance 
to the current year audit due to the following:

·	 The significant judgement and estimation 
uncertainties in the future cash flow projections 
and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk

·	 The magnitude of the liability

How our audit addressed the issues.

We tailored our testing of the insurance contract 
liabilities with reference to the various portfolios 
of contracts and the various measurement models 
applied.

We:
·	 assessed whether the Group’s accounting 

policies and methodologies were in compliance 
with IFRS 17 and that the nature and substance 
of the policies issued by the Group supported 
the policy elections made on transition.

·	 assessed the valuation methodology and 
assumptions for compliance against accepted 
actuarial techniques, guidelines issued by 
the insurance regulator, and approved Group 
accounting policy in accordance with IFRS 17

·	 compared the future cashflows used in 
calculating the fulfillment cashflows with 
the Group’s historical loss experience and 
net cashflows over the life of the insurance 
contract.

·	 assessed the appropriateness of the basis and 
the methodology used in determining the risk 
adjustment for non-financial risk and discount 
rates used in the calculation of the fulfilment 
cash flows

·	 performed an eligibility test that focused on 
qualitative and quantitative assessment to 
assess the appropriateness of management’s 

use of the premium allocation approach 
measurement model to value the liabilities of 
certain insurance contracts.

·	 reviewed the expense allocation results and 
confirmed that this was in line with the split of 
directly and not directly attributable expenses 
as required by IFRS 17.

·	 performed an independent analysis and re-
computation of the liability for remaining 
claim (“LRC”) balances of selected classes 
of business measured under the premium 
allocation approach model for comparison 
with those performed by management.

·	 We checked the adequacy of the presentation 
and disclosure of insurance contract liabilities 
on the financial statements as well as the 
required disclosures in line with IFRS 17.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises 
the Report of the Directors, Financial Highlights 
and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
which we obtained prior to the date of this report, 
and the Annual Report, which is expected to be 
made available to us after that date. The other 
information does not include the consolidated and 
separate financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate 
financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not and will not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and 
separate financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other information obtained prior 
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the 
Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these consolidated and  
separate financial statements in accordance with 
IFRS Accounting Standards with the IAS 29 directive 
issued by the  Institute of Chartered Accountants 
Ghana(ICAG) , the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2019( Act 992) and the Insurance Act, 2021(Act 
1061) and for such internal controls as Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated and separate financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate 
financial statements, the Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Group and the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group 
and/or the Company or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the consolidated and separate financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated and separate 
financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated and separate 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we 
exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

·	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated and separate 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

·	 Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.

·	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by Directors.

·	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Director’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the group 
and separate financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group and/or the 
Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

·	 Evaluate the overall presentation structure 
and content of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements, including 
the disclosures and whether the group or 
separate financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

·	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial information 
of the entities or business activities within 
the Group to express an opinion on the 
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consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

We are required to communicate with the Directors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Directors with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, actions 
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with Directors 
we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements of the current 
year and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in 
carrying out our audit work we consider and report 
on the following matters.

We confirm that:

•	 we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
the audit;

•	 in our opinion proper books of account have 
been kept by the Group and the Company, so 
far as appears from the examination of those 
books;

•   the Group and the Company’s financial 
statements are in agreement with the books of 
account;

•    We are independent of the Group, pursuant to 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 
992)

In accordance with section 78(1) (a) of the 
Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061), the Company 
has kept accounting records that are sufficient 
to explain its transactions and financial position 
with respect to its insurance businesses and any 
other business that it carries on. The Company 
has generally complied with the provisions of the 
Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in 
the independent auditor’s report is

Bernard W. Q. Adade (ICAG/P/1247)

5th September, 2025

Baker Tilly Andah + Andah (ICAG/F/2025/122)

Chartered Accountants

18 Nyanyo Lane, Asylum Down

Accra.
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Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

Group Company

 Assets Note 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

 Non-current assets

 Property, plant, and equipment  19 312,495,390 145,665,632 312,068,745 145,077,956

 Intangible asset  20 71,513 140,034 13,070 26,140

 Investment properties  21 67,875,374 65,445,056 67,875,374 65,445,056

 Right of use assets  22 5,486,098 5,181,976 5,486,094 4,890,616

 Equity investments  24 242,763,405 219,332,953 242,714,558 219,285,595

 Investment in subsidiary  25 - - 12,878,526 12,878,526

 Investment in associate  26                  - 45,061,727                   - 45,061,727

 Total non-current assets 628,691,780 480,827,378 641,036,367 492,665,616

 Current assets

 Investments at amortised cost  27 315,578,702 184,256,946 301,900,077 197,779,020

 Receivables  28 49,415,063 78,086,527 20,658,179 27,264,251

 Inventories  29 3,989,537 1,892,464 3,989,537 1,892,464

 Reinsurance Contract Assets: -

 Asset for incurred claims  42 11,306,649 7,131,847 11,306,649 7,131,847

 Asset for remaining coverage  42 (16,203,007) 55,162,676 (16,203,007) 55,162,676

 Growth & sustainability levy  18b - - - 118,303

 Cash and bank balance  30 122,951,980 92,472,794 117,011,448 83,917,972

 Total current assets 487,038,924 419,003,254 438,662,883 373,266,533

 Total assets 1,115,730,704 899,830,632 1,079,699,250 865,932,149

 Shareholders’ equity and 
liabilities

 Equity

 Stated capital  31 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000

 Revaluation reserve  32a 246,834,248 124,207,929 246,834,248 124,207,929

 Retained earnings 124,712,100 97,749,650 141,382,075 113,647,902

 Contingency reserve  33 88,380,277 71,595,781 88,380,277 71,595,781

 Fair value reserve  34 175,363,880 152,492,978 179,682,176 156,812,317

 Other reserves  35 (4,022,053) (7,004,168) (4,022,053) (7,004,168)

 Non-controlling interest  36 14,110,547 14,440,837                    -                 -

 Shareholders’ funds 670,378,999 478,483,007 677,256,723 484,259,761
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Group Company

Note 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Employee benefits obligation 43a 19,184,869 23,184,420 19,184,869 23,184,420

Lease liabilities 23 4,135,545 4,789,413 4,135,545 4,076,257

Deferred tax 18d 96,207,478 61,421,198 96,404,109 61,611,481

Total non-current liabilities 119,527,892 89,395,031 119,724,523 88,872,158

Current liabilities

Customer advanced payment for 
contracts 39 21,743,859 76,326,602 21,743,859 76,326,602

Insurance contract liabilities:

Liability for incurred claims 41 58,993,860 60,566,609 58,993,860 60,566,609

Liability for remaining coverage 41 97,182,183 100,767,047 97,182,183 100,767,047

Trade & other payables 37 119,604,941 66,532,632 80,160,653 30,685,856

Lease liabilities 23 627,204 1,728,240 627,204 1,728,240

Borrowings 38 - 14,649,408 - 14,649,408

Current tax liability 18a 24,448,240 10,227,637 22,088,595 8,076,468

Growth & sustainability levy 18b 3,223,526 1,154,418 1,921,650                   -

Total current liabilities 325,823,813 331,952,594 282,718,004 292,800,230

Total liabilities 445,351,705 421,347,625 402,442,527 381,672,388

Total equity and liabilities 1,115,730,704 899,830,632 1,079,699,250 865,932,149

Board Chairman Ag. Managing Director Director

(Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP) (Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng) (Mr. Nicholas Oteng)

Date: 2nd September, 2025 Date: 2nd September, 2025 Date: 2nd September, 2025

The accompanying notes on pages 70 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and  
other Comprehensive Income 
As at 31 December 2024

Group Company

Note 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Insurance revenue 6 559,483,192 373,190,838 559,483,192 373,190,838

Insurance service expenses 7 (141,432,202) (116,509,159) (141,432,202) (116,509,159)

Insurance service result before 
reinsurance contracts held 418,050,990 256,681,679 418,050,990 256,681,679

Net expense from reinsurance 
contracts held 8 (137,716,272) (105,725,161) (137,716,272) (105,725,161)

Insurance service result 280,334,718 150,956,518 280,334,718 150,956,518

Finance expense from contracts 
issued 9 (3,819,442) (4,458,627) (3,819,442) (4,458,627)

Finance income from reinsurance 
contracts held 10 505,149 577,087 505,149 577,087

Net insurance financial result (3,314,293) (3,881,540) (3,314,293) (3,881,540)

Net insurance result 277,020,425 147,074,978 277,020,425 147,074,978

Investment income 14 36,276,759 32,528,537 35,410,064 30,852,129

Finance cost 15 (2,206,431) (2,460,849) (2,206,431) (2,414,217)

Impairment loss 16 (34,079,570) (13,846,653) (34,079,570) (13,783,363)

Net insurance and investment 
result 277,011,183 163,296,013 276,144,488 161,729,527

Brokerage and advisory fees 11 11,855,867 10,336,388 - -

Other income 13 31,505,569 17,376,079 29,369,915 15,797,175

Share of associate (loss)/profit 26 (45,061,727) 5,464,980 (45,061,727) 5,464,980

Other operating expenses 12 (192,105,273) (173,628,653) (176,398,264) (157,989,132)

Profit before income tax 83,205,619 22,844,807 84,054,412 25,002,550

Income tax 18c (25,560,074) (8,769,840) (25,335,562) (8,692,080)

Growth & sustainability levy 18b (4,231,876) (1,261,985) (4,202,721) (1,250,128)

Profit for the year 53,413,669 12,812,982 54,516,129 15,060,342
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Group Company

Note 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gain on equity 
investments 34 23,430,454 93,212,258 23,428,964 93,212,258

Deferred tax 18d  (42,536,574) (20,849,561) (42,536,574) (20,849,561)

Revaluation gains/loss (net of 
tax) 32a 163,982,480 (1,022,403) 163,982,480 (1,022,402)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on employee 
benefits 43b 4,312,167 (4,107,830) 4,312,167 (4,107,830)

Total comprehensive income 
for the year 202,602,196 80,045,447 203,703,166 82,292,807

Earnings per share 17 0.2730 0.0655 0.2786 0.0770

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent  53,744,406  13,487,190 54,516,129 15,060,342

Non-controlling interest (330,737) (674,208)                 -               -

53,413,669 12,812,982 54,516,129 15,060,342

Total comprehensive income 
attributable to

Equity holders of the parent 202,930,344  80,719,655 203,703,166 82,292,807

Non-controlling interest (328,148) (674,208)                  -              -

202,602,196 80,045,447 203,703,166 82,292,807

The accompanying notes on pages  70 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and Separate Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2024

Group

31 December 
2024

Stated 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Contingency 
reserve

Revaluation 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Non-
controlling 

interest Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Bal at 1 January 
2024 25,000,000 97,749,650 71,595,781 124,207,929 152,492,978 (7,004,168)  14,440,837 478,483,007

Profit for the year - 53,413,669  -  -  - -  - 53,413,669

Approved 
dividend -  (9,997,460)  -  -  - -  -  (9,997,460)

Other 
comprehensive 
income

Net gain on 
financial 
instrument 
measured at fair 
value through 
OCI

-  -  -  - 23,430,454 -  - 23,430,454

Revaluation gain -  -  - 163,982,480  - -  - 163,982,480

Derecognition of 
assets -  -  - (708,744)  - -  - (708,744)

Change in fair 
value through 
OCI

-  -  -  - (447) - 447  -

Deferred tax 
charged to OCI -  -  -  (40,647,417) (559,105) (1,330,052)  -  

(42,536,574)

Actuarial 
movement 
in employee 
benefit

-  -  -  -  - 4,312,167  -  4,312,167

Transfer (from)/
to reserve - (16,784,496) 16,784,496  -  - -  -  -

Non-controlling 
interest - 330,737  -  -  - -  (330,737)  -

Bal at 31 
December 2024 25,000,000 124,712,100 88,380,277 246,834,248 175,363,880 (4,022,053) 14,110,547 670,378,999
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Group

31 December 
2023

Stated 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Contingency 
reserve

Revaluation 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Non-
controlling 

interest Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Bal at 1 January 
2023 25,000,000  95,458,185  60,400,056 125,895,388 80,473,263 (3,904,376) 15,115,045 398,437,561

Profit for the year  12,812,982  12,812,982

Approved 
dividend               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -

Other 
comprehensive 
income

Net gain on 
financial 
instrument 
measured at fair 
value through 
OCI

- - - - 93,212,258 - - 93,212,258

Revaluation gain - - - (1,022,403) - - -  (1,022,403)

Deferred tax 
charged to OCI - - -  (665,056) (21,192,543)  1,008,038 -  

(20,849,561)

Actuarial 
movement in 
employee benefit

- - - - -  (4,107,830) -  (4,107,830)

Transfer (from)/
to reserve -  (11,195,725)  11,195,725 - - - - -

Non-controlling 
interest -  674,208 - - - -  (674,208) -

Subsidiary 
adjustment               -               -                -                 -                 -               -              -                 -

Bal at 31 
December 2023 25,000,000 97,749,650 71,595,781 124,207,929 152,492,978 (7,004,168) 14,440,837 478,483,007
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Company

31 December 2024
Stated 

Capital
Retained 
Earnings

Contingency 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Fair value 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 Jan 2024 25,000,000 113,647,902 71,595,781 124,207,929 156,812,317 (7,004,168) 484,259,761

Profit for the year - 54,516,129  -  -  - -  54,516,129

Actuarial Movement on 
employee benefit -  -  -  -  - 4,312,167  4,312,167

Transfer to contingency 
reserve - (16,784,496) 16,784,496  -  - -  -

Derecognition of leasehold 
asset -  -  - (708,744)  - - (708,744)

Revaluation of assets -  -  - 163,982,480  - - 163,982,480

Net gain on available-for-sale 
investment -  -  -  - 23,428,964 -  23,428,964

Deferred Tax -  -  - (40,647,417) (559,105) (1,330,052)  (42,536,574)

Dividend paid                - (9,997,460)                 -                 -                  -                 - (9,997,460)

Balance at 31 December 
2024 25,000,000 141,382,075 88,380,277 246,834,248 179,682,176 (4,022,053) 677,256,723

31 December 2023
Stated 
capital

Retained 
earnings

Contingency 
reserves

Revaluation 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve

Other 
reserves Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January. 2023 25,000,000
 

109,783,285 60,400,056 125,895,388 84,792,602 (3,904,376) 401,966,955

Profit for the year  -  15,060,342 - - - - 15,060,342

Transfer (from)/to reserve  -  (11,195,725) 11,195,725 - - - -

Revaluation loss (1,022,403) -  (1,022,403)

Actuarial movement in 
employee benefit  -  - - (4,107,830)  (4,107,830)

Net gain on available-for-sale 
investment  -  - - - 93,212,258 - 93,212,258

Approved dividend  - -

Deferred tax charge to OCI               -                 -                - (665,056) (21,192,543) 1,008,038 (20,849,561)

Balance at 31 Dec 2023 25,000,000  113,647,902 71,595,781 124,207,929 156,812,317 (7,004,168) 484,259,761

The accompanying notes on pages 70 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Operating activities

Profit before tax 83,205,619 22,844,807 84,054,412 25,002,550

Adjustment to reconcile profit 
before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation 10,964,453 8,925,572 10,748,858 8,716,473

Amortisation of intangible assets 68,521 81,542 13,070 13,070

Lease amortisation 1,990,907 1,704,468 1,699,551 1,413,113

Gain on disposal of property, plant & 
equipment - (73,000) - (73,000)

Share of associate loss/(profit) 45,061,727 (5,464,980) 45,061,727 (5,464,980)

Revaluation loss/(gain) on investment 
property (3,766,361) 13,404,478 (3,766,361) 13,404,478

Profit on disposal of investment 
property (1,798,424) - (1,798,424) -

Interest received (34,095,991) (30,178,389) (33,229,296) (28,501,981)

Dividend received (2,180,769) (2,350,148) (2,180,769) (2,350,148)

Approved dividend (9,997,460) - (9,997,460) -

Actuarial loss on employee benefit 312,616 1,143,661 312,616 1,143,661

Working capital adjustments:

Change in receivables 28,671,465 (24,165,092) 6,606,072 (20,300,933)

Change in inventories (2,097,073) (151,233) (2,097,073) (151,233)

Change in reinsurance contract assets 67,190,881 (56,685,171) 67,190,881 (56,685,171)

Change in insurance contract liabilities (5,157,613) 22,601,829 (5,157,613) 22,601,829

Change in trade & other payables 53,072,310 (4,370,852) 49,474,797 2,565,344

Change in customer advanced 
payment for contracts (54,582,742) 67,219,782 (54,582,742) 67,219,782

Cash generated from operating 
activities 176,862,066 14,487,274 152,352,246 28,552,854

Tax paid (19,089,766) (10,059,847) (19,067,381) (9,965,891)

National stabilization levy paid (2,162,768) (1,662,523) (2,162,768) (1,662,523)

Net cash generated from operating 
activities 155,609,532 2,764,904 131,122,097 16,924,440
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Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment  (14,520,476) (20,664,316) (14,465,911) (20,600,578)

Acquisition of intangible assets  - - - -

Addition to right of use assets (2,295,029) (3,434,868) (2,295,029)  (3,434,868)

Proceeds from disposal on investment 
property 3,134,467 73,000 3,134,467 73,000

Revaluation of PPE and revaluation 
reserve - 33,856 -  33,856

Purchase of equity investments - (7,140) - -

Additions to investment property  - (339,174) - (339,174)

Dividend received 2,180,769 2,350,148 2,180,769 2,350,148

Interest received 34,095,991 30,178,389 33,229,296 28,501,981

Net cash (used in)/generated from 
investing activities 22,595,722 8,189,895 21,783,592 6,584,365

Financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in borrowings (14,649,408) 185,126 (14,649,408) 185,126

Increase in lease liability (1,754,904) 2,057,746 (1,041,748) 2,340,049

Net generated from/(used in) in 
financing activities (16,404,312) 2,242,872 (15,691,156) 2,525,175

Changes in cash and cash equivalents 161,800,942 13,197,671 137,214,533 26,033,980

Cash at 1 January 276,729,740 263,532,069 281,696,992 255,663,012

Cash at 31 December 438,530,682 276,729,740 418,911,525 281,696,992

Analysis of changes in cash and 
cash equivalents

Cash and bank 122,951,980 92,472,794 117,011,448 83,917,972

Investments at amortised cost 315,578,702 184,256,946 301,900,077 197,779,020

438,530,682 276,729,740 418,911,525 281,696,992

The accompanying notes on pages 70 to 136 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
1.	 Reporting entity

SIC Insurance PLC underwrites non-life insurance 
risks. The group also issues a diversified portfolio 
of investment services to provide its customers 
with asset management solutions for their savings 
and retirement needs as well as undertaking 
brokerage services. The group is a limited liability 
group incorporated and domiciled in Ghana, with 
its registered office at Nyemitei House 28/29, Ring 
Road East Osu - Accra. SIC Insurance PLC has a 
primary listing on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

2.	 Basis of preparation

a)	 Statement of compliance

	 These consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with the 
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board and 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2019 
(Act 992).

b)	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis except for financial 
instrument measured at fair value through OCI 
financial assets, which are measured at fair 
value. Financial assets are held at fair value 
through profit or loss, investment property 
is measured at fair value, retirement benefit 
obligations and other long term employee 
benefits are measured at net present value, 
financial assets and liabilities are initially 
recognised at fair value.

c)	 Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards 
requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, 
and expenses.

	 Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the 

revision affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and the future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

3.	 Material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements by the group:

(a)	  Consolidation

i)	 Subsidiaries

	 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the 
group has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies generally accompanying a 
shareholding of more than one half of the voting 
rights. The existence and effect of potential 
voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing 
whether the group controls another entity. 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 
date on which control is transferred to the 
group. They are de-consolidated from the date 
on which control ceases.

	 The group uses the purchase method of 
accounting to account for the acquisition 
of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is 
measured as the fair value of the assets given, 
equity instruments issued, and liabilities 
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, 
plus costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed 
in a business combination are measured 
initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority 
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition 
over the fair value of the group’s share of the 
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as 
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than 
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary 
acquired, the difference is recognised directly 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

	 Intra-group transactions, balances and 
unrealised gains on intra-group transactions 
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. Subsidiaries’ accounting policies 
have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the 
group.
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ii)	 Associates

	 Associates are all entities over which the 
group has significant influence but not control, 
generally accompanying a shareholding of 
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 
Investments in associates are accounted for 
by the equity method of accounting and are 
initially recognised at cost.

	 The group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised 
in the income statement, and its share of 
post-acquisition movements in reserves is 
recognised in reserves.

	 The cumulative post-acquisition movements 
are adjusted against the carrying amount of 
the investment. When the group’s share of 
losses in an associate equal or exceeds its 
interest in the associate, including any other 
unsecured receivables, the group does not 
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
associate.

	 Unrealised gains on transactions between the 
group and its associates are eliminated to the 
extent of the group’s interest in the associates. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless 
the transaction provides evidence of an 
impairment of the asset transferred. Associates’ 
accounting policies have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the 
policies adopted by the group.

(b)	Segment reporting

	 A business segment is a group of assets and 
operations engaged in providing products or 
services that are subject to risks and returns 
that are different from those of other business 
segments. A geographical segment is engaged 
in providing products or services within a 
particular economic environment that are 
subject to risks and return that are different 
from those of segments operating in other 
economic environments.

(c) 	Foreign currency translation

i)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements of 
the group are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the 

entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The 
financial statements are presented in cedis, 
which is the group’s presentation currency.

ii)	 Transactions and balances

	 Foreign currency transactions are translated 
into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

	 Translation differences on non-monetary items, 
such as equities held at fair value through profit 
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value 
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, are included in the fair value 
reserve in equity.

iii)	 Exchange differences

	 The results and financial position of the group’s 
functional currency which is not different from 
the presentation currency are translated into 
the presentation currency as follows:

(i)	 assets and liabilities for each statement of 
financial position presented are translated 
at the closing rate at the date of that 
statement of financial position; and

(ii)	 income and expenses for each statement 
of comprehensive income are translated 
at average exchange rates (unless this 
average is not a reasonable approximation 
of the cumulative effect of the rates 
prevailing on the transaction dates, in 
which case income and expenses are 
translated at the dates of the transactions).

(d)	Property, plant, and equipment

	 Land and buildings comprise mainly outlets 
and offices occupied by the group. Land and 
buildings are shown at fair value, based on 
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations 
by external independent appraisers, less 
subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any 
accumulated depreciation at the date of 
revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset, and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the 
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asset. All other property, plant and equipment 
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the group and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income during 
the financial period in which they are incurred.

	 Increases in the carrying amount arising on 
revaluation of land and buildings are credited to 
the revaluation surplus in shareholders’ funds. 
Decreases that offset previous increases of the 
same asset are charged against revaluation 
surplus directly in equity; all other decreases 
are charged to the statement of comprehensive 
income.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation 
on other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued 
amounts over their estimated useful lives, as 
follows:

Other machinery & 
equipment

20% Per annum

Capital work in progress Nil “

Freehold buildings 1% “

Computers 25% “

	 Leasehold land & buildings are amortised over 
the life of the lease.

	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives 
are reviewed at each statement of financial 
position date and adjusted if appropriate.

	 Gains and losses on disposals are determined 
by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in the statement 
of comprehensive income. When revalued 
assets are sold, the amounts included in the 
revaluation surplus are transferred to retained 
earnings.

e) Investment properties

	 Property held for rental purposes and capital 
appreciation is classified as investment 
property. Such property is not owner occupied.

	 Investment property comprises freehold 
land and buildings. It is carried at fair value. 
Fair value is based on active market prices, 
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the 
nature, location, or condition of the specific 
asset.

	 If this information is not available, the group 
uses alternative valuation methods such as 
discounted cash flow projections or recent 
prices on less active markets. Investment 
property that is being redeveloped for 
continuing use as investment property, or for 
which the market has become less active, 
continues to be measured at fair value.

	 Changes in fair values are recorded in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

	 Property located on land that is held under 
operating lease is classified as investment 
property as long as it is held for long-term rental 
yields and is not occupied by the group. The 
initial cost of the property is the lower of the fair 
value of the property and the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. The property is 
carried at fair value after initial recognition.

	 If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant 
and equipment, and its fair value at the 
date of reclassification becomes its cost for 
subsequent accounting purposes.

	 If an item of property, plant and equipment 
becomes an investment property because 
its use has changed, any difference arising 
between the carrying amount and the fair value 
of this item at the date of transfer is recognised 
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant, and 
equipment.

	 However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous 
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. Upon 
the disposal of such investment property, 
any surplus previously recorded in equity 
is transferred to retained earnings; the 
transfer is not made through the statement of 
comprehensive income.
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f) Financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial 
position when the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 Financial assets

	 All regular way purchases or sales of financial 
assets are recognised and derecognised on 
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or 
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within the time 
frame established by regulation or convention 
in the marketplace.

	 All recognised financial assets are measured 
subsequently in their entirety at either 
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the 
classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assetsClassification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following 
conditions are measured subsequently at 
amortised cost:

·	 the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows; and

·	 the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following 
conditions are measured subsequently at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

·	 the financial asset is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets; and

·	 the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured 
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the 
following irrevocable election/designation at initial 
recognition of a financial asset:

·	 the Group may irrevocably elect to present 
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity 
investment in other comprehensive income if 
certain criteria are met (see (iii) below); and

·	 the Group may irrevocably designate a debt 
investment that meets the amortised cost 
or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch (see (iv) below).

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method

	 The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant period.

	 For financial assets other than purchased or 
originated credit‑impaired financial assets 
(i.e. assets that are credit‑impaired on initial 
recognition), the effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of 
the effective interest rate, transaction costs 
and other premiums or discounts) excluding 
expected credit losses, through the expected life 
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount 
of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 
For purchased or originated credit‑impaired 
financial assets, a credit‑adjusted effective 
interest rate is calculated by discounting 
the estimated future cash flows, including 
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost 
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.



2024 ANNUAL REPORT
SIC INSURANCE (PLC)

74

	 The amortised cost of a financial asset is 
the amount at which the financial asset is 
measured at initial recognition minus the 
principal repayments, plus the cumulative 
amortisation using the effective interest 
method of any difference between that initial 
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted 
forany loss allowance. The gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset is the amortised 
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any 
loss allowance.

	 Interest income is recognised using the effective 
interest method for debt instruments measured 
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. 
For financial assets other than purchased or 
originated credit‑impaired financial assets, 
interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset, except for financial 
assets that have subsequently become 
credit‑impaired. For financial assets that 
have subsequently become credit‑impaired, 
interest income is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of 
the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting 
periods, the credit risk on the credit‑impaired 
financial instrument improves so that the 
financial asset is no longer credit‑impaired, 
interest income is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset. For purchased or 
originated credit‑impaired financial assets, the 
Group recognises interest income by applying 
the credit‑adjusted effective interest rate to the 
amortised cost of the financial asset from initial 
recognition. The calculation does not revert 
to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the 
financial asset subsequently improves so that 
the financial asset is no longer credit‑impaired.

	 Interest income is recognised in profit or loss 
and is included in the “finance income – interest 
income” line item.

 (ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI (ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

	 The corporate bonds held by the Group 
are classified as at FVTOCI. The corporate 
bonds are initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in 
the carrying amount of these corporate bonds 
as a result of foreign exchange gains and 

losses, impairment gains or losses, and interest 
income calculated using the effective interest 
method are recognised in profit or loss. The 
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are 
the same as the amounts that would have been 
recognised in profit or loss if these corporate 
bonds had been measured at amortised cost.

	 All other changes in the carrying amount of 
these corporate bonds are recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated 
under the heading of investments revaluation 
reserve.

	 When these corporate bonds are derecognised, 
the cumulative gains or losses previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income are 
reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI(iii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

	 On initial recognition, the Group may 
make an irrevocable election (on an 
instrument‑by‑instrument basis) to designate 
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. 
Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the 
equity investment is held for trading or if it is 
contingent consideration recognised by an 
acquirer in a business combination.

	 A financial asset is held for trading if:

·	 it has been acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

·	 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio 
of identified financial instruments that the 
Group manages together and has evidence 
of a recent actual pattern of short‑term 
profit‑taking; or

·	 it is a derivative (except for a derivative 
that is a financial guarantee contract 
or a designated and effective hedging 
instrument).

	 Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 
are initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs.

	 Subsequently, they are measured at fair value 
with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the investment 
revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or 
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loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on 
disposal of the equity investments, instead, it 
is transferred to retained earnings.

	 Dividends on these investments in equity 
instruments are recognised in profit or loss in 
accordance with IFRS 9 unless the dividends 
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost 
of the investment. Dividends are included in 
the ‘finance income’ line item in profit or loss.

	 The Group has designated all investments in 
equity instruments that are not held for trading 
as at FVTOCI on initial application of IFRS 9.

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

	 Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for 
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI 
(see (i) to (iii) above) are measured at FVTPL.

	 Specifically:

·	 Investments in equity instruments are 
classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group 
designates an equity investment that is 
neither held for trading nor a contingent 
consideration arising from a business 
combination as at FVTOCI on initial 
recognition (see (iii) above).

·	 Debt instruments that do not meet the 
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI 
criteria (see (i) and (ii) above) are classified 
as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments 
that meet either the amortised cost 
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be 
designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if such designation eliminates 
or significantly reduces a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency (so called 
‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise 
from measuring assets or liabilities or 
recognising the gains and losses on them 
on different bases. The Group has not 
designated any debt instruments as at 
FVTPL.

	 Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at 
fair value at the end of each reporting period, 
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in 
profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a 
designated hedging relationship.

	 The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss 
includes any dividend or interest earned on 
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other 
gains and losses.

g) Impairment of assets

i)	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

	 The group assesses at each statement of 
financial position date whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired 
and impairment losses are incurred only if 
there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that have occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss 
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the financial asset or group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. Objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of 
assets is impaired includes observable data 
that comes to management’s attention about 
the following event.

(i) 	 significant financial difficulty of the issuer 
or debtor.

(ii) 	 a breach of contract, such as a default or 
delinquency in payments.

(iii)	 it is becoming probable that the issuer 
or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation.

(iv)	 the disappearance of an active market for 
that financial asset because of financial 
difficulties; or

(v)	 observable data indicating that there is 
a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flow from a group of financial 
assets since the initial recognition of those 
assets, although the decrease cannot yet 
be identified with the individual financial 
assets in the group, including:

• 	 Adverse changes in the payment status of 
issuers or debtors in the group; or

• 	 National or local economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults on the assets 
in the group.
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	 If there is objective evidence that an impairment 
loss has been incurred on loans and 
receivables or held-to-maturity investments 
carried at amortised cost, the amount of the 
loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account and 
the amount of the loss is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. If a held-
to-maturity investment or a loan has a variable 
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring 
any impairment loss is the current effective 
interest rate determined under contract. As 
a practical expedient approach, the group 
may measure impairment on the basis of an 
instrument’s fair value using an observable 
market price.

ii)	 Financial assets carried at fair value.

	 The group assesses at each statement of 
financial position date whether there is 
objective evidence that an available-for-sale 
financial asset is impaired, including in the case 
of equity investments classified as on financial 
instrument measured at fair value through OCI, 
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value of the security below its cost.

	 If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale 
financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost 
and current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on the financial asset previously recognised 
in profit or loss – is removed from equity and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income. Impairment losses recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income 
on equity instruments are not subsequently 
reversed. The impairment loss is reversed 
through the statement of comprehensive 
income, if in a subsequent period the fair 
value of a debt instrument classified as a on 
financial instrument measured at fair value 
through OCI increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or 
loss.

iii)	Impairment of other non-financial assets

	 Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not 
subject to amortisation and are tested annually 
for impairment. Assets that are subject to 
amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised 
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets 
are companied at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows 
(cash-generating units).

h)	 Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the statement of 
financial position only when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

i)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
in hand, deposits held at call with banks, 
other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or 
less, and bank overdrafts.

j) Share capital

	 Shares are classified as equity when there is 
no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of equity instruments are shown in equity 
as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of equity instruments as consideration 
for the acquisition of a business are included in 
the cost of acquisition.

k) Insurance and investment contracts – 
classification

	 The group issues contracts that transfer 
insurance risk or financial risk or both. 
Insurance contracts are those contracts 
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that transfer significant insurance risk. Such 
contracts may also transfer financial risk. 
As a general guideline, the group defines as 
significant insurance risk the possibility of 
having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an 
insured event that are at least 10% more than 
the benefits payable if the insured event did not 
occur.

	 Investment contracts are those contracts 
that transfer financial risk with no significant 
insurance risk.

l) Insurance contracts

	 The Group issues short term insurance 
contracts which transfer insurance risk or 
financial risk or, in some cases, both. Insurance 
contracts are those contracts under which the 
Group accepts significant insurance risk from 
another party (the policy holder) by agreeing 
to compensate the policy holder or other 
beneficiary if a specified uncertain future 
event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholder. Insurance risk is risk other than 
financial risk.

	 The Group issues the following contracts that 
are accounted for using different measurement 
methods:

·	 Motor, Fire, Theft and Property, Accident, 
Engineering, Bonds and Marine and 
Aviation. The Group issues fully 
comprehensive and third-party liability 
car insurance policies as well as home 
insurance policies for contents and 
buildings with coverage of one year or 
less which are accounted for applying the 
Premium Allocation Approach (PAA);

	 The product features of insurance contracts 
that have a material effect on the amount, 
timing and uncertainty of future cash flows 
arising from insurance contracts in the Group 
are described below in accordance with the 
National Insurance Commission (NIC) guide.

1.	 Fire, Theft and Property

	 Contracts of insurance against loss or 
damage to property, and consequential 
losses, due to fire, explosion, storm 
and other natural perils and other perils 
customarily included in fire insurance 

policies. Excluding insurance of a type 
described above which is incidental to 
some other class of insurance business.

	 Contracts of insurance against loss or damage 
to property due to theft or any other cause 
not covered under any other class, including 
consequential losses. This includes Burglary, 
all risks and other theft insurance, Cash–in–
transit and Fidelity guarantee.

	 The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under fire, theft, and Property:

·	 Fire Private

·	 Private Commercial

2.	 Accident

Contracts of insurance that provide fixed pecuniary 
benefits or benefits in the nature of an indemnity 
(or a combination of both) against risks of the 
person insured.

a)	 sustaining accidental injury,

b)	 dying as a result of an accident,

c)	 becoming incapacitated because of disease,

d)	 attributable to sickness or infirmity,

This class excludes any contract of insurance 
that falls within a class of long-term insurance 
business.

Contracts of insurance against the liability of an 
employer to the employer’s employees in relation 
to any injury or disease arising out of, or in the 
course of, their employment.

Contracts of insurance against loss of or damage 
to merchandise, baggage, and all other goods in 
transit, irrespective of the form of transport.

Contracts of insurance against risks of the persons 
insured incurring liability to third parties (excluding 
any risks relating to the other classes of business).

They include (i) Public liability, (ii) Professional 
indemnity, (iii) Products liability, and other Liability 
insurances.

The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under Accident:
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·	 Public Liability
·	 Professional Indemnity
·	 Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability
·	 Personal Accident
·	 Travel
·	 All Other Accident policies (Goods in transit, 

Cash in transit and Fidelity guarantee and 
others)

3.	 Bonds

Contracts of insurance against the risk of financial 
and other losses to the person insured;

a)	 arising from the failure of debtors to pay their 
debts when due, whether by reason of their 
insolvency or otherwise (credit insurance);

b)	 arising from the person insured having to 
perform contracts of guarantee entered by 
them, including performance bonds, fidelity 
bonds, administration bonds and other similar 
contracts of guarantee (suretyship);

c)	 Attributable to the person insured incurring 
legal expenses, including the cost of litigation 
(legal expenses insurance);

d)	 Attributable to the person insured incurring 
other unforeseen expenses (not falling within 
any other class of general insurance), including 
fidelity and kidnap and ransom insurance 
(miscellaneous financial loss insurance)

The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under Bonds:

·	 All classes of Bonds as one portfolio

4.	 Motor

Contracts of insurance against:
a)	 loss of or damage to motor vehicles.

b)	 loss or damage arising out of or in connection 
with the use of, motor vehicles, including third 
party risks, carrier’s liability, and medical 
expenses for the injury of occupants of a motor 
vehicle.

The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under Motor:

·	 Motor Comprehensive
·	 Motor Third Party Fire & Theft

·	 Motor Third Party Only
·	 Other Approved Motor Products

5.	 Engineering

Contracts of insurance against

a)	 loss or damage to plant and machinery;

b)	 loss or damage arising out of the use or 
operation of plant and machinery, including 
loss of or damage to surrounding property of 
the insured, liability to third parties for damage 
to property, injury, or loss of life;

c)	 loss or damage arising out of contract work 
in relation to plant and machinery, including 
damage to property on site and third-party 
risks.

The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under Engineering:

·	 Engineering-All Risk

·	 Other Engineering policies

6.	 Marine & aviation

Contracts of insurance against

a)	 loss of or damage to marine craft or the 
equipment or fittings of marine craft;

b)	 loss or damage arising out of or in connection 
with the freight, use, construction, or repair 
of marine craft, including third party risks, 
carrier’s liability, and medical expenses for the 
injury of occupants of a marine craft, including 
crew. It includes marine hull and cargo.

Contracts of insurance against

a)	 loss of or damage to aircraft or aircraft 
equipment or fittings.

b)	 loss or damage arising out of or in connection 
with the use of aircraft, or the construction or 
repair of aircraft, including third party risks, 
carrier’s liability, airport owner’s liability and 
medical expenses for the injury or loss of life of 
occupants of an aircraft, including aircrew.

The following are IFRS 17 portfolios that are 
classified under Marine and Aviation:

·	 Marine Cargo and Liability
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·	 Marine Hull and Liability
·	 Aviation

(ii)	Recognition and measurement insurance 
contracts

The Group applies the Premium Allocation 
Approach (PAA) to the measurement of insurance 
contracts with a coverage period of each contract 
in the group of one year or less.

On initial recognition, the Group measures the 
Liability for Remaining Coverage (LRC) at the 
amount of premiums received in cash. As all the 
issued insurance contracts to which the PAA is 
applied have coverage of a year or less, the Group 
applies a policy of expensing insurance acquisition 
cash flows as they are incurred. Premiums due to 
the Group for insurance contract services already 
provided in the period but not yet received at the 
end of the reporting period are included in the 
LRC. The carrying amount of the LRC at the end of 
each subsequent reporting period represents the 
carrying amount at the start of the reporting period 
adjusted for the premiums received in the period 
and the amount recognised as insurance revenue 
for insurance contract services provided in that 
period. The Group does not discount the liability 
for remaining coverage to reflect the time value 
of money and financial risk for such insurance 
contracts.

Applying the PAA, the insurance revenue is 
measured at the amount allocated from the 
expected premium receipts excluding any 
investment component. The allocation is done 
based on the passage of time unless the expected 
pattern of release from risk differs significantly 
from the passage of time, in which case it is 
recognised on the expected timing of incurred 
claims and benefits. The Group applies judgement 
in determining the basis of allocation.

If facts and circumstances lead the Group to 
believe that a group under PAA has become 
onerous, the Group tests it for onerousness. If the 
amount of the fulfilment cash flows exceeds the 
carrying amount of the LRC, the Group recognize a 
loss in profit or loss and increases the LRC for the 
corresponding amount.

(iii) Reinsurance contracts held

Recognition

The Group uses facultative and treaty reinsurance 
to mitigate some of its risk exposures. Reinsurance 
contracts held are accounted under IFRS 17 when 
they meet the definition of an insurance contract, 
which includes the condition that the contract 
must transfer significant insurance risk. The 
Group cedes reinsurance in the normal course 
of business for the purpose of limiting its net 
loss potential. Reinsurance arrangements do not 
relieve the Group from its direct obligations to its 
policyholders.

Reinsurance contracts transfer significant 
insurance risk only if they transfer to the reinsurer 
substantially all the insurance risk relating to the 
reinsured portions of the underlying insurance 
contracts, even if a reinsurance contract does not 
expose the issuer (reinsurer) to the possibility of a 
significant loss.

For reinsurance contracts held accounted for 
applying the PAA, the Group assumes that all 
reinsurance contracts held in each portfolio will 
not result in a net gain on initial recognition, unless 
facts and circumstances indicate otherwise.

(iii) Modification and derecognition

The Group derecognises the original contracts 
and recognises the modified contract as a new 
contract, if the terms of insurance contracts are 
modified and the following conditions are met:

(a)	 if the modified terms were included at contract 
inception and the Group would have concluded 
that the modified contract:

·	 is outside of the scope of IFRS 17;

·	 results in a different insurance contract 
due to separating components from the 
host contract;

·	 results in a different contract boundary;

·	 includes in a different group of contracts.

(b)	the original contract met the definition of an 
insurance contract with direct participation 
features, but the modified contract no longer 
meets the definition;
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(c)	 the original contract was accounted applying 
the PAA, but the modified contract no longer 
meets the PAA eligibility criteria for that 
approach.

(iv)	Modification and derecognition

If the contract modification meets any of the 
conditions, the Group performs all assessments 
applicable at initial recognition, derecognises the 
original contract and recognises the new modified 
contract as if it was entered for the first time.

If the contract modification does not meet any 
of the conditions, the Group treats the effect of 
the modification as changes in the estimates of 
fulfilment cash flows.

For insurance contracts accounted for applying 
the PAA, the Group adjusts insurance revenue 
prospectively from the time of the contract 
modification.

The Group derecognises an insurance contract 
when, and only when the contract is:

·	 extinguished (when the obligation 
specified in the insurance contract expires 
or is discharged or cancelled); or

·	 modified and derecognition criteria are 
met.

(v) Presentation(v) Presentation

The Company has presented separately in the 
statement of financial position the carrying 
amount of portfolios of insurance contracts that 
are assets and those that are liabilities, portfolio 
of reinsurance contracts held that are assets and 
those that are liabilities.

The Company disaggregates the amounts 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income into an insurance 
service result sub-total that comprises insurance 
revenue and insurance service expenses and, 
separately from the insurance service result, 
the insurance finance income or expenses. The 
Company has voluntarily included the insurance 
finance income or expenses line in another sub-
total: insurance finance result, which includes 
also the income from all the assets backing the 
Company’s insurance liabilities.

The Company includes any assets for insurance 
acquisition cash flows recognised before the 
corresponding groups of insurance contracts are 
recognised in the carrying amount of the related 
portfolios of insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenueInsurance revenue

As the Company provides insurance services under 
a group of insurance contracts issued, it reduces 
its LRC and recognises insurance revenue, which 
is measured at the amount of consideration the 
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
those services.

When applying the PAA, the Company recognises 
insurance revenue for the period based on the 
passage of time by allocating premium receipts 
including premium experience adjustments to 
each period of service.

Insurance service expenseInsurance service expense

Insurance service expense arising from group 
insurance contracts issued comprises of:

·	 changes in the Liability for Incurred Claims 
(LIC) related to claims and expenses 
incurred in the period excluding repayment 
of investment components.

·	 changes in the LIC related to claims and 
expenses incurred in prior periods (related 
to past service).

·	 other directly attributable expenses 
incurred in the period.

·	 amortisation of insurance acquisition 
cash flows, which is recognised at the 
same amount in both insurance service 
expense and insurance contract revenue.

·	 loss component of onerous groups of 
contracts initially recognised in the period.

Income or expenses from reinsurance 
contacts held

The Company presents income or expenses 
from a group of reinsurance contracts held and 
reinsurance finance income or expenses in profit or 
loss for the period separately. Income or expenses 
from reinsurance contracts held are split into the 
following two amounts:
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·	 amount recovered from reinsurers; and

·	 an allocation of the reinsurance premiums 
paid, provided that together they equal 
total income or expenses from reinsurance 
contracts held.

The Company presents cash flows that are 
contingent on claims as part of the amount 
recovered from reinsurers. Ceding commissions 
that are not contingent on claims of the underlying 
contracts are presented as a deduction in the 
premiums to be paid to the reinsurer which is then 
allocated to profit or loss.

Insurance finance income and expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses present the 
effect of the time value of money and the change 
in the time value of money, together with the effect 
of financial risk and changes in financial risk and 
changes in financial risk of a group of insurance 
contracts and a group of reinsurance contracts 
held.

The use of OCI presentation for insurance finance 
income and expense

The Company has an accounting policy choice 
to either present all of the period’s insurance 
finance income or expenses in profit or loss or to 
split the amount between profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income (OCI). In considering 
the choice of presentation of insurance finance 
income or expenses, the Company considers the 
assets held for that portfolio and how they are 
accounted for.

The Company has elected to include insurance 
finance income or expenses in profit or loss 
statement.

(vi) Insurance finance result – income or 
expenses from assets backing insurance 
contracts

The Company has voluntarily presented an 
insurance finance result sub-total in the statement 
of comprehensive income. The sub-total is present 
in both the profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. The accounting policies below are for 
the recognition and measurement of income 
or expenses from the assets backing insurance 
contracts as well as the same assets when they do 
not back insurance contracts.

(vii) Interest revenue from financial 
instruments not measured at FVTPL

Interest revenue for all financial instruments except 
for those measured or designated as at FVTPL are 
recognised as ‘Interest revenue from financial 
instruments not measured at FVTPL’ in the profit or 
loss account using the effective interest method. 
Interest on financial instruments measured as at 
FVTPL is included within the fair value movement 
during the period, see ‘Net income from other 
financial instruments at FVTPL’.

(viii) Net income from other financial 
instruments at FVTPL

Net income from other financial instruments at 
FVTPL includes all gains and losses from changes 
in the fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at FVTPL. The Company has elected to 
present the full fair value movement of assets and 
liabilities at FVTPL in this line, including the related 
interest income, expense and dividends.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to 
receive payment is established. The presentation 
of dividend income in the statement of profit or loss 
depends on the classification and measurement 
of the equity investment, i.e.:

·	 for equity instruments mandatorily measured 
at FVTPL dividend income is presented as net 
income from other instruments at FVTPL; and

·	 for equity instruments designated at FVTOCI 
dividend income is presented in other income.

m) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability 
method, on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
However, if the deferred tax arises from initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
other than a business combination that at the 
time of the transaction affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. 
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the statement of financial position 
date and are expected to apply when the related 
deferred tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax 
liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences 
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences 
arising on investments in subsidiaries and 
associates, except where the group controls the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference, 
and it is probable that the temporary difference will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

n) Employee benefits

i) Pension obligations

	 The group operate various pension schemes. 
The schemes are generally funded through 
payments to trustee-administered funds, 
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. 
The group has both defined benefit and defined 
contribution plans. A defined benefit plan 
is a pension plan that defines an amount of 
pension benefit that an employee will receive 
on retirement, usually dependent on one or 
more factors such as age, years of service and 
compensation. A defined contribution plan 
is a pension plan under which the group pays 
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The 
group has no legal or constructive obligations 
to pay further contributions if the fund does 
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees 
the benefits relating to employee service in the 
current and prior periods.

	 For defined contribution plans, the group 
pays contributions to publicly or privately 
administered pension insurance plans on a 
mandatory, contractual, or voluntary basis. 
The group has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are recognised as employee 
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the 
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available.

ii) Other post-employment obligations

	 The group provides post-retirement healthcare 
benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to 
these benefits is usually conditional on the 
employee remaining in service up to retirement 
age and the completion of a minimum service 
period. The cost is expensed in the statement 

of comprehensive income when incurred.

	 iii) Termination benefits

	 Termination benefits are payable when 
employment is terminated before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee 
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange 
for these benefits. The group recognises 
termination benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either: terminating the 
employment of current employees according 
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of 
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as 
a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 
months after the statement of financial position 
date are discounted to present value.

o) Provisions

	 Restructuring costs and legal claims

	 Provisions for restructuring costs and legal 
claims are recognised when: the group has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events; it is more likely than not 
that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation; and the amount has been 
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions 
comprise lease termination penalties and 
employee termination payments. Provisions 
are not recognised for future operating losses. 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, 
the likelihood that an outflow will be required 
in settlement is determined by considering the 
class of obligations as a whole.

	 A provision is recognised even if the likelihood 
of an outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations may 
be small.

p) Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or 
contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The 
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability with respect to all 
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except 
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease 
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value 
assets. For these leases, the Company recognises 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless 
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another systematic basis is more representative of 
the time pattern in which economic benefits from 
the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the 
present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted 
by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses 
its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of 
the lease liability comprise:

Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index 
or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at 
the commencement date.

The amount expected to be payable by the lessee 
under residual value guarantees.

The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee 
is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease if 
the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to 
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in 
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by 
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest 
on the lease liability (using the effective interest 
method) and by reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made.

The Company re-measures the lease liability (and 
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) whenever:

The lease term has changed or there is a significant 
event or change in circumstances resulting in 
a change in the assessment of exercise of a 
purchase option, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease 
payments using a revised discount rate.

The lease payments change due to changes in an 
index or rate or a change in expected payment 
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases 
the lease liability is re-measured by discounting 
the revised lease payments using an unchanged 

discount rate (unless the lease payments change 
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in 
which case a revised discount rate is used).

A lease contract is modified, and the lease 
modification is not accounted for as a separate 
lease, in which case the lease liability is re-
measured based on the lease term of the modified 
lease by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate at the effective date 
of the modification.

The Company did not make any such adjustments 
during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial 
measurement of the corresponding lease 
liability, lease payments made at or before the 
commencement day, less any lease incentives 
received and any initial direct costs. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for 
costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, 
restore the site on which it is located or restore 
the underlying asset to the condition required by 
the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision 
is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the 
extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, 
the costs are included in the related right-of-use 
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce 
inventories.

p) Leases

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the 
shorter period of lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Company expects to 
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate 
line in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether 
a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for 
any identified impairment loss as described in the 
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.
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Variable rents that do not depend on an index or 
rate are not included in the measurement the lease 
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related 
payments are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers 
those payments occurs and are included in the 
line “Other expenses” in profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee 
not to separate non-lease components, and 
instead account for any lease and associated 
non-lease components as a single arrangement. 
The Company has not used this practical 
expedient. For a contract that contain a lease 
component and one or more additional lease or 
non-lease components, the Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease 
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone 
price of the lease component and the aggregate 
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

IFRS 16 does not change substantially how a 
lessor accounts for leases. Under IFRS 16, a lessor 
continues to classify leases as either finance 
leases or operating leases and account for those 
two types of leases differently.

However, IFRS 16 has changed and expanded 
the disclosures required, in particular with re-
gard to how a lessor manages the risks arising 
from its residual interest in leased assets.
Under IFRS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts for 
the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate 
contracts.

The intermediate lessor is required to classify 
the sub-lease as a finance or operating lease by 
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the 
head lease (and not by reference to the underlying 
asset as was the case under IAS 17

Because of this change, the Company has 
reclassified certain of its sub-lease agreements as 
finance leases. As required by IFRS 9, an allowance 
for expected credit losses has been recognised on 
the finance lease receivables.

For tax purposes the Company receives tax 
deductions in respect of the right-of-use assets 
and the lease liabilities in a manner consistent 
with the accounting treatment.

The application of IFRS 16 has an impact on the 
consolidated statement of cash flows of the 
Company.

Under IFRS 16, lessees must present:

·	 Short-term lease payments, payments for 
leases of low-value assets and variable lease 
payments not included in the measurement of 
the lease liability as part of operating activities;

·	 Cash paid for the interest portion of a lease 
liability as either operating activities or 
financing activities, as permitted by IAS 7 (the 
Company has opted to include interest paid as 
part of financing activities); and

·	 Cash payments for the principal portion for a 
lease liability, as part of financing activities.

q) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the group’s shareholders 
is recognised as a liability in the group’s financial 
statements in the period in which the dividends are 
approved by shareholders.

r) 	 Critical accounting estimates and 
judgments in applying accounting policies.

The group makes estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year. Estimates and 
judgments are continually evaluated and based on 
historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances.

i) 	 Valuation of insurance contract liabilities - 
critical judgement

	 The following are the critical judgements, apart 
from those involving estimations (which are 
dealt with separately below), that the directors 
have made in the process of applying the 
Group’s accounting policies and that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in financial statements:

·	 Assessment of significance of insurance 
risk: The Group applies its judgement in 
assessing whether a contract transfers to 
the issuer significant insurance risk.

·	 Combination of insurance contracts: 
Determining whether it is necessary to 
treat a set or series of insurance contracts 
as a single contract involves significant 
judgement and careful consideration. 
In assessing whether a set or series 
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of insurance contracts achieve, or are 
designed to achieve, an overall commercial 
effect, the Group determines whether the 
rights and obligations are different when 
looked at together compared to when 
looked at individually and whether the 
Group is unable to measure one contract 
without considering the other.

·	 Separation of insurance components of 
an insurance contracts: The Group issues 
some insurance contracts that combine 
protection for the policyholder against 
different types of insurance risks in a 
single contract. IFRS 17 does not require or 
permit separating insurance components 
of an insurance contract unless the legal 
form of a single contract does not reflect 
the substance of its contractual rights 
and obligations. Overriding the ‘single 
contract’ unit of account presumption 
involves significant judgement and is 
not an accounting policy choice. When 
determining whether a legal contract 
reflects its substance or not, the Group 
considers the interdependency between 
different risks covered, the ability of all 
components to lapse independently, and 
the ability to price and sell the components 
separately.

·	 Determination of contract boundary: 
The measurement of a group insurance 
contracts includes all the future cash 
flows arising within the contract boundary. 
In determining which cash flows fall within 
a contract boundary, the Group considers 
its substantive rights and obligations 
arising from the terms of the contract, and 
also from applicable law and regulation.

·	 Identification of portfolios: The Group 
defines the portfolio as insurance 
contracts subject to similar risks and 
managed together. Contracts within 
product lines are expected to be in the 
same portfolio as they have similar 
risks and are managed together. The 
assessment of which risks are similar and 
how contracts are managed requires the 
exercise of judgement but majorly defined 
by the NIC.

·	 Level of aggregation: The Group applies 
judgement and the NIC’s guide when 
distinguishing between contracts that 
have no significant possibility of becoming 
onerous and other profitable contracts.

·	 Assessment of directly attributable cash 
flows: The Group applies judgement 
in assessing whether cash flows are 
directly attributable to a specific portfolio 
of insurance contracts. Insurance 
acquisition cash flows are included in 
the measurement of a group of insurance 
contracts only if they are directly 
attributable to either the individual 
contracts in a group, or to the group itself, 
or the portfolio of insurance contracts to 
which the group belongs. When estimating 
FCF, the Group also allocates to the FCF 
fixed and variable overheads directly 
attributable to the fulfilment of insurance 
contracts.

·	 Assessment of eligibility for PAA: For 
quota share home and motor reinsurance 
contracts with a coverage period extending 
beyond one year, the Group elects to apply 
the PAA if at the inception of the group, 
the Group reasonably expects that it will 
provide a liability for remaining coverage 
that would not differ materially from the 
General Model. The Group exercises 
judgement in determining whether the 
PAA eligibility criteria are met at initial 
recognition.

·	 Level of aggregation for determining 
the risk adjustment for non-financial 
risk: IFRS 17 does not define the level 
at which the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk should be determined. The 
level of aggregation for determining the 
risk adjustment for non-financial risk 
is not an accounting policy choice and 
involves judgement. The Group considers 
that the benefit of diversification occurs 
at an issuing entity level and therefore 
determines the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk at that level. The Group 
allocates total entity-level risk adjustment 
to groups based on the percentage of the 
group’s expected FCF to the total expected 
FCF.
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·	 Selecting a method of allocation of 
coverage units: IFRS 17 establishes a 
principle for determining coverage units, 
not a set of detailed requirements or 
methods. The selection of the appropriate 
method for determining the amount 
of coverage units is not an accounting 
policy choice. It involves the exercise of 
significant judgement and development 
of estimates considering individual facts 
and circumstances. The Group selects 
the appropriate method on a portfolio-
by-portfolio basis. In determining the 
appropriate method, the Group considers 
the likelihood of insured events occurring 
to the extent that they affect expected 
period of coverage in the group, different 
levels of service across period and the 
quantity of benefits expected to be 
received by the policyholder.

Impairment assessment of asset for insurance 
acquisition cash flows: The Group assesses 
whether there are any indicators of impairment 
for asset for insurance acquisition cash flows 
at the end of each reporting period. When such 
indicators exist, the Group performs an impairment 
testing over the asset. An impairment exists when 
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the 
expected net cash inflows for the associated group 
of contracts.

·	 Business model assessment: 
Classification and measurement of 
financial assets depends on the results 
of the SPPI and the business model test. 
The Group determines the business 
model at a level that reflects how groups 
of financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. 
This assessment includes judgement, and 
the Group takes into account all relevant 
evidence including how the performance 
of the assets is evaluated and their 
performance measured, the risks that 
affect the performance of the assets and 
how these are managed and how the 
managers of the assets are compensated.

·	 Significant increase of credit risk: ECL 
are measured as an allowance equal 
to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or 
lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its 

credit risk has increased significantly since 
initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define 
what constitutes a significant increase in 
credit risk.

Models and assumptions used: The Group uses 
various models and assumptions in measuring fair 
value of financial assets as well as in estimating 
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the most 
appropriate model for each type of asset, as well 
as for determining the assumptions used in these 
models, including assumptions that relate to key 
drivers of credit risk.

iii)	Valuation of insurance contract liabilities - 
key estimations(continued)

The following are key estimations that the directors 
have used in the process of applying the Group’s 
accounting policies and that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
financial statements:

·	 Technique for estimation of future cash 
flows: In estimating FCF included in the 
contract boundary, the Group considers 
all the range of possible outcomes in 
an unbiased way specifying the amount 
of cash flows, timing and a probability 
of each scenario reflecting conditions 
existing at the measurement data, using a 
probability-weighted average expectation. 
The probability-weighted average 
represents the probability-weighted mean 
of all possible scenarios. In determining 
possible scenarios, the Group uses all the 
reasonable and supportable information 
available to them without undue cost and 
effort, which includes information about 
past events, current conditions and future 
forecasts.

·	 Method of estimating discounts rates: In 
determining discount rates for different 
products, the Group uses the bottom-up 
approach for cash flows of nonparticipating 
contracts as recommended by the NIC 
guide.

·	 Estimation of allocation rate in systematic 
allocation of insurance finance income or 
expenses: The Group uses the constant 
rate in the systematic allocation of 
insurance finance income or expenses.
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The constant rate used in a period is calculated 
applying the formula which uses three variables: 
the estimate of future cash flows at the end of the 
reporting period (not discounted), the present value 
of future cash flows brought forward discounted 
by the constant rate used in the previous period, 
and the expected duration of the group contracts. 
In determining the constant rate, the Group 
estimates the expected insurance finance income 
or expense over the remaining duration of the group 
that is partly implicit in the estimated cash flows.

·	 Risk adjustment for non-financial risk: The 
risk adjustment for the non-financial risk is 
the compensation the Group requires for 
bearing the uncertainty about the amount 
and timing of the cash flows arising from 
insurance risk and other non-financial 
risks such as lapse risk and expense 
risk. It measures the degree of variability 
of expected future cash flows and the 
Group-specific price for bearing that risk 
and reflects the degree of the Group’s 
risk aversion. The Group determines the 
risk adjustment for non-financial risk at 
the entity level and then allocates it to 
all the groups of insurance contracts. In 
estimating the risk adjustment, the Group 
uses the Value at Risk method whiles 
following the recommendations from the 
NIC guide with a 75% confidence level 
(2023: 75%).

·	 Allocation of asset for insurance 
acquisition cash flows to current and 
future group of contracts: The Group 
allocates the asset for insurance 
acquisition cash flows to an associated 
group of contracts and to any future 
groups that include the contracts that are 
expected to arise from the renewals of the 
contracts in that group using a systematic 
and rational method. In doing so, the 
Group estimates the expected contract 
to be included within a future group or the 
number of renewals that may arise from an 
original group when allocating the asset.

·	 Establishing the number and relative 
weightings of forward-looking scenarios 
for each type of product/market and 
determining the forward-looking 
information relevant to each scenario: 
When measuring ECL the Group uses 

reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information, which is based on 
assumptions for the future movement of 
different economic drivers and how these 
drivers will affect each other.

·	 Probability of default: PD constitutes a key 
input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate 
of the likelihood of default over a given 
time horizon, the calculation of which 
includes historical data, assumptions and 
expectations for future conditions.

·	 Loss Given Default: LGD is an estimate of 
the loss arising on default. It is based on the 
difference between the contractual cash 
flows due and those that the lender would 
expect to receive, taking into account 
cash flows from any collateral.See note 3 
for more details, including analysis of the 
sensitivity of the reported ECL to changes 
in LGD resulting from changes in economic 
drivers.

·	 Fair value measurement and valuation 
process: In estimating the fair value of 
a financial asset or a liability, the Group 
uses market-observable data to the extent 
it is available. Where such Level 1 inputs 
are not available the Group uses valuation 
models to determine the fair value of its 
financial instruments.

s) Management of insurance and financial risk

The group issues contracts that transfer insurance 
risk or financial risk or both. This section 
summarises these risks and the way the group 
manages them.

i) Insurance risk

	 The risk under any one insurance contract 
is the possibility that the insured event 
occurs and the uncertainty of the amount 
of the resulting claim. By the very nature of 
an insurance contract, this risk is random 
and therefore unpredictable.

	 For a portfolio of insurance contracts 
where the theory of probability is applied to 
pricing and provisioning, the principal risk 
that the group faces under its insurance 
contracts is that the actual claims and 
benefit payments exceed the carrying 
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amount of the insurance liabilities. This 
could occur because the frequency 
or severity of claims and benefits are 
greater than estimated. Insurance events 
are random and the actual number and 
amount of claims and benefits will vary 
from year to year from the estimate 
established using statistical techniques.

ii)	 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation 
of future claim payments

	 Claims on casualty contracts are payable 
when the insured event occurs. The group 
is liable for all insured events that occur 
during the term of the contract, even if 
the loss is discovered after the end of the 
contract term. As a result, liability claims 
are settled over a long period of time and 
larger variables affect the amount and 
timing of cash flows from these contracts. 
These mainly relate to the inherent risks 
of the business activities carried out by 
individual contract holders and the risk 
management procedures they adopt. The 
compensation paid on these contracts 
is the monetary awards granted for 
bodily injury suffered by employees (for 
employer’s liability covers) or members of 
the public (for public liability covers).

	 Such awards are lump-sum payments that 
are calculated as the present value of the 
lost earnings and rehabilitation expenses 
that the injured party will incur as a result 
of the accident.

	 The estimated cost of claims includes 
direct expenses to be incurred in settling 
claims, net of the expected subrogation 
value and other recoveries. The group 
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that 
it has appropriate information regarding 
its claim exposures. However, given 
the uncertainty in establishing claims 
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome 
will prove to be different from the original 
liability established.

	 In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid 
claims (both reported and not), the group 
estimation techniques are a combination 
of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the 
loss ratio is defined as the ratio between 

the ultimate cost of insurance claims and 
insurance premiums earned in a particular 
financial year in relation to such claims) 
and an estimate based upon actual claims 
experience using predetermined formulae 
where greater weight is given to actual 
claims experience as time passes.

	 In estimating the liability for the cost of 
reported claims not yet paid the group 
considers any information available 
from loss adjusters and information on 
the cost of settling claims with similar 
characteristics in previous periods. Large 
claims are assessed on a case-by-case 
basis or projected separately in order to 
allow for the possible distortive effect of 
their development and incidence on the 
rest of the portfolio

	 Where possible, the group adopts multiple 
techniques to estimate the required level 
of provisions. This provides a greater 
understanding of the trends inherent 
in the experience being projected. 
The projections given by the various 
methodologies also assist in estimating 
the range of possible outcomes. The 
most appropriate estimation technique is 
selected considering the characteristics 
of the business class and the extent of the 
development of each accident year.

iii) Financial risk

The group is exposed to financial risk through its 
financial assets, financial liabilities (investment 
contracts and borrowings), reinsurance assets and 
insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial 
risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets 
are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising 
from its insurance and investment contracts.

The most important components of this financial 
risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, currency 
risk and credit risk.

These risks arise from open positions in interest 
rate, currency, and equity products, all of which 
are exposed to general and specific market 
movements. The risk that the group primarily faces 
due to the nature of its investments and liabilities 
is interest rate risk.
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a) Interest rate risk

Interest-rate risk is the only financial risk that has a 
materially different impact across the assets and 
liabilities categorised in the group’s assets and 
liabilities management (ALM) framework.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined 
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date.

A 5% increase or decrease is used when 
reporting interest rate risk internally, it represents 
management’s assessment of the reasonably 
possible change in interest rates.

5% change in 31-Dec-24 Scenario 1 Scenario 2

Interest rate Amount 5% increase 5% decrease

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Pre-tax profit 4,160,281  83,205,619  87,365,900  79,045,338

Shareholders’ equity 33,518,950  670,378,999  703,897,949  636,860,049

5% change in 31-Dec-23 Scenario 1 Scenario 2

Interest rate Amount 5% increase 5% decrease

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Pre-tax profit 1,142,240 22,844,807 23,987,047 21,702,567

Shareholders’ equity 23,924,150 478,483,007 502,407,157 454,558,857

Assuming no management actions, a series of 
such rises would increase pre-tax profit for 2024 
by GH¢4,160,281 (2023: GH¢1,142,240), while a 
series of such falls would decrease pre-tax profit 
for 2024 by GH¢4,160,281 (2023: GH¢1,142,240). 
Also, a series of such rises would increase the 
shareholders’ equity by GH¢33,518,950 (2023: 
GH¢23,924,150) whilst a series of such falls would 
decrease shareholders’ equity by GH¢33,518,950 
(2023: GH¢23,924,150).

b)	 Credit risk

The group has exposure to credit risk, which is 
the risk that counterparty will be unable to pay 
amounts in full when due. Key areas where the 
group is exposed to credit risk are:

– reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities,

– 	 amounts due from reinsurers in respect of 
claims already paid,

The group structures the levels of credit risk it 
accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a 
single counterparty, or groups of counterparties, 
and to geographical and industry segments. Such 
risks are subject to an annual or more frequent 
review. Limits on the level of credit risk by category 
and business lines are approved by the Board of 
Directors.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before 
collateral held

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 
31 December 2024 and 2023 is the same as the 
balances of the various financial assets in the 
statement of financial position listed below.
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2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Investments at amortised cost 315,578,702 184,256,946

Receivables 49,415,063 78,086,527

Reinsurance contract assets (4,896,358) 62,294,523

Cash and bank balances 122,951,980 92,472,794

483,049,387 417,110,790

Fair value hierarchy

The tables below analyse financial instruments not carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period, 
by level of fair value hierarchy as required by IFRS 13. The different levels are based on the extent that 
quoted prices are used in the calculation of the fair value of the financial instruments and the levels have 
been defined as follows:

Level 1 - fair values are based on quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for an identical 
instrument.

Level 2 - fair values are calculated using valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly 
(that is as quoted prices) or indirectly (that is derived from quoted prices).

This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar 
instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than 
active or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from 
market data.

Level 3 - fair values are based on valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category 
includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data 
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where 
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the 
instruments.

Group

2024 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Unlisted equities - 231,180,610 - 231,180,610

Reinsurance contract assets - - (4,896,358) (4,896,358)

- 231,180,610 (4,896,358) 226,284,252

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities              -             - 156,176,043 156,176,043
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2023 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Unlisted equities - 210,816,548 -  210,816,548

Reinsurance contract assets - -  62,294,523  62,294,523

- 210,816,548 62,294,523 273,111,071

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities - - 161,333,656  161,333,656

The listed equity securities were valued using the stock market prices. The unlisted equity securities 
were valued by Brighton and Walton Advisors. The market comparable approach was used in the 
determination of the values of the unlisted equities.

The fair valuation of the unlisted equities was based on the 31 December 2023 financial statements of 
investee companies as their 2024 financial statements were unavailable. These investee companies are 
Ghana International Bank, WAICA Reinsurance PLC, Broll Ghana Limited, Accra City Hotel Limited and 
African Reinsurance Corporation.

In performing the valuation, consideration was given to events after 31 December 2024.

Company

2024 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Unlisted equities - 231,180,610 - 231,180,610

Reinsurance contract assets - - (4,896,358) (4,896,358)

- 231,180,610 (4,896,358) 226,284,252

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities         -           - 156,176,043 156,176,043

2023 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Unlisted equities - 210,816,548 - 210,816,548

Reinsurance contract assets - - 62,294,523 62,294,523

-  210,816,548 62,294,523 273,111,071

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities - - 161,333,656 161,333,656

c) Liquidity risk

The group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources mainly from claims arising from 
insurance contracts. Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due 
at a reasonable cost. The group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will maintain 
adequate liquidity to meets its liabilities when due. Please refer to note 40 for the details of the insurance 
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liabilities which may have an impact on the liquidity risk.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the group under financial liabilities by remaining 
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date.

Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities

2024
Carrying 
amount Up to one year

More than 
one year Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Financial assets

Investments at amortised cost 315,578,702 315,578,702 - 315,578,702

Receivables 49,415,063 49,415,063 - 49,415,063

Reinsurance contract assets (4,896,358) (4,896,358) - (4,896,358)

Cash and bank balances 122,951,980 122,951,980        - 122,951,980

Total undiscounted assets 483,049,387 483,049,387        - 483,049,387

Financial liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities 156,176,043 156,176,043 - 156,176,043

Trade and other payables 119,604,941 119,604,941 - 119,604,941

Lease liabilities 627,204 627,204 - 627,204

Total undiscounted liabilities 276,408,188 276,408,188 - 276,408,188

Total liquidity gap 206,641,199 206,641,199          - 206,641,199

2023 Carrying amount Up to one year
More than one 

year Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Financial assets

Investments at amortised cost 184,256,946 184,256,946 - 184,256,946

Other receivables 78,086,527 78,086,527 - 78,086,527

Reinsurance contract assets 62,294,523 62,294,523 - 62,294,523

Cash and bank balances 92,472,794 92,472,794          - 92,472,794

Total undiscounted assets 417,110,790 417,110,790          - 417,110,790

Financial liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities 161,333,656 161,333,656 - 161,333,656

Trade and other payables 66,532,632 66,532,632 - 66,532,632

Borrowing 14,649,408 14,649,408  - 14,649,408

Lease liability 1,728,240 1,728,240 - 1,728,240

Total undiscounted liabilities 244,243,936 244,243,936 - 244,243,936

Total liquidity gap 172,866,854 172,866,854         - 172,866,854
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d) Currency risk

The group operates locally and its exposures to foreign exchange risk arise primarily with respect to 
the US dollar, the Euro, and the UK pound due to the reinsurance businesses undertaken with foreign 
based Reinsurers as well as policies undertaken in foreign currencies. The group receives claims from 
its reinsurers in foreign currencies and has some investments in foreign currencies which mitigates the 
foreign currency exchange rate risk for these operations.

As a result, foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in other 
currencies.

The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the cedi against the 
relevant foreign currencies. A 10% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally 
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible 
change in foreign exchange rates. For each sensitivity the impact of change in a single factor is shown, 
with other assumptions unchanged.

31-Dec-24 Scenario 1 Scenario 2

10% change in 
exchange rate Amount 10% increase 10% decrease

2024 GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Pre-tax profit/(loss) 8,320,562 83,205,619 91,526,181 74,885,057

Shareholders’ equity 67,037,900 670,378,999 737,416,899 603,341,099

31-Dec-23 Scenario 1 Scenario 2

10% change in 
exchange rate Amount 10% increase 10% decrease

2023 GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Pre-tax profit/(loss) 2,284,481 22,844,806 25,129,287 20,560,326

Shareholders’ equity 47,848,301 478,483,007 526,331,308 430,634,706

Assuming no management actions, a series of such rises would increase pre-tax profit for 2024 by 
GH¢8,320,562 (2023: GH¢2,284,481), while a series of such falls would decrease pre-tax profit for 2024 
by GH¢8,320,562 (2023: GH¢2,284,481). Also, a series of such rises would increase the shareholders’ 
equity by GH¢67,037,900 (2023: GH¢47,848,301), whilst a series of such falls would decrease 
shareholders’ equity by GH¢67,037,900 (2023: GH¢47,848,301).

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

2024 2024 2023 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Selling Buying Selling Buying

US Dollar 14,7074 14.6927 8.5803 8.5717

Euro 15.2217 15.2065 10.3178 10.3058

GB Pound 18.4107 18.3908 9.1502 9.1412
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4.	 New and amended IFRS Accounting 
Standards that are effective for the current 
year

4.1 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of 
Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures titled 
Supplier Finance Arrangements

	 The group has adopted the amendments 
to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures titled 
Supplier Finance Arrangements for the 
first time in the current year.

	 The amendments add a disclosure 
objective to IAS 7 stating that an entity is 
required to disclose information about 
its supplier finance arrangements that 
enables users of financial statements to 
assess the effects of those arrangements 
on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. 
In addition, IFRS 7 is amended to add 
supplier finance arrangements as an 
example within the requirements to 
disclose information about an entity’s 
exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

	 The amendments contain specific 
transition provisions for the first annual 
reporting period in which the group applies 
the amendments. Under the transitional 
provisions an entity is not required to 
disclose:

·	 comparative information for any reporting 
periods presented before the beginning of 
the annual reporting period in which the 
entity first applies those amendments.

·	  the information otherwise required by IAS 
7:44H(b)(ii)–(iii) as at the beginning of the 
annual reporting period in which the entity 
first applies those amendments.

	 In the current year, the group has applied 
a number of amendments to IFRS 
Accounting Standards issued by the 
IASB that are mandatorily effective for an 
accounting period that begins on or after 1 
January 2024. Their adoption has not had 
any material impact on the disclosures or 
on the amounts reported in these financial 
statements.

	 Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of 
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

	 The group has adopted the amendments 
to IAS 1, published in January 2020, for the 
first time in the current year.

	 The amendments affect only the 
presentation of liabilities as current or 
non-current in the statement of financial 
position and not the amount or timing of 
recognition of any asset, liability, income 
or expenses, or the information disclosed 
about those items.

	 The amendments clarify that the 
classification of liabilities as current or 
non-current is based on rights that are in 
existence at the end of the reporting period, 
specify that classification is unaffected by 
expectations about whether an entity will 
exercise its right to defer settlement of a 
liability, explain that rights are in existence 
if covenants are complied with at the end 
of the reporting period, and introduce a 
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear 
that settlement refers to the transfer to the 
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, 
other assets or services.

	 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of 
Financial Statements— Non-current 
Liabilities with Covenants

	 The group has adopted the amendments 
to IAS 1, published in November 2022, for 
the first time in the current year.

	 The amendments specify that only 
covenants that an entity is required to 
comply with on or before the end of the 
reporting period affect the entity’s right to 
defer settlement of a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date 
(and therefore must be considered in 
assessing the classification of the liability 
as current or non-current). Such covenants 
affect whether the right exists at the end of 
the reporting period, even if compliance 
with the covenant is assessed only 
after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant 
based on the entity’s financial position 
at the reporting date that is assessed for 
compliance only after the reporting date).
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	 The IASB also specifies that the right to 
defer settlement of a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date 
is not affected if an entity only has to 
comply with a covenant after the reporting 
period. However, if the entity’s right to 
defer settlement of a liability is subject 
to the entity complying with covenants 
within twelve months after the reporting 
period, an entity discloses information 
that enables users of financial statements 
to understand the risk of the liabilities 
becoming repayable within twelve months 
after the reporting period. This would 
include information about the covenants 
(including the nature of the covenants 
and when the entity is required to comply 
with them), the carrying amount of related 
liabilities and facts and circumstances, if 
any, that indicate that the entity may have 
difficulties complying with the covenants.

	 Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases—
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

	 The group has adopted the amendments 
to IFRS 16 for the first time in the current 
year.

	 The amendments to IFRS 16 add 
subsequent measurement requirements 
for sale and leaseback transactions 
that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
to be accounted for as a sale. The 
amendments require the seller-lessee to 
determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised 
lease payments’ such that the seller-
lessee does not recognise a gain or loss that 
relates to the right of use retained by the 
seller-lessee, after the commencement 
date.

	 The amendments do not affect the gain 
or loss recognised by the seller-lessee 
relating to the partial or full termination of 
a lease. Without these new requirements, 
a seller-lessee may have recognised a 
gain on the right of use it retains solely 
because of aremeasurement of the lease 
liability (for example, following a lease 
modification or change in the lease term) 
applying the general requirements in IFRS 
16. This could have been particularly the 

case in a leaseback that includes variable 
lease payments that do not depend on an 
index or rate.

	 As part of the amendments, the IASB 
amended an Illustrative Example in IFRS 
16 and added a new example to illustrate 
the subsequent measurement of a right-
of-use asset and lease liability in a sale 
and leaseback transaction with variable 
lease payments that do not depend on 
an index or rate. The illustrative examples 
also clarify that the liability that arises 
from a sale and leaseback transaction 
that qualifies as a sale applying IFRS 15 is 
a lease liability.

	 A seller-lessee applies the amendments 
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to 
sale and leaseback transactions entered 
into after the date of initial application, 
which is defined as the beginning of the 
annual reporting period in which the entity 
first applied IFRS 16.

	 4.2 New and revised IFRS Accounting 
Standards in issue but not yet effective

	 At the date of authorisation of these 
financial statements, the group has not 
applied the following new and revised 
IFRS Accounting Standards that have 
been issued but are not yet effective (and 
(in some cases) have not yet been adopted 
by the (relevant body)):

Amendments to  
IAS 21

Lack of 
Exchangeability

IFRS 18 Presentation 
and Disclosures 
in Financial 
Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries 
without Public 
Accountability: 
Disclosures

	 The directors do not expect that the 
adoption of the standards listed above will 
have a material impact on the financial 
statements of the group in future periods, 
except if indicated below.
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	 Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of 
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
titled Lack of Exchangeability

	 The amendments specify how to assess 
whether a currency is exchangeable, and 
how to determine the exchange rate when 
it is not.

	 The amendments state that a currency 
is exchangeable into another currency 
when an entity is able to obtain the other 
currency within a time frame that allows 
for a normal administrative delay and 
through a market or exchange mechanism 
in which an exchange transaction would 
create enforceable rights and obligations.

	 An entity assesses whether a currency is 
exchangeable into another currency at 
a measurement date and for a specified 
purpose. If an entity is able to obtain no 
more than an insignificant amount of the 
other currency at the measurement date 
for the specified purpose, the currency is 
not exchangeable into the other currency.

	 The assessment of whether a currency 
is exchangeable into another currency 
depends on an entity’s ability to obtain the 
other currency and not on its intention or 
decision to do so.

	 When a currency is not exchangeable into 
another currency at a measurement date, 
an entity is required to estimate the spot 
exchange rate at that date. An entity’s 
objective in estimating the spot exchange 
rate is to reflect the rate at which an orderly 
exchange transaction would take place at 
the measurement date between market 
participants under prevailing economic 
conditions.

	 The amendments do not specify how 
an entity estimates the spot exchange 
rate to meet that objective. An entity 
can use an observable exchange rate 
without adjustment or another estimation 
technique. Examples of an observable 
exchange rate include:

·	 a spot exchange rate for a purpose other 
than that for which an entity assesses 
exchangeability.

·	 the first exchange rate at which an entity 
is able to obtain the other currency for the 
specified purpose after exchangeability of 
the currency is restored (first subsequent 
exchange rate).

	 An entity using another estimation 
technique may use any observable 
exchange rate—including rates from 
exchange transactions in markets or 
exchange mechanisms that do not create 
enforceable rights and obligations—and 
adjust that rate, as necessary, to meet the 
objective as set out above.

	 When an entity estimates a spot 
exchange rate because a currency is not 
exchangeable into another currency, the 
entity is required to disclose information 
that enables users of its financial 
statements to understand how the 
currency not being exchangeable into the 
other currency affects, or is expected to 
affect, the entity’s financial performance, 
financial position and cash flows.

	 The amendments add a new appendix as 
an integral part of IAS 21. The appendix 
includes application guidance on 
the requirements introduced by the 
amendments. The amendments also add 
new Illustrative Examples accompanying 
IAS 21, which illustrate how an entity 
might apply some of the requirements 
in hypothetical situations based on the 
limited facts presented.

	 In addition, the IASB made consequential 
amendments to IFRS 1 to align with and 
refer to the revised IAS 21 for assessing 
exchangeability.

	 The amendments are effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2025, with earlier application 
permitted. An entity is not permitted to 
apply the amendments retrospectively. 
Instead, an entity is required to apply the 
specific transition provisions included in 
the amendments.

	 The directors of the company anticipate 
that the application of these amendments 
may have an impact on the group’s 
consolidated financial statements in 
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future periods.

	 IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures 
in Financial Statements

	 IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, carrying forward 
many of the requirements in IAS 1 
unchanged and complementing them with 
new requirements. In addition, some IAS 1 
paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and 
IFRS 7. Furthermore, the IASB has made 
minor amendments to

	 IAS 7 and IAS 33 Earnings per Share.

	 IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to:

·	 present specified categories and defined 
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss

·	 provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures (MPMs) in 
the notes to the financial statements

·	 improve aggregation and disaggregation.

	 An entity is required to apply IFRS 18 
for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier 
application permitted. The amendments 
to IAS 7 and IAS 33, as well as the revised 
IAS 8 and IFRS 7, become effective when 
an entity applies IFRS 18. IFRS 18 requires 
retrospective application with specific 
transition provisions.

	 The directors of the company anticipate 
that the application of these amendments 
may have an impact on the group’s 
consolidated financial statements in 
future periods.

	 IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public 
Accountability: Disclosures

	 IFRS 19 permits an eligible subsidiary to 
provide reduced disclosures when applying 
IFRS Accounting Standards in its financial 
statements.

	 A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced 
disclosures if it does not have public 
accountability and its ultimate or any 
intermediate parent produces consolidated 
financial statements available for public use 
that comply with IFRS Accounting Standards.

	 IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that 
are eligible and sets out the disclosure 
requirements for subsidiaries that elect to 
apply it.

	 An entity is only permitted to apply IFRS 19 if, at 
the end of the reporting period:

·	 it is a subsidiary (this includes an 
intermediate parent)

·	 it does not have public accountability, and

·	 its ultimate or any intermediate parent 
produces consolidated financial 
statements available for public use that 
comply with IFRS Accounting Standards.

A subsidiary has public accountability if:

·	 its debt or equity instruments are traded in 
a public market, or it is in the process of 
issuing such instruments for trading in a 
public market (a domestic or foreign stock 
exchange or an over-the-counter market, 
including local and regional markets), or

·	  it holds assets in a fiduciary capacity 
for a broad group of outsiders as one 
of its primary businesses (for example, 
banks, credit unions, insurance entities, 
securities brokers/dealers, mutual funds 
and investment banks often meet this 
second criterion).

	 IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public 
Accountability: Disclosures

	 Eligible entities can apply IFRS 19 in their 
consolidated, separate or individual 
financial statements. An eligible 
intermediate parent that does not apply 
IFRS 19 in its consolidated financial 
statement may do so in its separate 
financial statements.

	 The new standard is effective for reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2027 with earlier application permitted. 
If an entity elects to apply IFRS 19 for a 
reporting period earlier than the reporting 
period in which it first applies IFRS 18, 
it is required to apply a modified set of 
disclosure requirements set out in an 
appendix to IFRS 19. If an entity elects 
to apply IFRS 19 for an annual reporting 



2024 ANNUAL REPORT
SIC INSURANCE (PLC)

98

period before it applied the amendments to IAS 21, it is not required to apply the disclosure 
requirements in IFRS 19 with regard to Lack of Exchangeability.

	 The directors of the company do not anticipate that IFRS 19 will be applied for purposes of the 
consolidated financial statements of the group.

5.	 Segment information

Segmental information is presented in respect of the group’s business segments. The primary format and 
business segments are based on the group’s management and internal reporting structure. The group’s 
results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis.

The group does not have a geographical segment.

5a. Segment information

Class of business

 2024 Motor Fire Accident
Marine 

&Aviation Bonds Engineering Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Insurance Revenue 144,578,273 226,798,260 47,132,359 29,937,832 102,163,806 8,872,662 559,483,192

Insurance Service Expense (56,015,776) (56,747,626) (13,640,392) (3,996,377) (813,736) (10,218,295) (141,432,202)

Insurance Service 
Results before 
reinsurance contracts 
held 88,562,497 170,050,634 33,491,967 25,941,455 101,350,070 (1,345,633) 418,050,990

Net expense from 
reinsurance contracts held (9,183,814) (113,242,814) (14,556,818) (7,418,225) (1,880,522) 8,565,921 (137,716,272)

Insurance Service 
Results 79,378,683 56,807,820 18,935,149 18,523,230 99,469,548 7,220,288 280,334,718

Finance expense from 
Insurance (2,826,266) 1,568,814 (323,942) (2,308,790) (3,299) 74,040 (3,819,442)

Finance Income from 
Reinsurance 235,249 148,193 110,707 22,236 8,385 (19,621) 505,149

Net insurance financial 
result (2,591,017) 1,717,007 (213,235) (2,286,554) 5,086 54,419 (3,314,293)

Net Insurance Result 76,787,666 58,524,827 18,721,914 16,236,676 99,474,634 7,274,707 277,020,425



2024 ANNUAL REPORT
SIC INSURANCE (PLC)

99

Class of business

2023  Motor  Fire  Accident
Marine &
Aviation Bonds Engineering Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Insurance Revenue 127,376,369 128,411,066 30,991,334 23,443,381 53,860,059 9,108,629 373,190,838

Insurance Service 
Expense (76,227,927) (22,226,184) (11,012,313) (6,044,264) (101,368) (897,104) (116,509,160)

Insurance Service Results 
before reinsurance 
contracts held 51,148,442 106,184,882 19,979,021 17,399,117 53,758,691 8,211,525 256,681,678

Net expense from 
reinsurance contracts 
held (248,101) (84,391,178) (4,565,260) (10,482,484) (1,428,099) (4,610,040) (105,725,162)

Insurance Service Results 50,900,341 21,793,704 15,413,761 6,916,633 52,330,592 3,601,485 150,956,516

Finance expense from 
Insurance (1,747,525) (789,344) (480,755) (1,103,949) (86,706) (250,348) (4,458,627)

Finance Income from 
Reinsurance 138,776 265,590 81,367 74,295 1,778 15,280 577,086

Net insurance financial 
result (1,608,749) (523,754) (399,388) (1,029,654) (84,928) (235,068) (3,881,541)

Net Insurance Result 49,291,592 21,269,950 15,014,373 5,886,979 52,245,664 3,366,417 147,074,975

6.	 Insurance revenue

The following tables present an analysis of the insurance revenue recognised in the period.

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Marine and Aviation 29,937,832 23,443,381 29,937,832 23,443,381

Bonds 102,163,806 53,860,059 102,163,806 53,860,059

Engineering 8,872,662 9,108,629 8,872,662 9,108,629

Fire 226,798,260 128,411,066 226,798,260 128,411,066

Motor 144,578,273 127,376,369 144,578,273 127,376,369

Accident 47,132,359 30,991,334 47,132,359 30,991,334

Total 559,483,192 373,190,838 559,483,192 373,190,838
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7.	 Insurances service expenses

The tables below show an analysis of insurance service expenses recognised in the period.

Group and Company

2024
Incurred 

claims and 
other incurred 

insurance 
service 

expenses

Changes 
that relate to 

past service - 
adjustment to 

the LIC

Changes 
that relate to 

future service 
- losses on 

onerous 
groups of 

contracts and 
reversal of 

such losses

Incurred 
claims and 

insurance 
contracts 
expenses

Insurance 
acquisition 
cash flows

Total 
insurance 

service 
expense

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Marine and 
Aviation 592,847 885,630 (606,603) 871,874 3,124,503 3,996,377

Bonds 103,876 (59,796) - 44,080 769,656 813,736

Engineering 1,440,585 7,385,156 - 8,825,741 1,392,554 10,218,295

Fire 16,671,541 19,129,243 - 35,800,784 20,946,842 56,747,626

Motor 38,433,224 (9,683,058) - 28,750,166 27,265,610 56,015,776

Accident 11,803,339 (3,929,657)               - 7,873,682 5,766,710 13,640,392

Total 69,045,412 13,727,518 (606,603) 82,166,327 59,265,875 141,432,202

Incurred 
claims 

and other 
incurred 

insurance 
service 

expenses

Changes 
that relate to 

past service - 
adjustment to 

the LIC

Changes 
that relate to 

future service 
- losses on 

onerous 
groups of 

contracts and 
reversal of 

such losses

Insurance 
acquisition 
cash flows 

expenses

Total 
Insurance 

service 
expenses2023

Incurred 
claims and 

insurance 
contracts 
expenses

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fire 10,279,966 (2,930,124) - 7,349,842  13,049,649  20,399,491

Motor 30,825,583 15,379,321 - 46,204,904  18,539,485  64,744,389

Accident 6,213,558  (674,239) - 5,539,319  4,096,279  9,635,598

Marine and 
Aviation 4,964,204 (2,766,800) 606,603 2,804,007  2,543,363  5,347,370

Bonds  (34,931)  (556,865) - (591,796) 840,246 248,450

Engineering 617,540 (1,157,711)           - (540,171)  1,571,525  1,031,354

52,865,920 7,293,582 606,603 60,766,105  40,640,547  101,406,652

Other 
provisions 15,102,507             -          - 15,102,507             -  15,102,507

Total 67,968,427 7,293,582 606,603 75,868,612 40,640,547  116,509,159
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8.	 Net expense from reinsurance contracts held

An analysis of allocation of reinsurance premiums paid and amounts recovered from reinsurers are 
presented in the tables below:

Group and Company

Amounts relating to the changes in the 
remaining coverage

 2024
Claims 

Recovered

Changes 
that relate to 
past service- 
adjustments 

to incurred 
claims

Movement in 
loss recovery 
component-

adjustment to 
reinsurance ARC 

(PAA)

Amounts 
recoverable 

from 
reinsurers 

for incurred 
claims

Contracts 
measured 

under the PAA

Total Net 
expenses/ 

income

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Aviation and 
Marine

1,017,744 11,961,521 (200,233) 12,779,031 (20,197,256) (7,418,225)

Bonds (129,665) 65,500 - (64,165) (1,816,357) (1,880,522)

Engineering 928,552 9,639,716 - 10,568,268 (2,002,347) 8,565,921

Fire 1,764,604 16,352,054 - 18,116,658 (131,359,472) (113,242,814)

Motor (2,224,344) 2,820,297 - 595,952 (9,779,766) (9,183,814)

Accident 315,084 3,671,154               - 3,986,239 (18,543,057) (14,556,818)

Total 1,671,975 44,510,241 (200,233) 45,981,983 (183,698,254) (137,716,272)

2023

Amounts 
recoverable 
for incurred 

claims 
and other 

incurred 
insurance 

service 
expenses

Changes in 
amounts 

recoverable 
that relate to 

past service – 
adjustments 

to incurred 
claims

Movement in 
Loss Recovery 

Component 
adjustment to 

Reinsurance

Total 
amounts 

recovered 
from 

reinsurers

Allocation of 
reinsurance 

premiums

Net income 
from 

reinsurance 
contracts held

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fire (1,115,962) 5,981,872 - 4,865,910 (95,529,423)  (90,663,513)

Motor 1,400,734 1,593,960 - 2,994,694 (7,103,065)  (4,108,371)

Accident  (196,998) 1,735,830 - 1,538,832 (8,087,702)  (6,548,870)

Marine and 
Aviation  895,539 1,031,652 200,233 2,127,424 (15,352,235)  (13,224,811)

Bonds 61,385  106,440 -  167,825 (1,812,257)  (1,644,432)

Engineering  (228,149)  128,702           -  (99,447) (4,382,402)  (4,481,849)

816,549  10,578,456  200,233 11,595,238 (132,267,084)  (120,671,846)

Other 
provisions 14,946,685               -            - 14,946,685                   -  14,946,685

Total 15,763,234 10,578,456 200,233 26,541,923 (132,267,084) (105,725,161)
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9.	 Finance expense from insurance contracts issued

Group and Company

2024
Interest accreted

Effect of changes in 
interest rates and other 

financial assumptions
Total insurance finance 

expenses recognised in P&L

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Aviation and Marine (2,915,144) 606,354 (2,308,790)

Bonds (3,299) - (3,299)

Engineering 68,264 5,777 74,040

Fire 1,070,347 498,467 1,568,814

Motor (4,301,585) 1,475,319 (2,826,266)

Accident (611,804) 287,863 (323,942)

Total (6,693,222) 2,873,780 (3,819,442)

2023 Interest accreted

Effect of changes in 
interest rates and other 

financial assumptions
Total insurance finance 

expenses recognised in P&L

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fire  (789,344)  -  (789,344)

Motor (2,085,124)  337,599 (1,747,525)

Accident  (536,728) 55,973  (480,755)

Marine and Aviation (1,105,593) 1,644 (1,103,949)

Bonds  (86,706)  -  (86,706)

Engineering  (250,348)          -  (250,348)

Total (4,853,843) 395,216 (4,458,627)

10.	Finance income from reinsurance contracts held

Group and Company

2024 Interest accreted

Effect of changes 
in interest rates 

and other financial 
assumptions

Change of risk of 
non-performance 

of reinsurer

Total reinsurance 
finance income 

recognised in P&L

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Aviation and Marine 22,139 - 96 22,236

Bonds 8,384 - 1 8,385

Engineering (19,697) - 76 (19,621)

Fire 185,655 (38,733) 1,270 148,193

Motor 262,804 (27,821) 266 235,249

Accident 123,508 (12,977) 176 110,707

Total 582,794 (79,530) 1,886 505,149
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2023 Interest accreted

Effect of changes 
in interest rates 

and other financial 
assumptions

Change of risk of 
non-performance 

of reinsurer

Total reinsurance 
finance income 

recognised in P&L

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fire  265,590  - -  265,590

Motor  141,952  (3,175) -  138,777

Accident 81,367  - -  81,367

Marine and aviation 74,295  - -  74,295

Bonds 1,778  - -  1,778

Engineering 15,280          -         - 15,280

Total 580,262 (3,175)         - 577,087

11.	Brokerage and advisory fees

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Asset management fees 9,722,947 8,186,971 - -

Commission on equity trading 528,217 -  -  -

Commission of fixed income securities 
trading 1,159,815 - - -

Brokerage fees 444,888 2,149,417               -               -

11,855,867 10,336,388               -               -

12	 Other operating expenses

  Profit is stated after charging:

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Directors’ emoluments 1,121,948 1,074,469 902,860 804,140

Staff cost  106,449,460 93,283,793 99,009,657  84,346,299

Depreciation 10,964,453 8,925,572 10,748,858  8,716,473

Lease amortisation 1,990,907 1,704,468 1,699,551  1,413,113

Software amortisation 68,521 81,542  13,070  13,070

Audit fees 443,863 350,760 270,000 230,000
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13.	Other income

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Rental income 1,081,218 973,972 1,081,218 973,972

Sale of stickers 5,312,400 4,999,573 5,312,400 4,999,573

Net medical income 4,227,496 3,602,017 4,227,496 3,602,017

Profit on disposal of PPE - 73,000 - 73,000

Profit on disposal of investment property 1,798,424 - 1,798,424 -

Revaluation gain– investment property 3,766,361 - 3,766,361 -

Gain on lease remeasurement - 281,184 - 281,184

Sundry income 11,984,360 7,439,193 9,848,706 5,867,429

Modification gain 3,335,310 - 3,335,310 -

Gain on exchange                 - 7,140                -              -

31,505,569 17,376,079 29,369,915 15,797,175

14.	Investment income

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Dividend 2,180,769 2,350,148 2,180,769 2,350,148

Interest on fixed deposits 11,775,943 3,669,038 10,909,248 3,669,038

Interest on treasury bills 21,353,060 24,398,892 21,353,060 24,398,892

Statutory investments 896,510 348,447 896,510 348,447

Other investment income 70,477 1,762,012 70,477 85,604

36,276,759 32,528,537 35,410,064 30,852,129

15.	Finance cost

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Interest on borrowings 1,767,685 1,910,181 1,767,685 1,910,181

Finance lease 438,746 550,668 438,746 504,036

2,206,431 2,460,849 2,206,431 2,414,217
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16.	Impairment loss

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Impairment on financial assets -DDEP - 6,199,749 - 6,299,101

Impairment on trade and other receivables 26,595,308 162,642 26,595,308 -

Impairment on investment – SIC FSL 7,484,262 7,484,262 7,484,262 7,484,262

34,079,570 13,846,653 34,079,570 13,783,363

Impairment loss due to Government of Ghana Domestic Debt Exchange (DDE)

On 5th December 2022, the Government of Ghana launched the Ghana’s Domestic Debt Exchange 
programme. This was an invitation for the voluntary exchange of approximately GHS137 billion of the 
domestic notes and bonds of the Republic, including E.S.L.A. and Daakye bonds, for a package of New 
Bonds to be issued by the Republic.

This was part of a comprehensive programme that aimed at bringing the public debt stock back on a 
sustainable path as part of a requirement to allow Ghana’s economy to recover from its economic crisis 
and unlock financial assistance from the International Monetary Fund (IMF).

Under the exchange programme, eligible bond holders were put into three categories as follows:

·	 Category A: These includes collective Investment Schemes (CIS) and natural persons less than 
59years old as at 31st January 2023.

·	 Category B: Eligible Holders that are natural persons 59 years old or older as of 31st January 
2023.

·	 Category C: Eligible holders that are not Category A or B. This includes corporate entities and 
financial institutions not defined as CIS.

The company falls under category C.

The key areas of the memorandum that relates to Category C Eligible Bond Holders were:
·	 The General category C holders will receive new bonds for securities which are due in 2023 and 

later than 2023.

·	 Interest on the new bonds will be paid in Cash and in kind. The Payment in Kind (PIK) would be 
accrued and capitalized up to 10th February 2025 after which Interest payment would be fully 
cash.

·	 GOG will not make principal payments in cash on the Eligible Bonds maturing prior to the 
Settlement Date.

Reconciliation of Government of Ghana Bonds

The following is a reconciliation of the bonds eligible under the government exchange program and the 
New Bonds issued.
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GH¢

Dec-24

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2024 298,564,776

Modification gain 3,335,301

Fair value as at 31 December 301,900,077

Impairment of Managed Funds in SIC FSL

Funds that have been invested in SIC FSL fund management portfolio have become irrecoverable. 
Management has taken a decision to write off these investments.

17.	Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the group 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares 
purchased by the group and held as treasury shares.

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Profit attributable to the group’s equity 
Holders 53,413,669 12,812,982 54,516,129 15,060,342

Weighted average number of ordinary 
shares in issue 195,645,000 195,645,000 195,645,000 195,645,000

Basic earnings per share 0.2730 0.0655 0.2786 0.0770

18.	Taxation - Group

(a)	 Current tax

At 1-Jan
Charge for the 

year
Payment during 

the year At 31-Dec

Income tax GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Up to 2022  5,147,584  -  -  5,147,584

2023  5,080,053  -  -  5,080,053

2024               - 33,310,369 (19,089,766)  14,220,603

10,227,637 33,310,369 (19,089,766) 24,448,240
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(b) Growth and sustainability levy

At 1-Jan
Charge for the 

year
Payment during 

the year At 31-Dec

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Up to 2022  1,554,956 - -  1,554,956

2023  (400,538) - -  (400,538)

2024               - 4,231,876  (2,162,768) 2,069,108

1,154,418 4,231,876  (2,162,768) 3,223,526

Company

(a)	 Current tax

At 1-Jan
Charge for the 

year
Payment during the 

year At 31-Dec

Income tax GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Up to 2022  2,993,836 - - 2,993,836

2023 5,082,632  - - 5,082,632

2024                -  33,079,508  (19,067,381) 14,012,127

8,076,468 33,079,508 (19,067,381)  22,088,595

(b) Growth and sustainability levy

At 1-Jan
Charge for the 

year
Payment during the 

year At 31-Dec

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Up to 2022  294,092 - - 294,092

2023 (412,395) - -  (412,395)

2024               -  4,202,721  (2,162,768) 2,039,953

(118,303) 4,202,721 (2,162,768)  1,921,650

(c) Income tax

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Corporate tax  33,310,368 15,139,900 33,079,508  15,048,523

Deferred tax (7,750,294) (6,370,060) (7,743,946) (6,356,443)

25,560,074 8,769,840 25,335,562 8,692,080
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(d) Deferred tax

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January  61,421,198 46,941,697 61,611,481  47,118,363

Charge to P&L  (7,750,294)  (6,370,060) (7,743,946)  (6,356,443)

Charge to OCI 42,536,574 20,849,561 42,536,574 20,849,561

Balance at 31 December 96,207,478 61,421,198 96,404,109 61,611,481

(d) Deferred tax

Group

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2024

Net at 
1/1/24

Recognised 
in profit/

loss
Recognised 

in OCI
Net at 

31/12/24
Deferred tax 

assets
Deferred tax 

liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accelerated 
depreciation (1,899,185)  (4,949,113)

-
(6,848,298)  (6,848,298)

-

Property, plant & 
equipment  (190,283)  (6,348)

-
 (196,631) (196,631)

-

IBNR Provision (6,361,454)  (1,442,285) - (7,803,739)  (7,803,739) -

Risk adjustment  (904,233) (18,201) -  (922,434) (922,434) -

Employee Benefit 
Obligation (5,796,105)  999,888

-
(4,796,217)  (4,796,217)

-

Right-of-Use 
Asset  (228,469)  409,306

-
 180,837 -  180,837

Impairment on 
investment (12,311,915) -

-
 (12,311,915) (12,311,915)

Investment 
property 
(revaluation gain) 15,396,432  (2,743,541)

-

12,652,891

-

12,652,891

Revaluation 
surplus 31,218,247 -  40,647,417 71,865,664

-
71,865,664

Fair valuation 
(Fair value 
reserves) 44,501,215 - 559,105 45,060,320

-

45,060,320

Other reserves (2,003,052)                   -  1,330,052  (673,000) (673,000)                  -

Net tax liabilities 
(assets) 61,421,198  (7,750,294) 42,536,574 96,207,478 (33,552,234) 129,759,712
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Company

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2024

Net at 
1/1/24

Recognised 
in profit/

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net at 
31/12/24

Deferred tax 
assets

Deferred tax 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accelerated 
depreciation  (1,899,185)  (4,949,113) (6,848,298)  (6,848,298)

IBNR provision  (6,361,454)  (1,442,285) (7,803,739)  (7,803,739)

Risk adjustment (904,233)  (18,201)  (922,434) (922,434)

Employee benefit 
obligation  (5,796,105)  999,888 (4,796,217)  (4,796,217)

Right-of-Use 
Asset (228,470)  409,306  180,836  180,836

Impairment on 
investment  (12,311,915) - (12,311,915)  (12,311,915)

Investment 
property 
(revaluation gain)

 15,396,433  (2,743,541) 12,652,892 12,652,892

Revaluation 
surplus  31,218,247 - 40,647,417 71,865,664 71,865,664

Fair valuation (fair 
value reserves)  44,501,215 -  559,105 45,060,320 45,060,320

Other reserves  (2,003,052)                 - 1,330,052  (673,000) (673,000)                 -

Net tax liabilities 
(assets)  61,611,481  (7,743,946) 42,536,574  96,404,109 (33,355,603)  129,759,712

Group

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2023

Net at 
1/1/23

Recognised 
in profit/

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net at 
31/12/23

Deferred tax 
assets

Deferred tax 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accelerated 
depreciation (2,106,956)  207,771 - (1,899,185)  (1,899,185) -

Property, plant & 
equipment (176,666)  (13,617) -  (190,283) (190,283) -

Intangible asset (3,668,694) (2,692,760) - (6,361,454)  (6,361,454) -

IBNR Provision -  (904,233) -  (904,233) (904,233) -

Employee Benefit 
Obligation (4,483,232) (1,312,873) - (5,796,105)  (5,796,105) -
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Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2023

Net at 
1/1/23

Recognised 
in profit/

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net at 
31/12/23

Deferred tax 
assets

Deferred tax 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Right-of-Use 
Asset (148,896)  (79,573) -  (228,469) (228,469) -

Impairment on 
investment (10,737,140) (1,574,775) - (12,311,915) (12,311,915) -

Investment 
property 
(revaluation gain)

15,396,432  -
-

15,396,432 - 15,396,432

Revaluation 
surplus 30,553,191 - 665,056 31,218,247 - 31,218,247

Fair valuation 
(Fair value 
reserves)

23,308,672 -  21,192,543 44,501,215 - 44,501,215

Other reserves (995,014)               - (1,008,038)  (2,003,052)  (2,003,052)                -

Net tax liabilities 
(assets) 46,941,697  (6,370,060) 20,849,561 61,421,198 (29,694,696) 91,115,894

Company

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2023

Net at 
1/1/23

Recognised 
in profit/

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net at 
31/12/23

Deferred tax 
assets

Deferred tax 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accelerated 
depreciation (2,106,956)  207,771 - (1,899,185)  (1,899,185) -

IBNR provision (3,668,694) (2,692,760) - (6,361,454)  (6,361,454) -

Risk Adjustment -  (904,233) -  (904,233) (904,233) -

Employee benefit 
obligation (4,483,232) (1,312,873) - (5,796,105)  (5,796,105) -

Right-of-Use 
Asset (148,897)  (79,573) -  (228,470) (228,470) -

Impairment on 
investment (10,737,140) (1,574,775) - (12,311,915) (12,311,915) -

Investment 
property 
(revaluation gain)

15,396,433 -
-

15,396,433 - 15,396,433

Revaluation 
surplus 30,553,191 - 665,056 31,218,247 - 31,218,247
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Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

31 December 
2023

Net at 
1/1/23

Recognised 
in profit/

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net at 
31/12/23

Deferred tax 
assets

Deferred tax 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fair valuation 
(available for sale 
reserves)

23,308,672 -  21,192,543 44,501,215 - 44,501,215

Other reserves  (995,014)                -  (1,008,038)  (2,003,052)  (2,003,052)                -

Net tax liabilities 
(assets)  47,118,363  (6,356,443)  20,849,561  61,611,481 (29,504,414)  91,115,895

19.	Property, plant, and equipment

Group

31 December 
2024 Leasehold 

buildings
Leasehold 

land
Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital Work 
in progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment  Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢  GH¢

Balance as at 1 
January. 139,713,025 4,380,314 20,003,482 3,657,189 3,282,034 29,770,375 200,806,419

Additions for the 
year 724,000 - 127,530 1,193,617 - 12,475,329 14,520,476

Derecognition (780,750) (840,000) - - - - (1,620,750)

Revaluation Gain 
on PPE 143,886,526 3,800,700 17,078,223 - - - 164,765,449

Disposal                  -               -                -               -               - (427,500) (427,500)

Balance as at 
31 December 283,542,801 7,341,014 37,209,235 4,850,806 3,282,034 41,818,204 378,044,094

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Balance as at 1 
January 28,249,136 658,799 828,973 3,066,962 - 22,336,917 55,140,787

Charge for the 
year 5,116,034 136,243 196,934 583,682 - 4,931,560 10,964,453

Derecognition (72,006) (57,030) - - - - (129,036)

Disposal             -            -             -             -              - (427,500) (427,500)

Balance as at 
31 December 33,293,164 738,012 1,025,907 3,650,644               - 26,840,977 65,548,704

Net book value 250,249,637 6,603,002 36,183,328 1,200,162 3,282,034 14,977,227 312,495,390
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Group

31 December 
2023

Leasehold 
buildings

Leasehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital 
work in 

progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Cost

Balance as at 1 
January 124,156,725 4,380,314 20,003,482 3,397,034 3,282,034 26,465,844 181,685,433

Additions for the 
year 16,834,300 - - 260,155 - 3,569,861 20,664,316

Adjustment (1,278,000) - - - - (42,318) (1,320,318)

Disposal             -            -              -             -            - (223,012) (223,012)

Balance as at 31 
December 139,713,025 4,380,314 20,003,482 3,657,189 3,282,034 29,770,375 200,806,419

Accumulated 
depreciation

Balance as at 1 
January 22,920,225 522,556 633,315 2,773,013 - 19,853,178 46,702,287

Charge for the 
year 5,584,511 136,243 195,658 293,949 - 2,715,211 8,925,572

Adjustment (255,600) - - - (8,460) (264,060)

Disposal               -           -           -            -               - (223,012) (223,012)

Balance as at 31 
December 28,249,136 658,799 828,973 3,066,962              - 22,336,917 55,140,787

Net book value 111,463,889 3,721,515 19,174,509 590,227 3,282,034 7,433,458 145,665,632

Company

2024
Leasehold 

buildings
Leasehold 

land
Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital 
Work in 

progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 
1st Jan.  139,713,025  4,380,314  20,003,482  3,247,516  3,282,034  27,605,047  198,231,418

Additions for the 
year  724,000  -  127,530  1,179,048  -  12,435,333  14,465,911

Derecognition  (780,750)  (840,000) - - - -  (1,620,750)

Revaluation 
Gain on PPE  143,886,526  3,800,700  17,078,223 - - -  164,765,449

Disposal             -             -              -           -           - (427,500)  (427,500)

Balance as at 
31 Dec 283,542,801 7,341,014 37,209,235 4,426,564 3,282,034 39,612,880 375,414,528
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2024
Leasehold 

buildings
Leasehold 

land
Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital 
Work in 

progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Balance as at 
1stJan.

 28,249,136  658,799  828,973  2,721,175  -  20,695,379 53,153,462

Charge for the 
year

 5,116,034  136,243  196,934  544,983 -  4,754,664 10,748,858

Derecognition  (72,006)  (57,031) - - -  - (129,037)

Disposal           -          -          -          -             -  (427,500) (427,500)

Balance as at 
31 Dec 33,293,164 738,011 1,025,907 3,266,158               - 25,022,543 63,345,783

Net book value 250,249,637 6,603,003 36,183,328 1,160,406 3,282,034 14,590,337 312,068,745

Company

31 December 
2023

Leasehold 
buildings

Leasehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital work 
in progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Cost

Balance as at 1 
January 124,156,725 4,380,314 20,003,482  2,987,361  3,282,034 24,364,254 179,174,170

Additions for the 
year 16,834,300  - - 260,155 3,506,123 20,600,578

Adjustment  (1,278,000)  (42,318)  (1,320,318)

Disposal                 -             -               -              -              - (223,012) (223,012)

Balance as at 31 
December 139,713,025 4,380,314 20,003,482  3,247,516  3,282,034 27,605,047 198,231,418

Accumulated 
depreciation

Balance as at 1 
January 22,920,225  522,556 633,315 2,427,226 - 18,420,739 44,924,061

Charge for the 
year 5,584,511  136,243  195,658 293,949 2,506,113 8,716,474

Adjustment  (8,464)  (8,464)

Disposal (255,600)          -           -            -              - (223,012) (478,612)
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31 December 
2023

Leasehold 
buildings

Leasehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings Computers

Capital work 
in progress

Other 
machinery 

& 
equipment Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 31 
December 28,249,136 658,799 828,973 2,721,175

             -
20,695,379 53,153,462

Net book value 111,463,889 3,721,515 19,174,509 526,341 3,282,034  6,909,671 145,077,956

20.	Intangible asset

Computer software Group Company

Cost 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 2,872,399 2,872,399 1,802,843 1,802,843

Additions              -              -               -              -

Balance as at 31 December 2,872,399 2,872,399 1,802,843 1,802,843

Amortisation

Balance as at 1 January 2,732,365 2,650,823 1,776,703 1,763,633

Charge for the year 68,521 81,542 13,070 13,070

Balance as at 31 December 2,800,886 2,732,365 1,789,773 1,776,703

Net book value 71,513 140,034 13,070 26,140

21.	Investment properties

Group and Company

Leasehold 
properties

Freehold land & 
buildings

2024

Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 53,689,056 11,756,000 65,445,056

Disposal (1,336,043) - (1,336,043)

Revaluation                 - 3,766,361 3,766,361

Balance as at 31 December 52,353,013 15,522,361 67,875,374

Leasehold 
properties

Freehold land & 
buildings

2023

Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 70,819,360 7,691,000 78,510,360

Additions 339,174 - 339,174

Revaluation (17,469,478) 4,065,000 (13,404,478)

Balance as at 31 December 53,689,056 11,756,000 65,445,056
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The Valuation Consultants (Broll Ghana Limited, KOA Consult, and Apex Property Surveying Consult 
Limited) adopted the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach, the Investment Method, and the Market 
Approach in valuing the properties of SIC Insurance PLC. According to management, the main reason for 
using these methods were because majority of the market value was in the land; availability of rental data 
on the property, use of the property being commercial; and finally, the availability of recent comparative 
transaction in the location of the subject properties.

22. Right of use assets

Group Company

Cost 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 12,485,895 9,051,027 11,029,112 7,594,244

Additions 2,295,029 3,434,868 2,295,029 3,434,868

Balance as at 31 December 14,780,924 12,485,895 13,324,141 11,029,112

Amortisation

Balance as at 1 January 7,303,919 5,599,451 6,138,496 4,725,383

Charge for the year 1,990,907 1,704,468 1,699,551 1,413,113

Balance as at 31 December 9,294,826 7,303,919 7,838,047 6,138,496

Net book value 5,486,098 5,181,976 5,486,094 4,890,616

23. Lease liabilities

Group Company

Cost 2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 6,517,653 4,459,907 5,804,497 3,464,448

Additions/adjustment 1,763,178 4,186,321 1,763,178 4,186,321

Remeasurement 537,044 537,044 -

Interest expense 438,746 550,668 438,746 504,036

Repayment of principal (3,313,086) (1,362,521) (3,313,086) (1,362,521)

Exchange loss on lease liabilities (462,437) 840,669 (462,437) 456,450

Write off (718,349) (2,157,391) (5,193) (1,444,237)

Balance as at 31 December 4,762,749 6,517,653 4,762,749 5,804,497

Breakdown

Current 627,204 1,728,240 627,204 1,728,240

Non-current 4,135,545 4,789,413 4,135,545 4,076,257

4,762,749 6,517,653 4,762,749 5,804,497
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24. Equity investments

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Equity shares 242,486,165 219,124,353 242,437,318 219,076,995

Mutual fund 277,240 208,600 277,240 208,600

242,763,405 219,332,953 242,714,558 219,285,595

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Equity securities:

Listed 11,305,555  8,307,805  11,256,708  8,260,447

Unlisted 231,180,610  210,816,548 231,180,610 210,816,548

Total equity investments 242,486,165 219,124,353 242,437,318 219,076,995

The listed equity securities were valued using the stock market prices. The unlisted equity securities 
were valued by Brighton and Walton Advisors. The market comparable approach was used in the 
determination of the values of the unlisted equities.

The fair valuation of the unlisted equities was based on the 31 December 2023 financial statements of 
investee companies as their 2024 financial statements were unavailable. These investee companies are 
Ghana International Bank, WAICA Reinsurance PLC, Broll Ghana Limited, Accra City Hotel Limited and 
African Reinsurance Corporation.

In performing the valuation, consideration was given to events after 31 December 2024.

a.	 Financial instruments classification summary

The group’s financial assets are summarized below by measurement category as follows:

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Equity investment (Note 24) 242,486,165 219,124,353 242,437,318 219,076,995

The group does not hold financial assets in the category of Fair value designated through income.

25.	Investment in subsidiary

2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 1 January 12,878,526 12,878,526

Additions during the year                   -                -
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2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Balance as at 31 
December 12,878,526 12,878,526

The subsidiary company 
is:

Nature of business Number of % Interest

shares Held

SIC Financial Services 
Limited

Investment advisory, 
asset

& fund management 3,000,000 70

Summary of the subsidiary’s financial statements as at 31 December 2024 is as shown in the table below:

SIC Financial Services Limited

2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Non-current assets 485,090 992,928

Current assets 49,567,213 46,741,701

Total assets 50,052,303 47,734,629

Non- current liabilities (196,632) 522,873

Current liabilities 44,248,133 40,109,985

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 20,111,349 21,542,608

Non-controlling interests (14,110,547) (14,440,837)

Total equity and liabilities 50,052,303 47,734,629

Revenue 11,855,867 10,336,388

Other income 2,135,654 2,623,077

Investment income 866,695 632,235

Operating expenses (15,707,008) (15,652,611)

Finance cost - (46,632)

Impairment loss - (63,290)

National Stabilization Levy (29,155) -

Income tax (224,512) (76,530)

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,102,459) (2,247,363)
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2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Other Comprehensive Income

Net change in fair value through OCI 1,490 -

Total comprehensive income (1,100,969) (2,247,363)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (771,722) (1,573,155)

Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests (330,737) (674,208)

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,102,459) (2,247,363)

Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the 
Company 1,043 -

Other comprehensive income attributable to the non-
controlling interests 447          -

Other comprehensive income for the year 1,490          -

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the 
Company (770,679) (1,573,155)

Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-
controlling interests (330,290) (674,208)

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,100,969) (2,247,363)

26.	Investment in associate

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 45,061,727 39,596,747 45,061,727 39,596,747

Share of associate loss (45,061,727) 5,464,980 (45,061,727) 5,464,980

                    - 45,061,727                  - 45,061,727

The associate company is:

Nature of business Number of shares % Interest held

SIC Life Insurance LTD Life assurance 2,000,000,000 20

As at reporting date (2024) the group’s share of loss of the associate exceeded its investment by GHS 
16,487,013. The carrying amount of the interest of the Group in the associate is deemed immaterial.

The summary financial information of the associate as required by IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in other 
entities, paragraph B16.
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2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Profit or loss after tax (307,743,698) 27,324,897

Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operations - -

Other comprehensive income                      -                -

Total comprehensive income (307,743,698) 27,324,897

The financial statement used for the equity accounting was the separate (non-consolidated) financial 
statement of SIC Life Insurance LTD, although SIC Life Insurance LTD has a 100% shareholding in SIC 
Savings and Loans Company Limited.

27.	Investments at amortised cost

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Ghana Gov’t treasury bills 194,238,670 152,827,600 190,766,803 152,827,600

Bank time deposits 121,340,032 31,429,346 111,133,274 44,951,420

315,578,702 184,256,946 301,900,077 197,779,020

Short term investments are made up of Government of Ghana treasury bills and bank time deposits with 
short term maturities, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash for meeting short term 
cash commitments.

Included in Ghana Gov’t Treasury Bills is a statutory deposit of GH¢8,420,117 (2023: GH¢ 7,523,606). 
The statutory deposit represents an escrow agreement between the National Insurance Commission 
(NIC) and SIC Insurance PLC. As part of the conditions for granting an insurance license to the company, 
the NIC required the company to deposit 10% of its minimum capital as a statutory deposit into an 
escrow account. These instruments are carried at purchase amount plus any accrued interest and the 
investments are not available for the day-to-day running of the company except under express consent 
of the regulator. The minimum amount is GH¢5,000,000.

28.	Receivables

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Accrued income and prepayments  389,786 774,047 - 678,289

Staff debtors 1,486,539 2,406,539  1,486,539 2,406,539

Sundry debtors 46,022,894 79,049,487  16,538,429 27,205,602

Net reinsurance prepaid (Note 28a) 74,364 (4,750,514) 74,364 (4,750,514)

Rent debtors 2,558,847 1,724,335  2,558,847 1,724,335

Impairment (1,117,367) (1,117,367)                -                -

49,415,063 78,086,527 20,658,179 27,264,251
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The Group measures the loss allowance for receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The 
expected credit losses on receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default 
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors 
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate 
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting 
date.

28a.	 Net reinsurance prepaid

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Receivables arising from 

reinsurance contracts:

Reinsurance premium prepaid 81,936  156,467 81,936  156,467

Less reinsurance commissions (7,572) (4,906,981) (7,572) (4,906,981)

Net reinsurance prepaid 74,364 (4,750,514) 74,364 (4,750,514)

Current portion 74,364 (4,750,514) 74,364 (4,750,514)

The carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The group’s receivables are non-interest-bearing assets. Management has assessed all receivables for 
impairment purposes, and no impairment loss was determined.

29.	Inventories

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Medical Stores 2,748,883 667,030 2,748,883 667,030

Stationery and printing stock 939,741 804,348 939,741 804,348

Computer stationery Stock 300,913 421,086 300,913 421,086

3,989,537 1,892,464 3,989,537 1,892,464

30.	Cash and bank balances

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Cash and bank balances 122,951,980 92,472,794 117,011,448 83,917,972
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31.	Stated capital

(a)	 The number of authorised shares is 500,000,000 of no-par value.
(b)	The number of shares issued is 195,645,000.
(c)	 The number of shares fully paid is 195,645,000.

Stated capital is made up as follows:

2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Issued and fully paid for cash 200 200

Transfer from retained earnings 42,600 42,600

Transfer from Revaluation reserve 24,957,200 24,957,200

25,000,000 25,000,000

There are no shares in treasury and no call or installment unpaid on any share.

32a. Revaluation reserve

The movement in the revaluation reserve account for the year is as follows:

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 124,207,929 125,895,388  124,207,929  125,895,388

Revaluation gains/(loss) 163,982,480  (1,022,403) 163,982,480  (1,022,403)

Derecognition of asset (708,744) - (708,744) -

Deferred tax effect (40,647,417) (665,056) (40,647,417) (665,056)

Balance at 31 December 246,834,248 124,207,929 246,834,248 124,207,929

32b. Retained earnings

The retained earnings is the cumulative profits or losses for the years less any distributions made.

33.  Contingency reserve

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 71,595,781  60,400,056  71,595,781  60,400,056

Transfer from retained 
earnings 16,784,496 11,195,725  16,784,496 11,195,725

Balance at 31 December 88,380,277 71,595,781 88,380,277 71,595,781

This represents sums set aside to cover fluctuation in securities and variations in statistical estimate in 
accordance with the Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061). The transfer from retained earnings to contingency 
reserve represents 3% of insurance revenue or 20% of profit after tax, whichever is higher.
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34. Fair value reserve

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 152,492,978  80,473,263 156,812,317  84,792,602

Fair valuation gain 23,430,454  93,212,258  23,428,964  93,212,258

Deferred tax effect (559,105) (21,192,543) (559,105) (21,192,543)

Change in fair value through OCI (447)                 -                   -                 -

Balance at 31 December 175,363,880 152,492,978 179,682,176 156,812,317

The fair value reserve is used to record the valuation gains and losses resulting from the valuation of the 
listed and unlisted equities.

35. Other reserves

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January (7,004,168) (3,904,376) (7,004,168) (3,904,376)

Actuarial Movement on Employee 
benefit 4,312,167 (4,107,830) 4,312,167 (4,107,830)

Deferred tax charge to OCI (1,330,052) 1,008,038 (1,330,052) 1,008,038

(4,022,053) (7,004,168) (4,022,053) (7,004,168)

36. Non-controlling interest

2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

Balance at 1 January 14,440,837 15,115,045

Change in fair value through OCI 447 -

Addition (330,737) (674,208)

Balance at 31 December 14,110,547 14,440,837

37.	Trade and other payables

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Deferred Income 263,700 - 263,700 -

Sundry creditors 119,341,241 66,532,632 79,896,953 30,685,856

119,604,941 66,532,632 80,160,653 30,685,856
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38. Borrowings

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

At 1 January 14,649,408 14,464,282 14,649,408 14,464,282

Repayment (14,649,408) (5,781,623) (14,649,408) (5,781,623)

Revaluation loss                    - 5,966,749                     - 5,966,749

                    - 14,649,408                     - 14,649,408

The company’s loan facility of GBP 2,000,000 with Ghana International Bank at interest rate 6.5%pa has 
been paid off.

39.  Customer advanced payment for contracts

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Insurance premium prepaid  23,418,568  80,942,026  23,418,568  80,942,026

Less insurance commissions (1,674,709) (4,615,424) (1,674,709) (4,615,424)

21,743,859 76,326,602 21,743,859 76,326,602

The above relates to gross insurance premiums received in advance being adjusted by the related 
commissions paid for those future contracts.

40.  Portfolio of insurance and reinsurance contracts assets and liabilities

The table below sets out the carrying amounts of portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contract assets 
and liabilities at the end of reporting date, per class of business:

2024

Group Company

Reinsurance 
contracts assets

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities

Reinsurance 
contracts assets

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Marine and Aviation 2,800,471 9,870,923 2,800,471 9,870,923

Bonds 14,349 2,505,920 14,349 2,505,920

Engineering 332,413 2,204,486 332,413 2,204,486

Fire (10,281,634) 49,912,070 (10,281,634) 49,912,070

Motor 1,625,091 77,780,119 1,625,091 77,780,119

Accident 612,952 13,902,525 612,952 13,902,525

Total (4,896,358) 156,176,043 (4,896,358) 156,176,043
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2023

Group Company

Reinsurance 
contracts assets

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities

Reinsurance 
contracts assets

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Fire, theft and property  51,272,683  (49,344,701)  51,272,683  (49,344,701)

Motor  1,474,388  (71,992,392)  1,474,388  (71,992,392)

Accident  4,413,923  (14,791,327)  4,413,923  (14,791,327)

Marine and aviation  4,112,752  (19,751,425)  4,112,752  (19,751,425)

Bonds  1,004,600  (2,588,673)  1,004,600  (2,588,673)

Engineering 16,177  (2,865,138) 16,177  (2,865,138)

Total 62,294,523 (161,333,656)  62,294,523 (161,333,656)

41.	Insurance contract liabilities

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening to the closing balances of the net liability 
for the remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims for insurance contracts.

Group and Company
Remaining Coverage 

Component Incurred 
Claim 

Component
TOTAL

2024
Excluding 

Loss Recovery 
Component

Loss 
Recovery 

Component

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Opening Insurance Contract Liabilities 100,160,444 606,603 60,566,609 161,333,656

Opening Insurance Contract Assets                  -            -                -                  -

Net insurance contract (asset)/liabilities 
opening balance 100,160,444 606,603 60,566,609 161,333,656

Insurance revenue (559,483,192)                -                 - (559,483,192)

Insurance service expenses 59,265,875 (606,603) 82,772,930 141,432,202

Incurred claims and other directly attributable 
expenses - (606,153) 69,045,412 68,439,259

Changes to liabilities for incurred claims - - 13,727,518 13,727,518

Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of 
those losses - (450) - (450)

Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash 
flows 59,265,875 - - 59,265,875

Investment components - - - -

Net income or expense from insurance 
contracts held (500,217,317) (606,603) 82,772,930 (418,050,990)

Insurance finance expenses - - 3,819,442 3,819,442
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Group and Company
Remaining Coverage 

Component Incurred 
Claim 

Component
TOTAL

2024
Excluding 

Loss Recovery 
Component

Loss 
Recovery 

Component

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Foreign Currency Movements - - - -

Total changes in the statement of 
comprehensive income (500,217,317) (606,603) 86,592,372 (414,231,548)

Cash flow - - - -

Premiums received 552,912,002 - - 552,912,002

Claims and other expenses paid - - (88,165,121) (88,165,121)

Insurance acquisition cash flows (55,672,947) - - (55,672,947)

Total cash flows 497,239,055               - (88,165,121) 409,073,934

Other movements -               -                 -                  -

Net insurance contract (asset)/liabilities 
closing balance 97,182,183               - 58,993,860 156,176,043

Closing Insurance Contract Liabilities 97,182,183 - 58,993,860 156,176,043

Closing Insurance Contract Assets  -                -                -                  -

Net insurance contract (asset)/liabilities 
closing balance 97,182,183                - 58,993,860 156,176,043

Group and 
Company Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims

2023
Excluding loss 

component
Loss 

component Total

Estimates of 
present value 
of future cash 

flows

Risk 
adjustment for 

non-financial 
risk Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Opening liabilities 96,012,575  - 96,012,575  39,805,261  2,913,991 42,719,252

Changes in the statement of profit or loss and OCI

Insurance revenue 
– contracts under 
full retrospective (373,190,838)  - (373,190,838) -  - -

Insurance service 
expenses

Incurred claims 
and other 
insurance service 
expenses - - -  52,865,920 - 52,865,920

Adjustments 
to liabilities for 
incurred claims - - -  6,820,629 472,953 7,293,582
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Group and 
Company Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims

2023
Excluding loss 

component
Loss 

component Total

Estimates of 
present value 
of future cash 

flows

Risk 
adjustment for 

non-financial 
risk Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Losses and 
reversals of 
losses on onerous 
contracts -  606,603  606,603 - - -

Amortisation 
of insurance 
acquisition cash 
flows 40,640,547 40,640,547                 -          -               -

40,640,547  606,603 41,247,150  59,686,549 472,953 60,159,502

Insurance service 
result (332,550,291)  606,603 (331,943,688)  59,686,549 472,953 60,159,502

Insurance 
finance expenses 
recognised in profit 
and loss                -           -                 -  3,730,129 728,498  4,458,627

Total changes in 
the statement of 
profit or loss and 
OCI (332,550,291) 606,603 (331,943,688)  63,416,678 1,201,451 64,618,129

Cash flows

Premiums received 374,541,977 - 374,541,977 - - -

Insurance 
acquisition cash 
flows (37,843,817)  - (37,843,817)  - - -

Claims and other 
insurance service 
expenses paid (46,770,772) (46,770,772)

Total cash flows 336,698,160           - 336,698,160 (46,770,772)             - (46,770,772)

Closing liabilities 100,160,444 606,603 100,767,047 56,451,167 4,115,442 60,566,609

42. Reinsurance contract assets

Group and Company

Asset for remaining coverage
Asset for 

incurred claims 
Component

TOTAL
2024

Excluding 
Loss Recovery 

Component

Loss Recovery 
Component

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Opening Reinsurance Contract 
Liabilities (4,858,724) - 2,783,097 (2,075,627)

Opening Reinsurance Contract 
Assets 59,821,167 200,233 4,348,750 64,370,150
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Asset for remaining coverage
Asset for 

incurred claims 
Component

TOTAL
2024

Excluding 
Loss Recovery 

Component

Loss Recovery 
Component

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Net reinsurance contract 
assets / (liabilities) opening 
balance

54,962,443 200,233 7,131,847 62,294,523

Allocation of reinsurance 
premiums (183,698,254)              -                 - (183,698,254)

Amounts recoverable from 
reinsurers for incurred claims - (200,233) 46,182,216 45,981,983

Amounts recoverable for 
incurred claims and other 
expenses

- (189,917) 90,692,457 90,502,540

Changes to amounts 
recoverable for incurred claims - - (44,510,241) (44,510,241)

Loss-recovery on onerous 
underlying contracts and 
adjustments

- (10,316) - -

Reinsurance investment 
components - - - -

Net income or expense from 
reinsurance contracts held (183,698,254) (200,233) 46,182,216 (137,716,272)

Reinsurance finance income - - 505,149 505,149

Foreign Currency Movements - - - -

Total changes in the 
statement of comprehensive 
income

(183,698,254) (200,233) 46,687,365 (137,211,123)

Cash flows - - - -

Premiums paid 161,125,404 - - 161,125,404

Amounts received (48,592,599)                 - (42,512,563) (91,105,163)

Total cash flows 112,532,804                 - (42,512,563) 70,020,241

Other movements - - - -

Net reinsurance contract 
assets / (liabilities) closing 
balance

(16,203,007)                 - 11,306,649 (4,896,358)

Closing Reinsurance Contract 
Liabilities (18,746,012) - 4,937,224 (13,808,789)
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Asset for remaining coverage
Asset for 

incurred claims 
Component

TOTAL
2024

Excluding 
Loss Recovery 

Component

Loss Recovery 
Component

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Closing Reinsurance Contract 
Assets 2,543,005                 - 6,369,425 8,912,430

Net reinsurance contract 
assets / (liabilities) closing 
balance

(16,203,007)                  - 11,306,649 (4,896,358)

Group and Company

2023 Assets for remaining 
coverage Assets for incurred claims

Excluding 
loss recovery 

component

Loss 
recovery 

component Total

Estimates 
of present 

value of 
future cash 

flows

Risk 
adjustment 

for non-
financial risk Total

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Opening assets  3,182,649  -  3,182,649  5,559,674 413,174 5,972,848

Opening liabilities (3,546,145)           - (3,546,145)             -           -             -

Net opening balance (363,496)  - (363,496)  5,559,674 413,174 5,972,848

Changes in the statement 
of profit or loss and OCI

Net expenses from 
reinsurance contracts held (132,267,084)  200,233 (132,066,851)  11,412,960 (17,955) 11,395,005

Reinsurance finance income 
recognised in profit and loss 473,794 103,293 577,087

Total changes in the 
statement of profit or loss 
and OCI

 
(132,267,084) 200,233 (132,066,851) 11,886,754  85,338 11,972,092

Cash flows

Premiums paid 217,288,490  - 217,288,490 - - -

Amounts received from 
reinsurers relating to incurred 
claims (29,695,467)           - (29,695,467)  (10,813,093)           -

 
(10,813,093)

Total cash flows 187,593,023           -  187,593,023 (10,813,093)           - (10,813,093)

Net closing balance  54,962,443 200,233 55,162,676 6,633,335  498,512 7,131,847

Closing assets 59,821,167 200,233  60,021,400  6,633,335 498,512 7,131,847

Closing liabilities (4,858,724)           - (4,858,724)           -           -           -

Net closing balance 54,962,443 200,233  55,162,676 6,633,335 498,512 7,131,847



2024 ANNUAL REPORT
SIC INSURANCE (PLC)

129

43. Employee benefits obligation

Group and Company

a.	 Breakdown of employee benefit obligation

2024

Retirement Benefit 
Scheme

Post-Employment 
Medical Benefit Total

Actuarial Liability

Active Members 1,047,390 3,617,646 4,665,036

Retired Members               - 14,519,833 14,519,833

Total Actual Liability 1,047,390 18,137,479 19,184,869

2023

Retirement Benefit 
Scheme

Post - Employment 
Medical Benefit Total

Actuarial Liability

Active Members 783,197 17,149,732 17,932,929

Retired Members  694,007 4,557,484  5,251,491

Total: Actual Liability 1,477,204 21,707,216 23,184,420

b. Other reserves

As at December 2024

January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

Financial 
assumptions at the 
end of the year GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Assumed discount rate 
on liabilities 26.74% 26.74% 26.74% 16.00% 16.00% 16.00%

Assumed rate of salary 
increase 12.00%

12.00% 12.00%
10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

Assumed rate of 
inflation 10.00%

10.00% 10.00%
8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Assume rate of medical 12.00% 12.00% 12.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%

Present value of 
obligation, 1st 
January 1,477,203 21,707,216 23,184,420 783,197 17,149,732 17,932,929

Current Service Cost 166,497 458,598 625,095 94,517 344,368 438,885

Interest Expenses 
(Income) 254,068 3,250,121 3,504,189 154,160 3,219,263 3,373,423
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January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

Financial 
assumptions at the 
end of the year GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Past Service cost and 
gain and losses on 
settlements            -               -             -            -               -                -

420,565 3,708,719 4,129,284 248,677 3,563,631 3,812,308

Remeasurements:

Actuarial gain/
loss from change in 
financial assumptions (834,548) (13,440,987) (14,275,535) 570,868 3,368,092 3,938,960

Experience actuarial 
gain/loss 95,725 9,867,644 9,963,368 72,718 96,153 168,871

Change in asset 
ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in 
interest expense.            -                -                  -            -              -                -

(738,824) (3,573,343) (4,312,167) 643,586 3,464,245 4,107,831

January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

Retirement 
Benefit 

Scheme

Post-
Employment 

Medical 
Benefit 

scheme

Combined 
Scheme

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Payments from plan

Benefit paid (111,555) (3,705,113) (3,816,668) (198,257) (2,470,391) (2,668,648)

Present value of 
obligation, 31st 
December 1,047,389 18,137,479 19,184,869 1,477,203 21,707,216 23,184,420

Present value of 
obligation 1,047,389 18,137,479 19,184,869 1,477,203 21,707,216 23,184,420

Fair value of plan 
assets - - - - - -

Liability (assets) 
recognized in 
balance sheet 1,047,389 18,137,479 19,184,869 1,477,203 21,707,216 23,184,420

Current service cost 166,497 458,598 625,095 94,517 344,368 438,885

Net interest cost/
income 254,068 3,250,121 3,504,189 154,160 3,219,263 3,373,423
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Expense (income) 
recognized in the 
income statement 420,565 3,708,719 4,129,284 248,677 3,563,631 3,812,308

Remeasurements

Net actuarial (gain) 
loss recognized in year (738,824) (3,573,343) (4,312,167) 643,586 3,464,245 4,107,831

Expense (income) 
recognized in the 
other comprehensive 
income (738,824) (3,573,343) (4,312,167) 643,586 3,464,245 4,107,831

Group Company

2024 2023 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

On 1 January (7,004,168) (3,904,376) (7,004,168) (3,904,376)

Deferred tax (1,330,052) 1,008,038 (1,330,052) 1,008,038

Actuarial loss 4,312,167 (4,107,830) 4,312,167 (4,107,830)

(4,022,053) (7,004,168) (4,022,053) (7,004,168)

c.	 Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity tests indicated that the resulting liabilities are most sensitive to the discount rate 
assumption followed closely by the medical inflation assumption; changes in the rate of salary increases 
assumption had minimal effect on the liabilities.

The results of the sensitivity analysis as at 31 December, 2024 can be summarized as follows:

31-Dec-2024

Base Case
Discount 
Rate - 2%

Discount 
Rate + 2%

Rate of 
Salary 

Increase 
- 2%

Rate of 
Salary 

Increase 
+ 2%

Medical 
Inflation 

- 2%

Medical 
Inflation 

+ 2%

Mortality 
Loading + 

10%

Accrued liability

Retirement Benefit 
Sch 1,047,389 1,177,655 940,026 926,181 1,193,072 1,047,389 1,047,389 1,052,288

Post-Employment 
Medical 18,137,479 20,170,664 16,494,788 18,137,479 18,137,479 15,984,799 20,788,718 18,525,194

Total 19,184,869 21,348,319 17,434,814 19,063,660 19,330,551 17,032,188 21,836,107 19,577,482

Percentage 11.30% -9.10% -0.60% 0.80% -11.20% 13.80% 2.00%
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31-Dec-2023

Base Case
Discount 
Rate - 2%

Discount 
Rate + 2%

Rate of 
Salary 

Increase 
- 2%

Rate of 
Salary 

Increase 
+ 2%

Medical 
Inflation 

- 2%

Medical 
Inflation 

+ 2%

Mortality 
Loading + 

10%

Accrued liability

Retirement Benefit 
Sch 1,477,203 1,770,375 1,252,974 1,239,193 1,781,798 1,477,203 1,477,203 1,486,137

Post-Employment 
Medical 21,707,216 26,378,871 18,360,129 21,707,216 21,707,216 17,824,287 27,056,804 22,460,403

Total 23,184,420 28,149,246 19,613,103 22,946,410 23,489,014 19,301,491 28,534,007 23,946,540

Percentage 21.40% -15.40% -1.00% 1.30% -16.70% 23.10% 3.30%

44. Financial assets classification and measurement

Instrument

Carrying amount 
as at 31 Dec. 2024 Classification

Fair value as at 
31 Dec. 2024

Fair value 
change

GH¢ GH¢ GH¢

Investment at amortised cost
315,578,702 Amortised cost 315,578,702 -

Trade and other receivables
49,415,063 Amortised cost 49,415,063 -

Reinsurance contract assets
(4,896,358) Amortised cost (4,896,358) -

Cash and bank balance 122,951,980 Amortised cost 122,951,980 -

Credit risk of financial assets

For information about the credit risk exposure, including significant credit risk concentrations, inherent in the 
various financial assets identified above, refer to the credit risk disclosures in note 3siii(b).

45. Contingencies, capital, and financial commitments

The group entered into various commitments in the normal course of insurance business that are not 
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

The group has contingent liabilities in respect of claims and other matters arising in the ordinary course 
of business. It is not anticipated that any material liabilities will arise from the contingent liabilities.

However, the group like all other insurers is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business.

46. Related party transactions

A number of business transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of 
business. These include premiums, claims, etc. These transactions were carried out on commercial 
terms and at market rates. The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year-
end are as follows:
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2024 2023

a. The following transactions were carried out with related parties; GH¢ GH¢

i) Social Security & National Insurance Trust

Premium income 1,823,761 1,891,464

Claims paid 11,579  98,998

ii) Ghana Reinsurance Company Limited

Premium income 32,373  31,945

Claims paid - -

iii) SIC Life Insurance LTD

Premium income 1,174,359  420,943

Claims paid 164,516  71,239

iv)Ghana Commercial Bank Limited

Premium income 4,702,366 3,997,626

Claims paid 602,572  571,596

v)Ghana Cocoa Board

Premium income 38,658  32,761

Claims paid 1,844  9,245

vi) SIC FSL

Staff provident fund contribution deposited with SIC FSL 4,103,569 4,564,080

Transactions with directors
Non- Executive Directors’ emoluments for 2024 are as follows

Name Bi-monthly 
allowance

Sitting 
allowance

No. of meetings 
attended

Total

GH¢ GH¢ Board Committee GH¢

Dr. Rauf Audu 5,040 3,500 4 1 67,200

Mr. Kwabena Osei-Bonsu 3,380  2,800 11 13 135,348

Mr. Daniel Ofori 3,380  2,800 9 6 68,460

Mr. Christian Tetteh Sottie 3,380  2,800 10 5 104,716

Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey 3,380  2,800 10 8 95,760

Mr. Nicholas Oteng 3,380  2,800 11 9 108,916

Dr. Aguriba Abugri 3,380  2,800 11 4 93,660

Hon. John Osei-Frimpong 3,380  2,800 10 8 88,060
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Name Bi-monthly 
allowance

Sitting 
allowance

No. of meetings 
attended

Total

GH¢ GH¢ Board Committee GH¢

Mrs. Christina Sutherland 3,380  2,800 10 9 87,960

Dr. Kingsley Agyemang 3,380  2,800 9 3 52,780

Total 902,860

NOTES:

1.	 The Board Chairman was present during the inauguration meeting of the Audit Committee.

2.	 The total amount include the undermentioned:

2.1	 Interviews chaired by Mrs. Pamela Djamson-Tettey.

2.2	 Meeting with some stakeholders.

2.3	 Payments for Board Retreat, Ad hoc meetings and Directors’ Workshops.

3.	 Dr. Kingsley Agyemang waived his fees and allowances effective 15th July, 2024.

Year end balances arising from transactions with related 
party are as follows; 2024 2023

GH¢ GH¢

The compensation of executive and management staff is 
shown below;

Salaries and other benefits 5,502,974 3,797,562

Employers SSF 373,686  203,391

Employers PF 250,313  148,211

47.	Compliance with legal and regulatory requirement

The company’s transactions were within its powers and the company complied with the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and the Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061) and all relevant 
guidelines issued by the National Insurance Commission.

In accordance with Capitalization, Solvency and Financial provisions in the of the Insurance Act, 2021 
(Act 1061), an insurer is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of 150% by 31 December 2022 and 
investment to total assets ratio of 55% at all times in accordance with the regulations. The company’s 
capital adequacy ratio and investment to assets ratio as at the year-end were 197.65% (2023: 303.04%) 
and 69% (2023: 72%) respectively which were within the minimum requirements per the regulations.

48. Events after reporting period

There is no significant event which occurred after the end of the reporting date and which is likely to affect 
these financial statements.
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49.	Shareholders’ information

(a)	 Directors’ shareholding as at 31 December 2024

Number of % Shares

Name of Director shares held held

Mr. Daniel Ofori 11,570,515 5.91

PSL/Agyeman Kingsley 7,514,649 3.84

19,085,164 9.75

(b)	 Analysis of shareholding as at 31st December 2024.

Range of shareholding

No. of

Shareholders
 Shares 

holdings
% of 

Shareholders  % Holding

1 – 1000 8,796 4,150,084 74.42 2.12

1001 – 5000 2,179 5,454,835 18.43 2.79

5000 – 10000 416 3,396,815 3.52 1.74

10001 and others 429 182,643,266 3.63 93.35

11,820 195,645,000 100.00 100.00

(c) List of the twenty largest shareholders as at 31 December 2024

Name of shareholder  Shares held  % Holding

1 GOVERNMENT OF GHANA C/O MINISTRY OF FINANCE 78,258,000 40.00%

2 SOCIAL SECURITY AND NATIONAL INSURANCE TRUST 23,127,392 11.82%

3 OFORI DANIEL 11,570,515 5.91%

4 SCGN/PICTET AFRICA NON-TAX 6275J 9,666,764 4.94%

5 SCGN/BANQUE PICTET AND CIE SA, GENEVA RE, PATRICK 
SCHEGG 9,666,764 4.94%

6 PSL/AGYEMANG KINGSLEY 7,490,809 3.83%

7 DEGBOTSE EMMANUEL KOBLA 5,085,565 2.60%

8 PRESTIGE CAPITAL LIMITED 2,720,505 1.39%

9 SIC-FSL/SIC LIFE SECURITIES TRADING A/C 2,662,200 1.36%

10 ANIM-ADDO, KOJO 2,198,770 1.12%

11 CM FUND LIMITED 2,128,180 1.09%

12 EDC/TEACHERS EQUITY FUND 2,066,700 1.06%

13 GHANA COMMERCIAL BANK LTD 2,000,000 1.02%

14 SIC EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN 1,835,416 0.94%

15 GHANA REINSURANCE COMPANY LTD GENERAL BUSINESS 1,661,912 0.85%

16 SCGN/CITIBANK KUWAIT INV AUTHORITY 1,303,900 0.67%

17 METLIFE CLASSIC A/C, STD NOMS TVL PTY/METLIFE GOLD 
PLAN FUND MICAC 985,000 0.50%
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18 STATE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDENT FUND ACCOUNT 921,669 0.47%

19 GIANNOPOULOS ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED 766,673 0.39%

20 MAINSTREAM REINSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 517,332 0.26%

166,634,066 85.17%

OTHERS 29,010,934 14.83%

TOTAL 195,645,000 100.00%
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PROXY FORM 

I/We …………………………………………………………………………being a member(s) of SIC Insurance PLC hereby 
appoint……………………………………………or failing whom the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to 
vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18th Annual General Meeting to be held on 27th November, 
2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the Accra International Conference Centre and virtually via www.sicinsuranceagm.
com

Please indicate with a “X” in the appropriate boxes below, how you wish your vote to be cast:

RESOLUTION FROM THE BOARD For Against abstain

1.	 To consider and adopt the Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st December, 2024.

2. 	 To appoint the following persons as Independent Non-Executive 
Directors.

1. Dr. Aaron Issa Anafure

2. Mr. Ernest Tawiah Nunoo

3. Mr. Saeed Obi Abdulae

To ratify the appointment of the following Directors 

• Hon. Bernard Ahiafor, MP

• Mr. James Agyenim-Boateng

• Dr. Abena N. Asomaning

• Hon. David Theophilus Dominic Vondee, MP

• Hon. Emmanuel Kofi Ntekuni, MP

• Major  Benjamin Donkor (Rtd)

• Mr. Daniel Amasah Kotey

3.	 To Declare dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2024

4.	 To approve Directors’ Remuneration

5.	 To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD NOT BE SENT TO THE REGISTRAR IF THE MEMBER WILL BE ATTENDING 
THE MEETING. 

Signed the …. day of                                 ,  2025                               	                                  ……………………………………

									         Shareholder’s Signature
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Notes:

A member (shareholder) who is unable to attend 
the Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to 
vote by Proxy.  The above Proxy Form has been 
prepared to enable you to exercise your vote if you 
cannot personally attend or vote online.

1.	 Provision has been made on the form for the 
Chairman of the meeting to act as your proxy, 
but if you wish, you may insert in the blank 
space the name of any person whether a 
member of the company or not, who will attend 
the meeting and vote on your behalf instead of 
the Chairman of the meeting. 

2.	 If executed by a Company, the Proxy Form 
should bear its seal or be signed by a Director 
of the Company. 

3.	 The fact that you have appointed a proxy does 
not prevent you from attending and speaking 
and voting at the meeting in person.  If, having 

appointed a proxy, you attend the meeting 
in person, your proxy appointment will be 
terminated automatically.

4.	 All shareholders or their proxies attending the 
meeting in person will be required to present 
their Ghana Cards for purposes of identification 
and registration.

5.	 Please deliver the signed Proxy Form to reach 
the Registrar, NTHC Ltd, 18 Gamel Abdul 
Nasser Avenue, Ringway Estates (Opposite 
British High Commission), Osu-Accra P.O. Box 
KIA 9563, Airport-Accra (email: registrars@
nthc.com.gh) not later than 48 hours before 
the appointed time for the meeting. Failure to 
send the proxy form as required will result in 
the proxy not being admitted to or allowed to 
participate in the meeting.
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